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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The Group secured a major capital rising activity by means of an open offer
in 2015, which allowed the Group to further develop its ordinary business
and to explore for business opportunities in other sectors to diversify its
business into industries that provide better returns for the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) and broaden the sources of income of the
Group.

On 10 November 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of Million
Fortune International Investment Limited (“Million Fortune” together with its
subsidiaries, “Million Fortune Group”). Through this acquisition, the Group
commenced a new business segment — online platform business, which
provides online platform for trading and deferred spot delivery services
of precious metals mainly being silver and copper, and other associated
services including transaction settlement management, commodity delivery
management and related consulting services to customers nationwide in
the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"). Details of the acquisition are
disclosed in the paragraph headed “MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT — Acquisition of Million Fortune International
Investment Limited” below.

For the purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has been operating the following major business segments for the year
ended 31 December 2015:

Resources trading business

The Group had renamed the ordinary business segment — coking coal trading
business into resources trading business, to present a more precise description
of its trading business, since the Group had developed and expanded its
resources trading business in the second half of 2015, which now includes
resources such as coking coal, aluminium rod and fuel oil.

The overall resources market followed a downward trend as in the past few
years. The coal market continued to diminish and coal price remained at a
low level due to ongoing sluggish demand and the stricter environmental
protection governance. Due to the above mentioned reasons, the Group
applied more cautious and conservative approaches, and completed trading
of coal of about 60,000 tons during the year ended 31 December 2015.

As mentioned above, besides the coking coal business, the Group expanded
its resources trading business and stepped into commodities trading market
such as trading of aluminium rod and fuel oil. Though the gross profit margin
of the commodities trading is thin in this financial period, the management is
confident that such expansion can help the Group to build a more diversified
foundation in the resources trading business segment.

In May 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of 95% shareholding
interest in a company incorporated in Mongolia with self-owned trucks and
vehicles located in Mongolia, which could help the Group in establishing a full
supply chain of coal from Mongolia to the PRC. Details of the acquisition are
disclosed in the paragraph headed “MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT — Acquisition of Glorious Future Logistics Limited ”
below.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS (cont'd)

Online platform business

The Group commenced online platform trading business in the fourth quarter
of 2015, through the acquisition of Million Fortune Group, which had already
commenced contributing revenue and profit to the Group in this financial
period. Details of the acquisition are disclosed in the paragraph headed
“MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT -
Acquisition of Million Fortune International Investment Limited” below.

FRESARRSF L (FS)ERAF (formerly known as SEREEEE
RSHROLBEMERAET) ("RAMEIE") is the operating subsidiary of Million
Fortune Group, and is principally engaged in the provision of online platform
for trading and deferred spot delivery services of precious metals mainly
being silver and copper, and other associated services including transaction
settlement management, commodity delivery management and related
consulting services to customers nationwide in the PRC. It was recognised
as one of the 26 spot exchanges in 2013 pursuant to & B [2013]495%
(document Qing Zheng Ban Zi [2013] No.49%*).

The revenue of this segment represented the handling fees charged to end
customers who utilized the online trading platform.

Media and advertising business

The Group operates outdoor advertisement mediums/billboards provision
business, advertisement design and production, graphic and brand design
services as well as corporate culture consultancy in the PRC and in Mongolia.

Although the PRC media and advertising market was quite challenging, the
Group still made an effort to achieve a satisfactory performance in 2015.

In May 2015, the Group disposed of its 100% shareholding interest in its
subsidiaries namely L&L Partners’ Limited and Shanghai Winmedia Advertising
Media Co., Ltd, which focus on media and advertising services — outdoor
billboards. Details of the disposal are disclosed in the paragraph headed
"MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT — Disposal of
L&L Partners’ Limited and Shanghai Winmedia Advertising Media Co., Ltd”
below.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Disposal of L&L Partners’ Limited and Shanghai Winmedia
Advertising Media Co., Ltd

In March 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party for the disposals of its entire interest in
its wholly owned subsidiaries, namely L&L Partners’ Limited and Shanghai
Winmedia Advertising Media Co., Ltd, which focus on media and advertising
services — outdoor billboards, at an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$100,000. Such disposals were completed in May 2015 and accrued
an aggregate gain before tax of approximately HK$3,354,000 (included a
release of translation reserve upon disposal of a subsidiary of approximately
HK$3,566,000) for the year ended 31 December 2015. Following the
disposal, each of L&L Partner’s Limited and Shanghai Winmedia Advertising
Media Co., Ltd, ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDN

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT (cont’d)

Disposal of Konwide Development Limited and Noble City
(Asia) Limited (together with its subsidiary)

On 30 June 2015, the Group also disposed of its 100% equity interest in
Konwide Development Limited and Noble City (Asia) Limited (together with
its subsidiary) for a nominal consideration of HK$1 to independent third
parties. Completion of the disposals took place during this financial period
and accrued an aggregate gain before tax of approximately HK$8,002,000.
Following the disposal, each of Konwide Development Limited and Noble City
(Asia) Limited (together with its subsidiary) ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company.

Disposal of EE W MER A EHEHF R A 7 (Qingdao Urban and
Rural Construction Leasing Co., Limited*)

On 24 July 2015, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with b RETHREZEER AR AT (Beijing Longyuan Taifu Investment
Development Co., Limited*), S &M MEHRRE (EE)BREE R A
(Qingdao City Construction Investment Group Co., Limited*), F/B#& @R EE
I B R A A (Shanghai Luoyou Investment Management Co., Limited*) (being
the joint venture partners of the Company) and several new investors for the
disposal of its equity interest in & SWAERRMEREHFR QA (Qingdao
Urban and Rural Construction Leasing Co., Limited*) (the “JV Company”) at
cash consideration of approximately HK$13,857,000. The Company's cost
of investment in the JV Company was approximately HK$11,645,000, which
represented approximately 3.85% of the initial total registered capital of the
JV Company. And the carrying amount of the investment was approximately
HK$12,837,000. Completion of the disposal took place during this financial
period and accrued a gain before tax of approximately HK$1,021,000.
Following the disposal, the JV Company ceased to be an associate of the
Company.

Acquisition of Glorious Future Logistics Limited

On 19 May 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with independent third parties to acquire the entire issued equity of Glorious
Future Logistics Limited (“Glorious Future”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, at a consideration of
HK$44,000,000. Glorious Future holds 95% shareholdings interest in Ifrontier
LLC, a limited liability company incorporated in Mongolia, with self-owned
trucks and vehicles located in Mongolia. Such acquisition would enable the
Group to establish a full supply chain of coal from Mongolia to the PRC. The
acquisition was completed in this financial period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT (cont’d)

Acquisition of Million Fortune International Investment
Limited

On 8 July 2015, the purchaser (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company), Antel Classification Limited, World Dragon Enterprise Limited,
Guojin Holdings Co. Ltd, Nuts Technology Co., Ltd (collectively as the
“Vendors”) and Ms. Sun Jianjing, Mr. Zhang Zhijie and Mr. Sun Xiaoyang
(collectively as the “Guarantors”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement
(the “Qingdao SPA"), pursuant to which the Vendors conditionally agreed
to sell and the Purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase an aggregate of
7,000 ordinary shares of Million Fortune (representing 70% equity interest in
its entire issued share capital) at a consideration of HK$400,000,000. Million
Fortune is principally engaged in investment holding and indirectly holds 90%
equity interest in F#TEI% upon completion of reorganisation. F M E % is
principally engaged in the provision of an online platform for trading and
deferred spot delivery services of precious metals, such as silver, nonferrous
metals and other valuable commodities as well as other associated services.

The consideration of HK$400,000,000 is to be satisfied by the following
manner: (i) as to the sum of HK$120,000,000 to be settled by way of
issue of the zero-coupon convertible bond in the principal amount of
HK$120,000,000 (“QDCB1") at the initial conversion price of HK$0.40 per
conversion share, as part payment upon completion; and (ii) as to the sum
of HK$280,000,000 to be settled by way of issue of the convertible bond in
the principal amount of HK$280,000,000 (“QDCB2") at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.40 per conversion share, as final payment of the consideration
within fourteen (14) full calendar months period after completion (subject to
downward adjustments which based on the actual performance of the Million
Fortune Group in the twelve (12) full calendar months period immediately
after completion (the “Profit Guarantee Period")).

Pursuant to the Qingdao SPA, each of the Vendors and the Guarantors was
undertaken that the consolidated net profit (after taxation and excludes any
profit/(loss) deriving from the discontinued operation(s) and activities not
within the usual course of business of the Million Fortune Group) as shown
in the audited accounts of the Million Fortune Group for the Profit Guarantee
Period as audited by the auditors to be appointed by the Company shall not
be less than HK$45,000,000.

The acquisition was completed on 10 November 2015, and QDCB1 in the
principal amount of HK$120,000,000 was issued by the Company to the
Vendors on the same day. During the year ended 31 December 2015, a total
of 119,050,000 Shares were issued upon conversion of the QDCB1 in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$47,620,000 each with the conversion price
of HK$0.40 per share and thus, the principal amount of the QDCB1 remaining
outstanding as at 31 December 2015 was HK$72,380,000 which could be
converted into 180,950,000 Shares.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDN

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT (cont'd)

Acquisition of Million Fortune International Investment
Limited (cont'd)

Since QDCB2 is subject to downward adjustment which based on the actual
performance of the Million Fortune Group in the Profit Guarantee Period
(the "Contingent Consideration”) and to be issued within fourteen (14) full
calendar months period after completion, the Contingent Consideration was
accounted for as derivative Instruments of the Company (the “Derivative
Instruments”). The Company had engaged external valuation expert to assess
the fair value of the Derivative Instruments (the “Valuation”), details of the
key assumption and valuation technique for the Valuation are set out in
note 4(g) and note 5 to the financial statements. The Company recorded a
fair value gain of derivative instruments of approximately HK$33,573,000
which result from the fair value change of the Derivative Instruments in
between the date of recognition and 31 December 2015. The fair value gain
of the Derivative Instruments was mainly due to the change in Share price
in between the date of recognition (which was HK$0.29 per Share) and 31
December 2015 (which was HK$0.24 per Share). Details of the Derivative
Instruments are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

Details of the acquisition were set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 8 July 2015, 31 August 2015 and 10 November 2015 and the
Company’s circular dated 30 September 2015.

Acquisition and disposal of Power Up Ventures Limited

On 27 July 2015, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
(the "Purchaser”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party (the “Vendor”) to acquire 19 shares (the "Sale
Shares”) of Power Up Ventures Limited (“Power Up"), representing 19% of
the issued share capital of Power Up, at a consideration of HK$36,000,000
(the "Investment”). Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement in respect
of the Investment, the Vendor granted a put option (the “Put Option”) to the
Purchaser to sell back the Sale Shares at the option price of HK$36,000,000
within six (6) months since completion of the Investment at the Purchaser’s
discretion. Power Up is an investment holding company registered in the
British Virgin Islands under the International Business Companies Act. Power
Up indirectly holds the entire issued capital of FEE#NES BT T E L
EABMR2AF (Eina Banner KimYunKunTai Industry Development Co., Ltd.*,
“KimYunKunTai”), a company established in the PRC with limited liability.
KimYunKunTai is principally engaged in the business of international trading
and logistics, import and export declarations and storage services, and it owns
a logistics park of approximately 130,000 square metres which locates at
Inner Mongolia, the PRC. The Investment was completed in July 2015.

The Investment was intended to be a move to the logistics and storage
services in the natural resources supply chain between the PRC and Mongolia,
as part of the Group’'s business development strategy during the depressed
natural resource market atmosphere, and looking for the recovery of coal
market in the short run. The Put Option granted by the Vendor acted as a
security for the Group to put back the Investment at the Group's discretion,
without loss. Subsequently, in view of the recovery of coal market which was
slower than expected, the Purchaser exercised the Put Option in the fourth
quarter of 2015. The Vendor fully paid the option price to the Group and the
Purchaser sold back the Sale Shares to the Vendor during this financial period.
No gain or loss was incurred to the Group in the Investment and the relevant
disposal.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT (cont’d)

Acquisition of Fortune Union Financial Holdings (Asia Pacific)
Limited

In view of the indispensable financial needs of small and medium-sized
enterprises in the PRC, the Group has explored business development
opportunities in small loan business in the PRC in October 2015. An indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (as subscriber) entered into a
conditional subscription agreement with Fortune Union Financial Holdings
(Asia Pacific) Limited (“Fortune Union”) on 29 October 2015, pursuant
to which the subscriber agreed to subscribe for 25,000,000 new shares
of Fortune Union, representing approximately 26.3% of the issued share
capital of Fortune Union (as enlarged by the issue of the subscription
shares) at a consideration of US$25,000,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$195,000,000. Fortune Union is an investment holding company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability. Fortune Union
indirectly holds the entire equity interest in EE T ALEA B/ NBERERA
Al (Chongging City Yubei District He Ying Microfinance Company Limited*),
a company established under the law of the PRC with limited liability, which
is principally engaged in small loan business. The subscription was completed
in this financial period and this investment was accounted for as an associate
of the Group. The share of profit from this associate to the Group during this
financial period was approximately HK$5,111,000. Details of the Subscription
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 29 October 2015.

Subscription of HX Bond

On 2 April 2015, the Company completed the subscription of the 11%
coupon bond (the “HX Bond") issued by Heng Xin China Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 8046) (“HX") in the principal amount of HK$70,000,000. As
the subscription of HX Bond is to be funded by the subscription money of
the relatively lower cost Bond which bears a coupon rate of 6% per annum,
the Company believes that the subscription of HX Bond could offer a better
return on cash of the Group. HX is an investment holding company whose
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.
HX and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in digital cable television
business, wireless digital television value-added services, wireless digital
terrestrial television network equipment integrated business, research, design,
development on and manufacturing of electronic message security products,
integrated circuits, the integrated circuit solutions and the related services,
and in the business of manufacturing and selling of castor seeds and castor
beans and selling of castor oil. Details of the subscription of the HX Bond
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 12 January 2015.

On 5 February 2016, the HX Bond in the principal amount of HK$70,000,000
was used as partial consideration for the subscription of convertible bond
issued by HX, details of which were set out below under sub-section headed
“Subscription of HXCB".
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT (cont’d)

Subscription of Shares of HX

On 18 August 2015, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with HX whereby the Company agreed to subscribe in cash and HX agreed to
allot and issue a total of 220,000,000 new shares of HX (the “Subscription
Shares”) for HK$22,000,000. The subscription price of HK$0.1 per
Subscription Share represented a discount of approximately 13.04% to the
closing price of HK$0.115 per share of HX as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on 18 August 2015. The subscription was completed on 27 August 2015 and
all Subscription Shares were disposed during this financial period and the
Group recorded a realised gain of approximately HK$6,665,000.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

The Group is principally engaged in resources trading business, media and
advertising business and provision of online platform for trading and deferred
spot delivery services of precious metals mainly being silver and copper, and
other associated services including transaction settlement management,
commodity delivery management and related consulting services to
customers nationwide in the PRC. The Group is actively exploring for business
opportunities in other sectors to diversify its business into industries that
provide better returns for the Shareholders and broaden the sources of
income of the Group.

On 29 July 2014 (Vancouver, British Columbia time), the Company and
Turquoise Hill Resources Limited (“THRL"”) entered into the sale and purchase
agreement (the “SPA”), pursuant to which THRL agreed to sell, and the
Company agreed to purchase, 56,102,000 common shares of SouthGobi
Resources Limited (“SouthGobi Shares”) which is primary listed on the
Toronto Stock Exchange (stock symbol: SGQ) and secondary listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1878) at the purchase price of 25,526,410
Canadian dollars and subject to the terms of the sale and purchase
agreement. As this acquisition constitutes a very substantial acquisition of the
Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange, this acquisition is subject to approval by the Shareholders. On 2
December 2014, an amendment agreement to the SPA entered into between
the Company and THRL pursuant to which, among other things, to extend
the long stop date of the acquisition from 30 November 2014 to 30 April
2015. On 1 May 2015, THRL issued a notice to the Company to terminate this
acquisition with immediate effect. Thus this acquisition was terminated on 1
May 2015, without bringing to the Group any material adverse impact.
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT (cont’d)

On 9 November 2015, NUR Investments Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser entered in to a conditional sale and
purchase agreement with Wealth Leading International Holdings Limited,
an independent third party, as vendor to purchase the entire issued share
capital of Luck Fortune International Investment Limited at a consideration
of HK$866,000,000 (the “Major Acquisition 1”). Luck Fortune International
Investment Limited is an investment holding company and, upon the
completion of restructuring, will own the entire share capital of Wise Chance
International Investment Limited, of which will hold directly or indirectly, 20%
equity interests in & IE A A ¥ g2 R B A BR & £ 2 7] (Hefei Zhonghang New
Energy Technology Company Limited*) whereas Hefei Zhonghang New Energy
Technology Company Limited directly owns 51% equity interests of Z &2
FLEZTE AR QA (Anhui Xingkailong Motor Company Limited*) (the “Luck
Fortune Group”). The Luck Fortune Group engages in the manufacturing of
electric vehicles and batteries and energy management system of the electric
vehicles. The Major Acquisition 1 would enable the Group to explore and
develop its business portfolio and also provide a new source of income for
the Group. The consideration of HK$866,000,000 shall be settled by way
of cash consideration, the issuance of promissory notes and the issuance of
convertible bonds. The Major Acquisition 1 constitutes a major transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, it is therefore subject to
approval by the Shareholders.

Details of the Major Acquisition 1 are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 9 November 2015, 31 December 2015 and 30 March 2016
(the “MA1 Announcements”). As disclosed in the MA1 Announcements, one
of the conditions for completion is the completion of the restructuring and
all of the approvals and filings in respect of the restructuring having been
obtained. Up to the date of this report, the vendor and the relevant parties
are still in the process of carrying out the restructuring of the Luck Fortune
Group and more time is required for completion of the restructuring, the
circular for this transaction is yet to be despatched.

On 15 January 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (as
purchaser) entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement to
purchase the entire issued share capital of Gear World Development Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, at a
consideration of not more than HK$800,000,000 (the Major Acquisition 2").
Upon the completion of the reorganisation, Gear World Development Limited
will indirectly own the entire equity interest in It R KX HE TEHERR
‘A |l (Beijing Tian Ma Tong Chi Car Rental Co., Ltd.*) and Beijing Tian Ma
Tong Chi Car Rental Co., Ltd. will own 49% of the equity interest of it
X 55 38 Bt ik 52 2 i A BR 2 A (Beijing Tian Ma Tong Chi Travel Transportation
Co., Ltd.*) (the "Gear World Group”). The Gear World Group is principally
engaged in the provision of car rental services and tour bus services including
shuttle bus services for business and leisure purposes as well as related value-
added services. The consideration of HK$800,000,000 shall be settled by
way of cash consideration and the issuance of convertible bonds. The Major
Acquisition 2 constitutes a major transaction of the Company under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules, it is therefore subject to approval by the Shareholders.
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT (cont’'d)

Details of the Major Acquisition 2 are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 18 December 2015, 15 January 2016 and 30 March 2016.
Up to the date of this report, the circular for this transaction is yet to be
dispatched as additional time is required for the preparation and finalisation
of certain information to be included in the circular.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded a consolidated
revenue of approximately HK$382,789,000, while the revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2014 was approximately HK$364,876,000. Loss
attributable to Shareholders was approximately HK$64,413,000, when
compared to approximately HK$68,647,000 for the year ended 31 December
2014. Basic loss per share was approximately HK1.35 cents, when compared
to approximately HK2.08 cents for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Revenue
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the revenue of the Group was
principally derived from the following business segments:

(i) Resources trading business
The revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015 generated from
resources trading business, which consists of coking coal business, fuel
oil business and aluminium rod business, amounted to approximately
HK$337,729,000 (year ended 31 December 2014: HK$334,004,000).
The gross profit margin of this business was approximately 0.53% (year
ended 31 December 2014: 17.6%).

(ii) Media and advertising business

The revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015 generated from
the media and advertising business amounted to approximately
HK$24,826,000 (year ended 31 December 2014: HK$30,872,000).
This segment result was a profit of approximately HK$13,766,000
as compared to approximately HK$2,085,000 for the year ended
31 December 2014. The gross profit margin of this business was
approximately 72.20% (year ended 31 December 2014: 23.45%).

(iii) Online platform business
The revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015 generated from the
online platform business amounted to approximately HK$20,234,000
(year ended 31 December 2014: Nil). This segment result was a profit of
approximately HK$6,301,000 (year ended 31 December 2014: Nil). The
gross profit margin of this business was approximately 38.62% (year
ended 31 December 2014: Nil).

Other Income

The Group’s other income increased from approximately HK$8,936,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2014 to approximately HK$33,737,000 for
the year 31 December ended 2015. The increase was mainly attributable
o (i) approximately HK$11,356,000 of gain on disposal of subsidiaries; (ii)
approximately HK$12,706,000 of gain of trading of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss; and (iii) approximately HK$5,780,000 of accrued
interest from bonds receivable.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (cont'd)

Administrative and other operating expenses

The Group's administrative and other operating expenses mainly comprised
employment expenses, legal and professional fees and rentals for offices
located in the PRC and Hong Kong. Administrative and other operating
expenses were approximately HK$91,998,000 for the year ended 31
December 2015, as compared to approximately HK$109,678,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2014, representing a decrease of approximately 16.12%.

The amortisation of intangible asset relating to the acquisition of Placid
Group was approximately HK$5,400,000 (year ended 31 December 2014:
HK$5,400,000), and the amortisation of intangible asset relating to the
acquisition of Million Fortune Group was approximately HK$720,000 (year
ended 31 December 2014: Nil).

Finance Costs

The finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to
approximately HK$23,597,000 as compared to approximately HK$17,101,000
for the year ended 31 December 2014. During the year, the Group’s finance
costs comprised interest on bank borrowing amounted to approximately
HK$2,538,000, accrued interest for the non-convertible bonds and
convertible bonds totally amounted to approximately HK$20,791,000, and
interest payments for finance lease amounted to approximately HK$195,000.

Fair value gain of derivative instruments

The Group recorded a fair value gain of derivative instruments of
approximately HK$33,573,000 which result from the fair value change
of the Derivative Instruments in between the date of recognition and 31
December 2015. Details of the Derivative Instruments and key assumption
and valuation technique to assess the fair value of the Derivative Instruments
are disclosed in the paragraph headed “MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL
AND SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT — Acquisition of Million Fortune International
Investment Limited” above and note 4(g), note 5 and note 28 to the financial
statements.

Loss for the year

As a result, the Group recorded loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$64,413,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 as
compare to approximately HK$68,647,000 for the year ended 31 December
2014, representing a decrease of approximately 6.17%.

Property, plant and equipment

As at 31 December 2015, property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately HK$61,328,000, representing an increase of approximately
674.05% when compared to HK$7,923,000 as at 31 December 2014. The
increase was mainly due to (i) additions in motor vehicles (self-owned trucks
and vehicles) amounted to approximately HK$46,455,000 owned by Glorious
Future Group, which was acquired by the Group during the financial period;
and (ii) additions of yacht and motor vehicle amounted to approximately
HK$15,013,000 made in this financial period.

Intangible assets

On 2 December 2013, the Group acquired 100% equity interests in Placid
Group, an intangible asset of related customer relationships, amounted to
HK$108,000,000 in fair value, was recognized as parts of the assets and
liabilities of the Placid Group that the Group had acquired. This intangible
asset is amortized on the straight-line method over its estimated useful life of
20 years.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (cont'd)

Intangible assets (cont’'d)

On 10 November 2015, the Group acquired 70% equity interests in Million
Fortune Group, intangible assets of customer relationships and the computer
software amounted to HK$82,120,000 in fair value, were recognized as parts
of the assets and liabilities of the Million Fortune Group that the Group had
acquired.

These intangible assets are amortized on straight-line method over their
estimated useful life of 20 years and 10 years respectively.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables amounted to approximately HK$325,322,000, representing
an increase of approximately 901.33% when compared to HK$32,489,000 as
at 31 December 2014. This dramatical increase was mainly due to significant
trading transactions in resources commodities occured in the fourth quarter
of 2015. In order to minimize the credit risk for the trade receivables, the
Group has implemented strict control on the determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables amounted to approximately
HK$343,847,000 as at 31 December 2015, a decrease of approximately
35.20% when compared to HK$530,663,000 as at 31 December 2014,

The Group made a provision of prepayment amounted to HK$40,000,000
during this financial period, which is related to a prepayment for coal
amounted to HK$89,700,000 paid by First Concept Industrial Group Limited
(formerly known as First Concept Logistics Limited, “First Concept”) to
SouthGobi Sands LLC. First Concept served a notice of arbitration on 24 June
2015 to recover this prepayment. Detail of the Notice are disclosed in the
note 39 to the financial statements.

Trade payables

Trade payables amounted to approximately HK$73,256,000 as at 31
December 2015, representing an decrease of approximately 12.92% when
compare to HK$84,124,000 as at 31 December 2014.

Other payables and accruals

Other payables and accruals amounted to approximately HK$56,966,000 as at
31 December 2015, a decrease of approximately 11.41% when compared to
HK$64,305,000 as at 31 December 2014.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2015, the Group recorded other borrowings of
approximately HK$251,773,000 (31 December 2014: HK$46,473,000), of
which HK$190,123,000 was a loan from Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong)
Limited.
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EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 73 employees (including Directors)
in Hong Kong, the PRC and Mongolia (31 December 2014: 83). The Group
continues to provide remuneration packages to employees according to
market practices, their experience and performance. Remuneration policy is
basically determined with reference to individual performance as well as the
financial results of the Group. Remuneration to staff will be revised from time
to time when warranted considering the performances of staff. Other benefits
include medical insurance scheme and contribution of statutory mandatory
provident fund for the employees. The Group also adopted a share option
scheme whereby qualified participants may be granted options to acquire
shares of the Company. There has been no major change in staff utilized
policies during the year ended 31 December 2015.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31 December 2015, the Company has 5,873,770,500 Shares in issue.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group financed its operations
by (i) cash flow from operating activities; (ii) funding through issuance of
the non-convertible bonds and convertible bonds; (iii) funding through open
offer; and (iv) funding through issuance of new Shares. As at 31 December
2015, the cash and bank balances of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$420,887,000 (31 December 2014: HK$2,879,000), with approximately
HK$237,478,000 deposit pledged to banks (31 December 2014: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has net cash
outflow of approximately HK$196,423,000 (year ended 31 December
2014: HK$354,998,000) used in its operating activities, net cash outflow
of approximately HK$309,022,000 (year ended 31 December 2014:
HK$33,192,000) used in its investing activities and net cash inflow
of approximately HK$924,712,000 (year ended 31 December 2014:
HK$344,142,000) from its financing activities.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had current assets of approximately
HK$1,173,548,000 (31 December 2014: HK$566,031,000), while its
current liabilities were approximately HK$655,106,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$303,239,000). The current ratio (current assets over current liabilities)
of the Group was approximately 1.79 (31 December 2014: 1.87); and its
gearing ratio (total borrowings over total assets) was approximately 29.37%
(31 December 2014: 43.17%). Net asset value per share was approximately
HK$0.16 as at 31 December 2015 (31 December 2014: HK$0.07).
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE (cont'd)

Share Subscription

On 16 April 2015, the Company entered into two separate conditional
subscription agreements with each of Mr. Cai Xuwen and Yue Xiu Great
China Fixed Income Fund Il LP for the subscription of 100,000,000
Shares (the "First Subscription”) and 500,000,000 Shares (the “Second
Subscription”) (collectively, the “Share Subscription”) respectively at a price
of HK$0.262 per subscription share, representing a discount of approximately
19.38% to the closing price of HK$0.325 per Share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 16 April 2015. The First Subscription was completed on 27
April 2015 and the Second Subscription was completed on 11 May 2015.
The net proceeds from the Share Subscription amounted to approximately
HK$157,170,000 (equivalent to a net price of approximately HK$0.262 per
subscription share). Details of the Share Subscription (including the conditions
precedent to the issuance of the new Shares under the Share Subscription)
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 16 April 2015.

The reasons for carrying out the Share Subscription were to strengthen the
financial position (in particular the working capital and cash flow position) of
the Group, and to improve the cash reserve for the on-going development of
the Group.

As at 31 December 2015, approximately HK$56,000,000 of such net
proceeds have been utilized for settlement of debt and related interest,
approximately HK$77,670,000 have been used as general working capital
(as to approximately HK$59,099,000 for the addition of property, plant
and equipment, and approximately HK$16,633,000 for staff cost, and the
remaining of approximately HK$1,938,000 for operating expenses) and the
remaining balance of approximately HK$23,500,000 remained unutilized.

Open Offer

On 22 May 2015, the Company entered into an underwriting agreement with
GF Securities (Hong Kong) Brokerage Limited in relation to the underwriting
and certain other arrangements in respect of the open offer on the basis
of one (1) offer share for every two (2) shares in issue and held on 12 June
2015, being the record date, at the subscription price of HK$0.26 each (the
"Open Offer”). The Open Offer was completed on 15 July 2015 and totally
1,861,663,500 offer shares were issued. The net proceeds of the Open Offer
amounted to approximately HK$475,000,000 (equivalent to a net price of
approximately HK$0.255 per offer share). Details of the Open Offer were set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 22 May 2015, 4 June 2015, 5
June 2015 and 14 July 2015 and the Company’s prospectus dated 22 June
2015.

The reason for carrying out the Open Offer were to: (i) allow the Group to
strengthen its financial position without having to incur interest expenses as
compared to debt financing; (i) increase the capital base of the Company
for future investment purposes; and (iii) provide funding to capture suitable
investment opportunities when arises.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL STRUCTURE (cont'd)

Open Offer (cont’d)

As at 31 December 2015, approximately HK$108,650,000 was used for
the settlement of outstanding debts and related interests, approximately
HK$58,000,000 was used for investments and the remaining balance of
approximately HK$308,350,000 remained unutilized.

CB Subscription

On 9 October 2015, the Company entered into two separate conditional
subscription agreements with each of Ultimate Advantage Limited and
Elite Fortune Global Limited for the subscription of convertible bonds (the
“2015CB") in the principal amount of HK$131,471,800 (the "Subscription
A") and HK$65,735,900 (the “Subscription B"”) respectively (collectively, the
"CB Subscription”). The 2015CB carry interest at a rate of 4.5% per annum,
which is payable on the maturity date, being the date following twenty-four
months from the date of issue of the 2015CB. The 2015CB entitle the holders
to convert the 2015CB into ordinary shares of the Company at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.265 per conversion share (subject to adjustment)
during the period within twenty-four months from the date of issue of the
2015CB and a maximum of 744,180,000 conversion shares can be issued
under the general mandate. The initial conversion price of HK$0.265 per
conversion shares representing a discount of approximately 18.46% to the
closing price of HK$0.325 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 9
October 2015. The Subscription B in the principal amount of HK$65,735,900,
which are convertible into a maximum number of 248,060,000 new Shares
based on the initial conversion price of HK$0.265 per Share (subject to
adjustment), by Elite Fortune Global Limited was completed on 27 October
2015. On 11 November 2015, the Subscription A in relation to the convertible
bonds in the principal amount of HK$131,471,800 was lapsed. During the
year ended 31 December 2015, 148,060,000 Shares upon conversion of the
2015CB in the principal amount of HK$39,235,900 were issued and no early
redemption of the 2015CB was made by the Company and thus the principal
amount of 2015CB remaining outstanding as at 31 December 2015 was
HK$26,500,000 which could be converted into 100,000,000 Shares at the
conversion price of HK$0.265 per Share. Details of the 2015CB are set out in
note 30 to the financial statements. Details of the CB Subscription (including
the conditions precedent to the issuance of the 2015CB) were set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 9 October 2015, 27 October 2015 and 11
November 2015.

The reasons for carrying out the CB Subscription were to strengthen the
financial position of the Group, and to provide further funding to the Group
for its development and investment with an objective to provide attractive
returns for the Shareholders.

As at 31 December 2015, of the net proceeds from the Subscription B
amounted to HK$65,600,000, approximately HK$12,000,000 was used
for the settlement of outstanding debts and the remaining balance of
approximately HK$53,600,000 remained unutilized.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE (cont'd)

2014 Convertible Bonds

During the year ended 31 December 2015, a total of 130,370,000 new
Shares were issued upon the conversion of the 6% coupon convertible bonds
issued by the Company on 25 November 2014 (“2014 Convertible Bonds")
in the principal amount of HK$29,985,100 with the conversion price of
HK$0.23 per share. The Company has redeemed all of the outstanding 2014
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$14,900 on 24 November
2015, its maturity date, at a redemption amount equal to 100% of such
outstanding principal amount. Upon the maturity date and as at 31 December
2015, the Company has no outstanding 2014 Convertible Bonds.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Issue of Non-convertible Bonds

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company issued 6% non-
convertible bonds (the “NCB"”) in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$91,000,000, which maturity date is on the date immediately following
twelve to twenty-four months after the date of issue of the NCB. The NCB
bear interest rate of 6% per annum, which is payable annually in arrears.
The issue of NCB was to obtain funding, which could be used to finance any
potential investment opportunity of the Group that might arise from time to
time and for the general working capital of the Company. Details of the NCB
are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Up to 31 December 2015, net proceeds from the issuance of the NCB in the
principal amount of HK$11,000,000, amounted to HK$10,670,000, have
been used as general working capital (as to approximately HK$10,436,000
for staff cost, and the remaining of approximately HK$234,000 for operating
expenses).

Besides, the NCB in the principal amount of HK$80,000,000 were issued to
Sandmartin International Holdings Limited (the “SMT Bonds”), which is an
independent third party and its shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 482). Details of the SMT Bonds were set out in
the Company's announcement dated 12 January 2015. HK$70,000,000 of
the net proceeds have been used for the subscription of the HX Bond in the
principal amount of HK$70,000,000, and remaining HK$10,000,000 have
been used for general working capital of the Group (as to approximately
HK$9,319,000 for rental expenses and building management fee, and the
remaining of approximately $681,000 for general and administrative expenses
of the Group). During the year ended 31 December 2015, the SMT Bonds in
the principal amount of HK$20,000,000 were early redeemed by Sandmartin
International Holdings Limited and further HK$30,000,000 of SMT Bonds
were redeemed up to the date of this report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the majority of the Group's
income and expenses were denominated in United States dollars, Renminbi
("RMB") and Hong Kong dollars. Up to 31 December 2015, the management
of the Company was of the opinion that the Group has insignificant exposure
to foreign exchange risk. As a result, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging against fluctuation in foreign exchange for the year
ended 31 December 2015. Nevertheless, the management of the Company
will closely monitor and from time to time reassess the exchange risk
exposures of the Group and enter into non-speculative hedging arrangements
if considered necessary.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had pledged property, plant and
equipment with the net carrying amount of approximately HK$3,625,000
(31 December 2014: HK$3,809,000) to secure the finance lease payables of
approximately HK$3,507,000 (31 December 2014: HK$3,628,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had contingent liabilities as possible
claims arising from indemnity related to a former subsidiary of approximately
RMB6,100,000, being equivalent to HK$7,282,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB6,100,000, being equivalent to HK$7,690,000). In the opinion of
management of the Company, it is not necessary for recording any provisions
for the above contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2015.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2015, the capital commitments of the Group were
approximately HK$25,471,000 (31 December 2014: HK$86,022,000). The
capital commitments were mainly related to contracted but not yet provided
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial conditions, results of operations, businesses and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. Key risks
and uncertainties affecting the Group are set out as below.

Global Economic and Macro-Economic Conditions

The impact of economic conditions on market price and customers’
confidence would affect the revenue and results of the Group. The economic
growth or decline in the Group’s geographical markets that affect customers’
demand would affect the Group’s business. The Group continues to
implement its strategies to develop and explore for different markets thereby
reducing its dependency on specific markets.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (cont'd)
Investment Risk

Balancing risk and return across investment types are key considerations
of investment framework. Risk assessment is an important aspect of the
investment decision process. Management would regularly review and
monitor the progress of the investments of the Group and submit to the
board of directors of the Company.

Customers’ credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk by the Group which will cause a
financial loss due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amounts of the recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has policies in place to
determinate credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The
Group only extends credit to customers based on careful evaluation of the
customers’ financial conditions and credit history. Credit sales of products are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of debt at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
Details of the customers’ credit risk are set out in note 43 to the financial
statements.

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with the relevant loan covenants. Details
of the liquidity risk are set out in note 43 to the financial statements.

Financial Risk

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, trade and other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables and bank borrowings. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Particulars of financial risk
management of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out in note 43 to the financial
statements. The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner

20 National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015

FERMBETHBAREE @

BRERK
FHEAAREENNRKRRERAREELNS
EEERE -ARIGENREREBRPESMH—
BoERETHEMRESAEERENER I
BRRTARATEES-

EFFERR
AEEEEARXZGEFREETEAEEMSAE
ERBTBEANRREERR REGEaBBENR
REFAINCHERSREENRAEE-

REEREEERR AEBEEEHREEEEE
RE HEFEELREMEERF ABRERE
EFBHEBNEE -ARBFENEEPHBMN
RANERLESE RREBENETEPEERE -AB
BUERLCENETR EAEETAEEER-
BN REBERBE MR B EB 2T KD A
RN AR B RIEE L RADREBE -EHEP
EERBRNF BN BHMKRM L3

RBESRAR

ERRDESRRNIE AEEERENERERE
REARHANARESLERARSEB HE UARAE
SEZERHESRABEREARERPIOTE-
EREEERITEENDRBR BRTAERRZ
H-RFERDESRARNFBHRT MR T
43 -

B 7% 3 B

AEENFZSRTARFEAIHLERE BKE
SREEMERRE - RITEGFELRAS BNES
REEMEMRERRITER BZE2RIT AR
BErRBRBREmEER (SRR FXRRRE
tEERR) EERBRERBMERR ASEH
EZZ—RAFT-A=-t+—HILEFEMSHER
B IR B K 0 ] B K R B A BRSR B B RS IR R Y
HA3 - EREEEREEZERBUERREEEY

B EE



Management Discussion and Analysis

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 8 December 2015, the Company and HX entered into a subscription
agreement for the subscription of convertible bonds (the “HXCB")
in the principal amount of HK$100,000,000 to be issued by HX. The
subscription price, which was equal to the principal amount of the
HXCB, would be partly settled by offsetting the principal amount of the
HX Bond of HK$70,000,000 to be repaid by HX to the Company under
the redemption notice and the remaining balance would be settled in
cash by the Company. The HXCB carries interest at a rate of 5% per
annum and payable on the maturity date, which is the date falling
twelve months from the date of issue of the HXCB. The HXCB entitles
the holder to convert into ordinary shares of HX at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.115 per conversion share (subject to adjustment) during
the period after the date of issue and up to and including the maturity
date. The initial conversion price of HK$0.115 represented a discount
of approximately 30.72% to the closing price of HK$0.166 per ordinary
share of HX as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 8 December 2015.
Assuming the conversion rights attaching to the HXCB are exercised in
full at the initial conversion price, a total of 869,565,217 shares of HX
will be allotted and issued. The subscription of HXCB was completed on
5 February 2016. Details of the subscription of HXCB were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 8 December 2015.

On 15 January 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (as
purchaser) entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement to
purchase the entire issued share capital of Gear World Development
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, at a consideration of not more than HK$800,000,000 (the Major
Acquisition 2"). Upon the completion of the reorganisation, Gear World
Development Limited will indirectly own the entire equity interest indt &
XE@EEAEHAEABR QA (Beijing Tian Ma Tong Chi Car Rental Co.,
Ltd.*) and Beijing Tian Ma Tong Chi Car Rental Co., Ltd. will own 49%
of the equity interest of 1tX K i bt ji % & B BR 2 7] (Beijing Tian Ma
Tong Chi Travel Transportation Co., Ltd.*), which is principally engaged in
the provision of car rental services and tour bus services including shuttle
bus services for business and leisure purposes as well as related value-
added services. The consideration of HK$800,000,000 shall be settled
by way of cash consideration and the issuance of convertible bonds.
The Major Acquisition 2 constitutes a major transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, it is therefore subject to approval
by the Shareholders. Details of the Major Acquisition 2 are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 18 December 2015, 15 January
2016 and 30 March 2016. Up to the date of this report, the circular for
this transaction is yet to be dispatched as additional time is required for
the preparation and finalisation of certain information to be included in
the circular.

Besides the NCB with an aggregate nominal value of HK$11,000,000
were subscribed during the year ended 31 December 2015, further
HK$45,500,000 in aggregate were subscribed after the end of the
reporting period and up to the date of this report.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (cont'd)

(d) The Company exercised the conversion rights of the HXCB in the
principal amount of HK$19,999,880, at the conversion price of $0.115
per share and 173,912,000 shares of HX were issued to the Company
after the end of the reporting period and up to the date of this report.

(e) On 1 March 2016, the Company and a subscriber named Upper Target
Limited entered into a subscription agreement, pursuant to which
the Company has conditionally agreed to issue, and the subscriber
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for the convertible bonds in
the principal amount of HK$75,000,000 which are convertible into a
maximum number of 493,421,052 new shares under general mandate
based on the initial conversion price of HK$0.152 per share. Details of
the subscription were set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 1 March 2016 and 22 March 2016. The subscription has not been
completed up to the date of this report, as some of the conditions for
completing the subscription have not yet been fulfilled.

OUTLOOK

The Group has been impacted by the adverse global resources market
conditions, nevertheless the Group will continue to focus on its existing
business and maintain its direction to build up a concrete foundation in the
market and acquire valuable assets with competitive prices while in the down
side of the market.

Besides, new energy products, like electric vehicle, already commence
replacing traditional energy products in a rapid speed. The Group would focus
in this development and look for valuable business opportunities.

The Group will actively explore for business opportunities in other sectors
to diversify its business that provide better returns for the Shareholders and
broaden the sources of income of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INFORMATION IN RELATION TO THE MEDIA AND
ADVERTISING SEGMENT OPERATED THROUGH
CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

The Company would like to provide the following information in relation to
its media and advertising segment, which is operated through contractual
arrangements.

The Group operate one of its business unit - It RERFEEEER QA
(Beijing Mega TV Media Advertisement Company Limited*, “Beijing Mega
TV Media”), which is under the media and advertising segment, through
the Loan Agreement, the Share Charge, the Irrevocable Share Transfer
Agreement, the Shareholders Undertaking, the Director Undertaking, the
Management Agreement and the Assignment (the “Control Agreement”).

Beijing Mega TV Media’s main businesses are provision of chain broadcasting
advertising networks and media related services. Currently, Beijing Mega
TV Media has operation in Beijing. Beijing Mega TV Media has a registered
capital of RMB5,000,000 and it is owned as to 43% by%| £ (Liu
Zhongnan*, “Mr. Liu"), 41% byF 3 (Wang Lu*, "Ms. Wang"), 10% byZ i
# (Liang Shuxian*, “Ms. Liang”) and 6% by (Sun Yu*, “Mr. Sun”). Its
director is Ms. Yu.
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SRR e

SUMMARY OF MAJOR TERMS OF THE CONTROL EHlHE 2 EEHRARB M

AGREEMENT
(a) Loan Agreement (a) EXiE
(i) Lender GMG Media i En: GMG Media
(i) Borrowers: Mr. Liu, Ms. Wang, Ms. Liang and Mr. Sun (i) f&7: Ars Tt Rt RBERE
(collectively the “Borrowers”) (REIER])

(i) Loan Amount: RMB3,000,000 (i) EFjem: AR #3,000,0007T
(iv)  Interest: Interest free (iv) FIE: E)
(v)  Term The term of the Loan shall end on the date v %5 FERZFHERGMG Medlaﬁ

BAAREROERBE RS
EMRELR Eﬁfﬁﬁﬁéﬁm

of the exercise of the exclusive right by
GMG Media under the Irrevocable Share
Transfer Agreement to acquire the equity mf% ZEFLBERLBRET AR
interest in Beijing Mega TV Media. The hEEREAERHERE.
amount of the Loan shall be used to set

off against the consideration under the

Irrevocable Share Transfer Agreement.

(vi)  Security The obligations of the Borrowers under the (vi) ¥ EHRERBEET ZEE AR
Loan Agreement are secured by the Share DRTER-
Charge.
(b) Share Charge (b) BB HRE
() Chargors: The Borrowers (i) HEA: vl
(i) Chargee: GMG Media (i) EHEA: GMG Media
(i)~ Confirmor: Beijing Mega TV Media (i) HRA: TREREHE

The Borrowers created a first priority vy F—EBERR: GFERESEERNLREREH
charge over their respective equity interests JERRIE-BRAT MEAR

(iv)  First priority charge:

in Beijing Mega TV Media to (i) secure
the obligations of the Borrowers under
the Loan Agreement and (i) secure and

(EREDTETERBEATARE
A AR (BRI REFER
BITERHAE FEE R RIE

guarantee the obligations of Beijing e
Mega TV Media under the Management
Agreement.

(v)  Restrictive Covenants During the term of the Share Charge, (v HEARIER REROFLHRA FFEEFGMG
by the Chargors unless with the prior written consent of EFEHE  MedaZFEERAE HBEAR
and Beijing Mega GMG Media, the Chargors and Beijing ki LIRERERETNE:

TV Media Mega TV Media shall not: R

i. sell, transfer, charge, pledge, lease HE B2 BERER N
out or dispose of any assets of Beijing MRt ELRERERE2A
Mega TV Media; HEE:

ii. create any indebtedness or guarantee; i HIMNETTERGELER

ii. enter into any material contract involving i. FUSREBEHBARY
a sum exceeding RMB50,000 (material 50,000t 2 fEEKRE
contracts include any leasing agreement, (EXAHBREENEES
purchase agreement of machinery and KoEERMANREILR
any agreement or document which has ERERERENEZEM
an impact on the development of Beijing AR ) -
Mega TV Media).
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR TERMS OF THE CONTROL
AGREEMENT (cont’'d)
(c) Management Agreement

()

(i)

(iii)

Services provided by
GMG Media

Service fees

Term

GMG Media shall provide to Beijing
Mega TV Media management consultancy
services, including (i) identifying suitable
candidates and experts with experience
and providing training to the staff of
Beijing Mega TV Media; (ii) providing
strategic advices to Beijing Mega TV
Media; (iii) formulating and assisting in
the implementation of rules and internal
control policy, marketing, human resources
and operation strategies; (iv) assisting
Beijing Mega TV Media to plan and
organise public relations and marketing
activities; (v) assisting Beijing Mega
TV Media to review its operations; (vi)
assisting Beijing Mega TV Media in its
business operations; (vii) providing market
information on advertising media, market
research information and analysis; and (viii)
providing business advices on the operation
and investment project, and assisting and
participating in management operations.

100% of the actual net profit Beijing Mega
TV Media

The initial term of the Management
Agreement is a fixed term of ten years from
18 December 2009, being the date of the
execution of the Management Agreement,
to 27 December 2019. GMG Media has the
sole discretion to renew the Management
Agreement and each renewal is for a
further ten years. Pursuant to the business
licence of Beijing Mega TV Media, the
operation period of Beijing Mega TV Media
will end on 10 April 2028.
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR TERMS OF THE CONTROL

AGREEMENT (cont’d)

(d) Irrevocable Share Transfer Agreement

(i) Irrevocable and

exclusive right of

GMG Media to
acquire Beijing
Mega TV Media

(i) Consideration

(iii) ~ Term

(e) Director’s Undertakings
(i) Undertakings by Ms.
Yu as director of
Beijing Mega TV

Media and the
Borrowers

26
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The Borrowers granted an irrevocable and
exclusive right to GMG Media to acquire
the entire equity interests in Beijing Mega
TV Media.

RMB3,000,000. The amount of the
Loan shall be used to set off against the
consideration.

There is no fixed term to the exercise of
rights by GMG Media to acquire entire
equity interests in Beijing Mega TV Media.
Such rights shall remain valid until (i) it is
not permitted under the law or (i) GMG
Media exercises the right to acquire the
entire equity interests in Beijing Mega TV
Media.

Ms. Yu, the executive director of Beijing
Mega TV Media (effective from 23 August
2012), has undertaken to act according to
the instructions of GMG Media upon the
exercise of the powers of the executive
director of Beijing Mega TV Media,
including but not limited to, the convening
of shareholders’ meeting, implementing
shareholders’ resolutions, approving
business plans and investment plans,
formulating of annual budget, distribution
of profits and making up of losses.

Ms. Yu (as the director) and the Borrowers
(as the confirmors) have further undertaken
that upon the change of director(s) of
Beijing Mega TV Media, they will procure
the replacement director(s) to give a similar
undertaking as aforesaid until the transfer
of the entire equity interests in Beijing
Mega TV Media to GMG Media and the
fulfilment of all obligations under the Loan
Agreement, the Management Agreement,
the Share Charge and the Irrevocable Share
Transfer Agreement.

Mr. Liu resigned as a director of Beijing
Mega TV Media effective on 23 August
2012.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SUMMARY OF MAJOR TERMS OF THE CONTROL
AGREEMENT (cont’'d)
(f) Shareholders Undertakings

(i) Undertakings by The Borrowers as shareholders of Beijing
the Borrowers as Mega TV Media have undertaken that they
shareholders of will vote on any resolutions proposed at the
Beijing Mega shareholders’ meetings of Beijing Mega TV
TV Media Media in accordance with the instructions

of GMG Media until the transfer of the
entire equity interests in Beijing Mega TV
Media to GMG Media and the fulfilment of
all obligations under the Loan Agreement,
the Management Agreement, the Share
Charge and the Irrevocable Share Transfer
Agreement.

(g) Assignment in relation to the Management Agreement

Assignment by GMG By the Assignment, GMG Media assigned
Media to Beijing all of its rights and obligations under the
Choa Shun Management Agreement as referred to in

the Share Charge to Beijing Choa Shun,
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Increase in registered The parties confirmed and acknowledged
capital of Beijing that the registered capital of Beijing
Mega TV Media Mega TV Media has been increased to

RMB5,000,000.

SIGNIFICANCE OF THE BUSINESSES OF BEJING MEGA
TV MEDIA TO THE GROUP

Through the Control Agreements, the Group may engage in indoor
advertising business in the PRC through operating chain broadcasting
networks of large screen television channels at the atriums of major shopping
malls and department stores in the PRC. However, as the Group successfully
anchored into trading of coking coal since the second half of 2013, the
contributions of the business of Beijing Mega TV Media to the Group are
getting less significant.
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SIGNIFICANCE OF THE BUSINESSES OF BEIJING MEGA
TV MEDIA TO THE GROUP (cont’d)

Further, the business of Beijing Mega TV Media has not achieved any
significant growth since 2012 as the planned collaboration with major
shopping malls and departments stores in the PRC has not been carried out
as expected. Due to increasing competition in the media and advertising
business, Beijing Mega TV Media did not manage to secure more contracts
with major shopping malls and department stores in China.

As a result, since 2012, Beijing Mega TV Media has become relatively
insignificant and immaterial to the business of the Group as a whole and
the goodwill associated with the acquisition of GMG Media was significantly
impaired during years 2012 and 2013.

FINANCIAL IMPACT ON THE GROUP

During the two years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015, the
contributions of Beijing Mega TV Media to the Group's revenue and assets are
as follows:

Revenue L&
Net Profit 4B
Assets BE

Although the Group is entitled to 100% of the actual net profit of Beijing
Mega TV Media according to the Management Agreement, Beijing Mega TV
Media did not record any net profit for the year ended 31 December 2014
and 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REASONS FOR USING THE CONTROL AGREEMENTS
According to the PRC law, the Group can acquire 100% interests in Beijing
Mega TV Media.

However, the Directors are of the view that it is for the benefits of the Group
to continue the Control Agreements for the following reasons:

1. according to the Management Agreement, the Group can take up 100%
of the net profit of Beijing Mega TV Media and the Group will not take
up any loss or liabilities of Beijing Mega TV Media;

2. the Group can exercise effective control over Beijing Mega TV Media
through the Control Agreements;

3. the management of Beijing Mega TV Media is responsible for the day to
day management of the company and they are responsible to report to
the Group.

4. the business of Beijing Mega TV Media is not significant to the business
of the Group as a whole.

EFFECTIVENESS OF THE CONTROL AGREEMENTS AND
POTENTIAL RISKS

The Group can exercise effective control over Beijing Mega TV Media
according to the Control Agreements and the Group has not encountered any
difficulty in exercising its rights.

There may be risk that the Borrowers or Beijing Mega TV Media fails to
observe and perform their/its obligations under the Control Agreement.
In such circumstances, the Group may exercise its rights to acquire 100%
interests in Beijing Mega TV Media.

MATERIAL CHANGE IN THE CONTROL AGREEMENTS
AND ITS IMPACT

Since the Control Agreements were executed in October and December 2009,
there is no change to the terms of the Control Agreements. On 30 June 2010,
GMG Media assigned all of its rights and obligations under the Management
Agreement to b R EIE(E B & A R 2 & (Beijing Chao Shun Information
Consulting Company Limited*), a company established in the PRC which is
wholly and beneficially owned by the Company.
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UNWINDING OF THE CONTROL AGREEMENTS

No Control Agreement has been unwound as at the date of this report. The
Directors will closely monitor the performance of Beijing Mega TV Media. If
the Directors are of the view that it is in the interests of the Group to acquire
Beijing Mega TV Media, the Group will exercise its rights to acquire the entire
interests in Beijing Mega TV Media. The consideration will be set off against
the amount of the Loan.

If there is any updated material information relating to any of the above

matters, the Company will make further announcement in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

*  For identification purposes only
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LO Ka Wai ("Mr. Lo"), aged 47, was appointed as an executive
Director in October 2013. He is also a member of each of the nomination
committee (“Nomination Committee”) and the remuneration committee
("Remuneration Committee”) of the Company. Mr. Lo is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lo graduated from the University
of Wollongong, Australia with a bachelor degree in commerce. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA
Australia. Mr. Lo has over 20 years of experience in financial management
and corporate finance gained from working as a chief financial officer and/
or a company secretary for various listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Lo is
also an executive director of Han Tang International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1187), an independent non-executive director of each of Yusei Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 96) and Sheng Yuan Holdings Limited (stock code:
851), shares of these companies are all listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. FENG Yong Ming (“"Mr. Feng”), aged 50, was appointed as an
executive Director in September 2014. He joined the Company in 2014
and is a legal representative of a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
and also held directorship in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Feng
held various senior positions in investment and securities firms in China. He
has extensive experience in business development, financial management
and investment. Mr. Feng holds a bachelor of arts in Economics from the
University of International Business and Economics in Beijing, China and
master of administration degree from the School of Business, Carleton
University in Canada. Mr. Feng was an executive director of Heng Xin China
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8046), shares of which are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, from March 2009 to December
2012. He is also an executive director of Grand Concord International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 844), shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. LI Hui ("Mr. Li"), aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director on
17 July 2015. He joined the Company in 2013 and held directorship in certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li completed his undergraduate studies
in Economics and Management at Beijing Municipal Committee of the CPC
Party School and undergraduate studies in Business Administration at Beijing
Institute of Business respectively. He also completed the Senior Research and
Study Course for Business Administration Executives ( {b % & I 42 & = AL FHE
3F) of Tsinghua University. Mr. Li had held senior positions in several private
trading and logistics companies in China. He has extensive logistics and
trading experience in the coal business.

Mr. TIAN Songlin (“Mr. Tian"), aged 46, was appointed as an executive
Director on 17 July 2015. He joined the Company as vice president in 2014
and also held directorship in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Tian
studied in Japan and obtained master degree in Economics and doctorate
of Economics there. He had worked in a real estate company in Japan for
almost four years and owned years of experience in business administration at
local enterprises. Mr. Tian currently acts as chairman and legal representative
of Beijing Jingiao Hengtai Technology Co., Ltd. (I R&EBEFRZER A
A]) . He is a member of China Democratic National Construction Association
and committee member of the 13th Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Dongcheng District, Beijing.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. MOU Ling ("Ms. Mou"), aged 46, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in December 2013. Ms. Mou graduated from Shandong University
of Finance in professional accounting. She obtained her master degree in
Executive Master of Business Administration from China University of Mining
& Technology, Beijing in 2015. Ms. Mou worked for large-scale national bank
and has 20 years of experience in management and extensive knowledge
within the banking and accounting industries. She is currently a vice general
manager in Beijing Forallsoft Technology Development Company Limited.

Mr. YANG Liu ("Mr. Yang"),
executive Director on 17 July 2015. He graduated from Shaanxi University
of Technology (formerly known as Shaanxi Institute of Technology) with a
bachelor degree in engineering, specializing in auto-control. Mr. Yang has
more than 10 years’ experience in corporate and capital management in semi-
conductor industry, and international trading of electronic products and bulk

aged 42, was appointed as a non-

commodity. Mr. Yang is currently the general manager, the executive director
and the legal representative of a company in the People’s Republic of China
with its principal activities in semi-conductor, and international trading of
electronic products and bulk commodity. Mr. Yang is also the chairman, the
chief executive officer and an executive director of Han Tang International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1187), shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. WANG Qun ("Mr. Wang"),
independent non-executive Director in September 2013. He is also the

aged 50, was appointed as an

chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the audit committee (“Audit Committee”) of
the Company. Mr. Wang studied in the Second Campus of Renmin University
of China, which was renamed as College of Humanities and Law of Beijing
Union University, from 1984 to 1988, and obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in
Law in 1988. In 1989, he qualified as a solicitor and began practicing as a
lawyer in the Bureau of Justice of Xuanwu District in Beijing where he had
held a post before qualifying as a lawyer in the same year. In 1992, he set
up Beijing Lutong Law Firm acting as a partner and subsequently worked in
Beijing Yuanwang Law Firm as a partner in 1996. Since October 2007, he has
begun to work in Beijing Allied Law Firm as a partner. In the past 26 years of
his practicing career, Mr. Wang has provided legal services for a number of
large state-owned enterprises, banks, non-bank financial institutions as well
as domestic and overseas listed companies.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (cont’d)

Dr. YANG Zhi Shu ("Dr. Yang"), aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in December 2013. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee. Dr. Yang graduated from Harbin Institute of
Technology with a bachelor degree in Management Engineering. He obtained
his master degree and Ph.D. in Quantitative Economics from Tsinghua
University in 1995 and 2001 respectively. Dr. Yang is currently a professor
in School of Economics and Management in Tsinghua University. He has
participated in lots of academic publications, working papers and research
projects. In 2014, Dr. Yang has been elected as a Cheung Kong Scholar of the
Ministry of Education of the People’s Republic of China.

Mr. LAl Ho Man, Dickson (“Mr. Lai"), aged 42, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in March 2015. He is also the chairman
of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Lai has over 19 years of
experience in financial management and auditing. Mr. Lai is also as an
independent non-executive director of Han Tang International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1187), shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lai served as the chief financial officer and company
secretary of Bi Feng Tang (Group) Holdings Corporation since August 2015.
He served as the chief financial officer and company secretary of Hosa
International Limited (stock code: 2200), shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from February 2011 to August 2015 and
was primarily responsible for its overall financial affairs. During the period
from December 2003 to March 2011, Mr. Lai worked for several listed and
private companies including AsiaAlum Group, Brigantine Services Limited (the
subgroup of Maersk Group), CITIC Pacific Ltd etc. During the period from
September 1996 to October 2003, Mr. Lai worked as an assistant manager
in KPMG, where he was mainly responsible for the external auditing, initial
public offering and due diligence projects of financial institution sector.
Mr. Lai graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a degree of
Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy in November 1996. Mr. Lai also received a
master’s degree in business administration from the University of Birmingham
in 2008. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also a member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Dr. Zhang Tianmin ("Dr. Zhang"), aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in April 2016. Dr. Zhang obtained a
doctoral degree in law (civil law and business law) from Graduate School of
China University of Political Science and Law. He has extensive experience
in legal matters in respect of civil law and business law, trust and related
asset management and policy of financial service industry. He worked in
Central enterprises, graduate schools of universities and industry associations
in China. Currently, he is a partner of Beijing Junzejun Law Offices, and
independent director of Guangdong Finance Trust Co. Ltd and AVIC Securities
Co., Ltd.
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Directors’ Report

EXEHRE

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.
Further discussion and analysis of these activities, including a discussion
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication
of likely future developments in the Group’'s business, can be found in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
These discussions form part of this Directors’ report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance

indicators is provided in the sub-section headed “Financial Review"” under

the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” and Five-Year

Financial Summary.

Key Relationships

a) Employees
Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group and the
Group ensures all staff are reasonable remunerated and also continues
to improve and regularly review and update its policies on remuneration
and benefits, training, occupational health and safety.

b) Customers
The Group cherishes the mutually beneficial relationships with its
customers. The Group will provide the best services to its clients to
establish and consolidate the Group’s reputation in the industry.

c¢) Suppliers
The Group is also dedicated to develop good relationship with its
suppliers as long-term business partners to ensure stability of the Group’s
business. The Group reinforces business partnerships with its suppliers
by ongoing communication in a proactive and effective manner so as to
ensure quality and timely delivery.

Environmental Policies

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly corporation
that pays close attention to conserving natural resources. By speeding up the
transformation of development mode, adhering to safe, green and efficient
resources for greater quality, the Group aims to achieve green, circular and
low-carbon development.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
(CONT'D)

Environmental Policies (cont’d)

For media and advertising business and online platform trading business.
Though these business do not bring about serious adverse effects on the
environment, the management acknowledges that being a responsible
enterprise, the Group still has to take into account the impact of its business
operation on the environment while enjoying financial growth.

The Group strives to minimize the environmental impact by saving electricity
and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. In addition,
the Group actively advocated a paperless office and encouraged the
employees to develop good habits, conserve resources and energy to build a
green and comfortable office environment.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Company has been listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange and
therefore the Company is subject to the governance of the Listing Rules
including the disclosure requirements and corporate governance provisions
therein. Under the SFO, the Company is required to maintain a register of
interests in shares and short positions and a register of directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions and is obliged to disclose price
sensitive or inside information.

As the Company is incorporated in Hong Kong, it is subject to various
laws and regulations including Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Business
Registration Ordinance (Cap. 310), Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112) and
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57).

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in the mainland China. Our establishment and operations accordingly shall
comply with all PRC laws and applicable laws in the jurisdictions where
we have operations. During the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to
the date of this report, we have complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in the mainland China and Hong Kong.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470
of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) when
the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the Directors is approved
in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
substantial part of the business of the company were entered into or existed
during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The name of all Directors who have served on the subsidiaries of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2015 are available on the
website of the Company.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 63.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2015.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on page 144.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group and of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 15 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year ended
31 December 2015, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in notes
34 to the financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS, NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS,
DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL ASSETS
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Details of the convertible bonds, non-convertible bonds, derivative
instruments and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss issued
by the Company are set out in notes 30, 31, 28 and 34 to the financial
statements respectively

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association (“Articles”) or the laws of Hong Kong.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or its
subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities during the ended 31
December 2015.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 35 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE
As at 31 December 2015, the Company did not have any distributable
reserve.

MAIJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for
approximately 88.83% of the total sales and sales to the largest customer
included therein accounted for approximately 79.76%. Purchases from
the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 96.66% of
the total purchase and purchase from the largest supplier included therein
accounted to approximately 86.76%.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued shares) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five
largest customers and five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Ka Wai

Mr. Feng Yongming

Mr. Li Hui (appointed on 17 July 2015)
Mr. Tian Songlin (appointed on 17 July 2015)
Mr. Yang Fan (resigned on 19 May 2015)

Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard (resigned on 17 July 2015)

Mr. Aminbuhe (resigned on 23 February 2015)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Mou Ling

Mr. Yang Liu (appointed on 17 July 2015)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Qun

Dr. Yang Zhi Shu

Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson
Mr. Chow Hiu Tung

(appointed on 16 March 2015)
(resigned on 16 March 2015)

As at the date of this report, in accordance with Article 71 of the Articles, Mr.
Li Hui, Mr. Tian Songlin and Mr. Yang Liu were appointed as new Directors by
the Board after the last annual general meeting of the Company held on 1
June 2015 (2015 AGM"), shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company ("2016 AGM").
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DIRECTORS (cont'd)
All the above retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the 2016 AGM.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2016 AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
None of the Directors nor their respective associates was interested in any
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group during the year and up to the date of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 31 to 33 to this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

During the year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the company has paid a
consultancy fee of HK$197,000 to H.G. Energy Investment Holdings Limited
("H.G."). Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard (resigned on 17 July 2015) is interested
in the transaction to the extent that he is also a beneficial shareholder of H.G.

Apart from the above, no transaction, arrangements or contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

At 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"))
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
("Model Code”), were as follows:
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS BEENFTETHRAERAATSHEM
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING B 5% zﬂﬁﬁ HERORES ZE
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY ORITS HRE XA

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (cont’d)

Long positions in the ordinary shares (the “Shares”) of the Company are set RAARRQG E@AX ([I&MH]) 2T EZHH 0T -

out as below:

Approximately

Number of percentage of

Capacity/Nature Interested total number of

Name of Directors of interest Shares held Shares in issue

HEBTRG

EEnE S g 131 FsEEROEE BEgHHEIL

Lo Ka Wai Beneficial owner 30,079,155 (Note) 0.51%
E(E BEantEs (PR5E)

Feng Yongming Beneficial owner 30,079,155 (Note) 0.51%
R 7K B Bt (PR5E)

Li Hui Beneficial owner 1,801,000 0.03%

FiE Bt 30,079,155 (Note) 0.51%
(PR5E)

Tian Songlin Beneficial owner 470,000 0.01%

B AR a4 30,079,155 (Note) 0.51%
(PR5E)

Wang Qun Beneficial owner 2,506,596 (Note) 0.04%
R BEantEs (BR5E)

Yang Zhi Shu Beneficial owner 2,506,596 (Note) 0.04%
152 B Bt (BR5E)

Note: These underlying Shares are derived from the interest in share options granted by
the Company under the share option scheme adopted on 14 December 2012 (the
“2012 Share Option Scheme”), details of which are set out in the section headed
"SHARE OPTION SCHEMES” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interest or short position in
the Shares,
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as

underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES"” below, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2015 were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in or debenture of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.
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Directors’ Report

EXEHRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

2002 Share Option Scheme

On 25 July 2002, a share option scheme was adopted by the Company
(the "2002 Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to which the Board may grant
options to any employees, directors, shareholders, suppliers, customers of
the Group and any other person or company who has contributed or may
contribute to the development and growth of the Group.

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was expired in July 2012 after the scheme
period of the tenth anniversary of the adoption date and no further share
options can be granted under the 2002 Share Options Scheme.

Details of the 2002 Share Option Scheme are set out in note 36 to the
financial statements.

Details of the movement in the share options granted under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme during the year are as follows:

Number of share options

BARESTE

—EE_FERETE
N-EE-F+A-+RA FRERESE ([
TEFERERETE ) Bl EEeRRAEE
FEES EE R HER B RERLEL
TN AEE Y BHRERERELTEMZEMAL
B B H B R -

—EE_FREREIAERMBBTREF 2
HERR - ZE-——FtAEREBIAIRE-F
T F B A RERT B H B -

“REFRREASIFERN M B MERM L6 -

1815 =TT - FR R IR MR A
ErEBHENT:

BREHE
Outstanding  Adjustment Outstanding Exercise
as at due to Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as at price
Name of category/ 1January  open offer during during during 31 December per Share
participant Date of grant 2015 (Note 2) the year the year the year 2015  Exercise period (Note 2)
N m:§_£$
—2-1f RARBE +=A
-B-H AR =+-H BRITRE
B/8REER/ 8 RUBH B (WiE2)  REARTE  REAEE  RERAX MATHE  TRHE (HiE2)
HKS
BT
Director
Ez
Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard 29 November 2007 1,680,635 425,424 - - (2,106,059) - - -
(Note 1)
Bupks (W) “EREET-AZTAR
Employees
]
In aggregate 29 November 2007 1,180,000 298,697 - - - 1,478,697 29 November 2007 - 2.5536
28 November 2017
Ch ZEREEL-ACTNH ZEREET-ACTNHEE
ZE—+E+-AZtH
Business associates
ERHEA
In aggregate 29 November 2007 6,571,905 1,663,565 - - - 8,235,470 29 November 2007 - 2.5536
28 November 2017
Ch “EREEL-ACTNE “ERLET-A-TNEE
=+ E+—-AZ+\H
In aggregate 27 June 2008 6,194,000 1,567,905 . B - 7,761,905 27 June 2008 - 2.5536
26 June 2018
At ZEENERAZTER ZRENFAAZTLAE
ZF-NERAZHRA
Total 15,626,540 3,955,591 - - (2,106,059) 17,476,072
@it

Note 1: Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard resigned as executive Director on 17 July 2015 and
all share options held by him lapsed on the date of his resignation.

Note 2: Number of Shares that can be subscribed for upon exercise of the outstanding
share options stated in table above and exercise price are restated taking into
adjustments as a result of an open offer made by the Company during the year.
Please refer to the Company's announcements dated 14 July 2015 and 8 April
2016 for details of the adjustments.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont'd)

2012 Share option scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 14 December 2012, a new share option scheme
of the Company (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company. The 2012 Share Option Scheme, subject to earlier termination by
the Company in general meeting, will remain in force for a period of ten years
from its effective date and will expire on 13 December 2022.

The purpose of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or
reward to eligible participants for their contribution, and continuing efforts
to promote the interests of the Company. The Board considers that the
2012 Share Option Scheme is in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole as it provides the Company with more flexibility
in providing incentives to those eligible participants by way of granting of
options. Pursuant to the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the Board may grant
options to any eligible participants who has contributed or may contribute to
the development and growth of the Group or any entity in which the Group
holds an equity interest. The options may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme at any time during the period to be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion and notified by the Board
to each grantee as being the period during which options may be exercised
and in any event, such period shall not be longer than 10 years from the date
upon which any particular option is granted in accordance with the 2012
Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in
issue as at its adoption date or the date of approval by the Shareholders in
general meeting where the limit is refreshed. At the 2015 AGM, an ordinary
resolution approving the refreshment of the scheme limit and authorizing the
Directors to grant share options under the 2012 Share Option Scheme up to
the refreshed limit (i.e. 372,096,700 Shares, representing 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of 2015 AGM) was passed. As such,
the total number of Shares available for issue under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme was 563,650,790 Shares (including 191,554,090 Shares to be issued
upon exercise of the outstanding share options granted under the 2012 share
option scheme), representing approximately 9.6% of the Shares in issue as at
the date of the Annual Report on 30 March 2016.

Details of the 2012 Share Option Scheme are set out in note 36 to the
financial statements.

Details of the movement in the share options granted under the 2012 Share
Option Scheme during the year are as follows:
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont'd)
2012 Share option scheme (cont’'d)

B ER S (m
—E-—FERETE (H)

Number of share options

BREHA
Outstanding  Adjustment Outstanding Exercise
as at due to Granted Lapsed Exercised as at price per
Name of category/ 1January  open offer during during during 31 December Share
participant Date of grant 2015 (Note 2) the year the year the year 2015  Exercise period (Note 2)
K=B-1%
RZ%-% RRH t=A
F-A-8 REELHEE _ =t-8 SRiTEE
BH/2REEB/ 1A REBH WARTE (2)  RERRE  RERKXN  RERTE HRTE RS (MisE2)
HK$
AL
Directors
Ez
Mr. Lo Ka Wai 3 September 2014 24,000,000 6,079,155 - - - 30,079,155 3 September 2014 - 0.2274
2 September 2019
BERAE ZZ-MEAAZA T-NENAZRE
“E-AFNAZA
Mr. Feng Yongming 3 September 2014 24,000,000 6,079,155 - - - 30,079,155 3 September 2014 - 0.2274
2 September 2019
BABEE ZE-MEAAZR “Z-MENA=RE
“E-AFNAZA
Mr. Wang Qun 3 September 2014 2,000,000 506,596 - - - 2,506,596 3 September 2014 - 0.2274
2 September 2019
THEE ZZ-MEAAZR “Z-MENA=RE
“E-AFNAZA
Dr. Yang Zhi Shu 3 September 2014 2,000,000 506,596 - - - 2,506,596 3 September 2014 - 0.2274
) 2 September 2019
HeEEL ZZ-MEAAZA “T-NENAZRE
“E-AFNAZA
Mr. Li Hui 3 September 2014 24,000,000 6,079,155 - - - 30,079,155 3 September 2014 - 0.2274
(Note 3) 2 September 2019
(T3)
FEEE “Z-mEAAZH “Z-MENAA=RE
“Z-AFNAZA
Mr. Tian Songlin 3 September 2014 24,000,000 6,079,155 - - - 30,079,155 3 September 2014 - 0.2274
(Note 3) 2 September 2019
(WH5E3)
RMEE “Z-mFAAZA “Z-RMENA=RZ
“Z-NEAAZH
Mr. Aminbuhe (Note 4) 3 September 2014 24,000,000 - - (24,000,000 - - - -
et A% A (i) “2-mFAAZA
Mr. Chow Hiu Tung (Note 4) 3 September 2014 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) - - - -
BRRALE () ~5-mFAAZA
126,000,000 25,329,812 - (26,000,000) - 125329812
Employees
Es
In aggregate 3 September 2014 57,200,000 9,331,506 - - (20,360,000) 46,171,506 3 September 2014 - 0.2274
(Notes 3&5) (Note 6) 2 September 2019
G —Z-mEARZR (M3 R5) (Firzte) —Z-MENA=ZRE
“E-AFNAZA
Business Associates
EBBEA
In aggregate 3 September 2014 21,700,000 4,052,772 - (3,200,000) (2,500,000) 20,052,772 3 September 2014 - 0.2274
(Note 5) (Note 7) 2 September 2019
A —Z-mEAAZA (Fit3E5) (Hi5E7) “Z-MENA=AE
“E-NFNAZH
Total 204,900,000 38,714,090 - (29,200,000)  (22,860,000) 191,554,090
3t
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont'd)
2012 Share option scheme (cont'd)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

There were no share options cancelled during the year.

Number of Shares that can be subscribed for upon exercise of the outstanding
share options stated in table above (except Mr. Aminbuhe and Mr. Chow
Hiu Tung) and exercise price are restated taking into adjustments as a result
of an open offer made by the Company during the year. Please refer to the
Company'’s announcements dated 14 July 2015 and 8 April 2016 for details of
the adjustments.

Each of Mr. Li Hui and Mr. Tian Songlin was appointed as executive Director
on 17 July 2015 and 24,000,000 share options granted to each of them were
classified and added to the opening balance in the category “Directors” and
accordingly, deleted from the opening balance in the category “Employees”.

Mr. Aminbuhe and Mr. Chow Hiu Tung resigned as executive Director and
independent non-executive Director on 23 February 2015 and 16 March
2015 respectively. All share options held by them lapsed on the date of their
respective resignations.

Several business associates were appointed as employees of the Group during
the year and 5,500,000 share options, in aggregate, granted to them were
classified and added to the opening balance in the category “Employees”
and accordingly, deleted from the opening balance in the category “Business
Associates”.

The weighted average closing price of the Shares traded on the Stock Exchange
immediately before the date on which the options were exercised was HK$0.65.

The weighted average closing price of the Shares traded on the Stock Exchange
immediately before the date on which the options were exercised was HK$0.60.
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Directors’ Report

EXEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

FTERRRAEMATRARSG REEKR
2=

SHARES

At 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of every person,

other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, in the Shares and

underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

RZZB-RFE+ZA=+—8 R&HEREBKRN
BEAEDIOREMALAREES RHEEHE
BOHRARARAFEZECMZEAL (XIFEE
FARBEETHRABR)FIHMT

Number of Approximately
Shares/ percentage of
Capacity and Long position/ underlying total number of
Name Nature of interest short position Shares Shares in issue
HEBRTROBEZ
wE/ L8 SoRERNE BR/RE R/ HERGEHE BAE
Wealth Leading International Beneficial Owner Long position 1,980,000,000 33.71%
Holdings Limited (Note 1)
E=EAA A GEAD)
Chao Zuquan Interest of a controlled Long position 1,980,000,000 33.71%
corporation (Note 2)
REREEER ) (PfE2)
Yang Fan Beneficial Owner Long position 810,759,648 13.80%
BR EmEAA e
Elite Fortune Global Limited Beneficial Owner Long position 328,393,845 5.59%
FERRBBR LA E=EAA HE
Wang Yi Interest of a controlled Long position 328,393,845 5.59%
corporation (Note 3)
IR REfhEEER ) (P &E3)
Choi Chung Lam Beneficial Owner Long position 323,600,000 5.51%
BB ERBEBA e
Notes: Mzt -

Based on the notice of disclosure of interest of Wealth Leading International
Holdings Limited (“Wealth Leading”) and Mr. Chao Zuquan each filed with the
Stock Exchange on 12 November 2015, these underlying Shares held by Wealth
Leading, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Chao Zuquan. Under Part XV of the SFO,
Mr. Chao Zuquan is interested in these 1,980,000,000 underlying Shares in which
Wealth Leading is interested. As at 31 December 2015, the sales and purchase
agreement entered into, inter alia, between the Company and Wealth Leading
dated 9 November 2015 has not yet completed. Please refer to the Company's
announcements dated 9 November, 31 December 2015 and 30 March 2016 for
details of the acquisition.

Such underlying Shares were held by Wealth Leading, a company wholly owned
by Mr. Chao Zuquan. By virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Chao
Zuquan is deemed to be interested in all the underlying Shares in which Wealth
Leading is interested.

Such Shares were held by Elite Fortune Global Limited (“Elite Fortune”), a company
wholly owned by Mr. Wang Yi. By virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO,
Mr. Wang Yi is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Elite Fortune is
interested.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (cont’'d)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, no person, other than the
Directors, whose interests are set out in the section “DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS” above, had registered an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements. The Directors’ remunerations, bonuses and other compensation
are determined or recommended by the remuneration committee of the
Board with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and the Group's
performance and results.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had not entered into any transactions which
constituted non-exempt connected transactions or non-exempt continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had entered into certain transactions with parties
regarded as “related parties” under the applicable accounting standards but
these transactions were not regarded as connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules or were exempt from
reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules. Details of these related party transactions are set out in note 41
to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, throughout the year of 2014 and as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float by not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued Shares as required under the Listing Rule.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of the Events after the Reporting Period are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
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Directors’ Report

EXEHRE

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

Up to the date of this report, changes in Director’s information since the date
of the 2015 interim report of the Company are set out below:

1. Director’s fee of Mr. Lo Ka Wai, an executive Director, has been increased
by HK$100,000 per month to HK$300,000 per month with effect from 1
December 2015; and

2. Director’s fee of each of Mr. Wang Qun, Dr. Yang Zhi Shu and Mr. Lai Ho
Man, Dickson, all being independent non-executive Directors, has been
increased by HK$2,000 per month to HK$17,000 per month with effect
from 1 December 2015.

Save as disclosed above, there were no substantial changes to the Directors’
information required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in 2004 with written terms of
reference and revised time to time to comply with the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process, risk management systems and internal control
system of the Group. The Audit Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson (as Chairman),
Mr. Wang Qun and Dr. Yang Zhi Shu.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015.

AUDITOR

Martin C.K. Pong & Company resigned as auditor of the Group on 27
November 2015, and ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited was appointed by the
Board as auditor of the Company to fill the vacancy following the resignation
of Martin C.K. Pong & Company on 27 November 2015.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in auditor during the preceding
three years. A resolution will be submitted to the 2016 AGM to re-appoint
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lo Ka Wai
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and the management are committed to maintaining and ensuring
high standards of corporate governance as good corporate governance can
safeguard the interests of all shareholders and enhance corporate value. The
Board continuously reviews and improves the corporate governance practices
and standards of the Group from time to time to ensure that business
activities and decision making possesses are regulated in a proper manner.

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2015, except for the
deviations from code provisions A.2.1, C.1.2 and D.1.4 of the Code, which
are explained below.

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Since Mr. Yang Fan resigned as chairman of the Board on
19 May 2015, the Company has not appointed chairman and chief executive
officer and the roles and functions of chairman and chief executive officer
have been performed by all the executive Directors collectively. The Board
believes that this arrangement enables the Company to make and implement
decisions promptly, and thus achieve the Company's objectives effectively
and efficiently in response to the changing environment. The Board also
believes that the Company already has a strong corporate governance
structure in place to ensure effective oversight of management. The Board will
continuously review the effectiveness of the Group's corporate governance
structure to assess whether any changes are necessary.

Pursuant to code provision C.1.2 of the Code, management should provide
all members of the board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the issuer's performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board as a whole and each director
to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing
Rules. The management of the Company did not provide a regular monthly
update to the members of the Board, but the management keeps providing
information and update to the members of the Board irregularly.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES (cont'd)

Pursuant to code provision D.1.4 of the Code, issuers should have
formal letters of appointment for directors setting out the key terms and
conditions of their appointment. The Company did not enter into a letter of
appointment with Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard, a former executive Director
resigned on 17 July 2015. In fact, all the Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation once every three years and are subject to re-election in accordance
with the Articles. The Board considers that such requirements are sufficient
to meet the underlying objectives of the relevant code provision. In addition,
they have followed the guidelines set out in “A Guide on Directors’ Duties”
issued by the Companies Registry and “Guidelines for Directors” and
"Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors” (if applicable) published
by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors in performing their duties and
responsibilities as Directors. Besides, the Directors actively comply with the
requirements under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and
other regulatory requirements and the Company’s business and governance
policies.

Save as the aforesaid and in the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
met all code provisions as set out in the Code during the year ended 31
December 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group's strategic planning and
development, and for determining the objectives, strategic and policies of the
Group while delegating day-to-day operations of the Group to management.
Besides, each member of the Board is expected to make a full and active
contribution to the Board's affairs and ensure that the Board acts in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board currently comprises nine
members including, Mr. Lo Ka Wai, Mr. Feng Yongming, Mr. Li Hui and Mr.
Tian Songlin as executive Directors, Ms. Mou Ling and Mr. Yang Liu as non-
executive Directors and Mr. Wang Qun, Dr. Yang Zhi Shu and Mr. Lai Ho
Man, Dickson as independent non-executive Directors. One of the three
independent non-executive Directors possesses appropriate professional
accounting qualifications and financial management expertise, which
complies with the requirement of the Listing Rules. Details of their respective
experiences and qualifications are included in the “Directors’ Biographies”
section of this Annual Report.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
on 28 March 2014 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. The Company recognizes that increasing diversity at the Board
level will support the attainment of the Company's strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Company will also
take into consideration its own business model and specific needs from time
to time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d)

The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will discuss and adopt
the above measurements when it reviewed the composition of the Board.
After assessing the suitability of the Directors’ skills and experience to the
Company’s business, the Nomination Committee considered that the existing
Board were suitably qualified with professional backgrounds and/or equipped
with extensive expertise for the purposes of providing direction to and
oversight of the Group's strategic and business in achieving its objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors ensure the Board accounts for
the interests of all shareholders and that all issues are considered in an
objective manner. The Company has received annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors as regards their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and as at the date of this report still
considers each of them to be independent to the Company.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business, family
relationship among the members of the Board. All of them are free to exercise
their individual judgment.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Code, the Directors should
participate in appropriate continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. All Directors are encouraged
to attend relevant training courses to ensure that they are fully aware of
the responsibilities and obligations of directors under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT (cont’d)

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development and
provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31 December
2015 to the Company. The Company has also continuously updated Directors
on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices.

EEREEERE @

FEEZEC2EKBEZTERRIM AR THRHERK
ERBEZZ-AFT-A=+-BLEFEER
B E- AR NN EHESARE LTRA
REMBREERTEZENER BRTAHRER
REBNEHRFCEEQAERNEH -

Training
Received
EZ 2
Notes
B 5
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lo Ka Wai EaERE (1)
Mr. Feng Yongming oK B S (1)
Mr. Li Hui FEALE (1
Mr. Tian Songlin AR SE & (1)
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Mou Ling BBL L (1)
Mr. Yang Liu HEEAE (1)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYkHITES
Mr. Wang Qun TR A (1)
Dr. Yang Zhi Shu B2 EiELT (1)
Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson RSN E (1) (2)
Notes: B 5 -

(1) Reading articles, training materials and updates as regards legal and regulatory
changes and matters of relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their duties.

(2) Attending training courses/seminars/conferences on topics relating to directors’
duties and the Listing Rules.
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MEETINGS

Corporate Governance Report
TRER/RE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board has held 20 meetings to
discuss among other matters, the Group’s development strategies, investment
projects and the operational and financial performance of the Group and the
Company has held 3 general meetings, being the 2015 AGM held on 1 June
2015, an extraordinary general meeting held on 19 January 2015 (“2015
EGM") and a general meeting held on 16 October 2015 (“2015 GM").

The attendance records of the Directors to these board meetings and general
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meetings are set out below: e
Board
Meetings 2015 AGM 2015 EGM 2015 GM
—E-RF —E-1F —E-EF
EEZEEE RRBFARE REBIKE BRERAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lo Ka Wai BRELE 18/20 171 171 171
Mr. Feng Yongming KBRS 15/20 0/1 0/1 0/1
Mr. Li Hui (Note 1) FE %A (M) 9/10 N/A T A N/A @A 11
(appointed on 17 July 2015) (R-—B—1%
+tATtHEZT)
Mr. Tian Songlin (Note 1) BRI E (FTFE) 10/10 N/A 7~ N/A i F 11
(appointed on 17 July 2015) (R-—Z—H%F
+tATtREZMT)
Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard (Note 2) B3R S A (P RE2) 9/10 171 1”1 N/A i
(resigned on 17 July 2015) (R-—B—1%
+ ATt HEE)
Mr. Yang Fan (Note 3) BREE (HEE3) 6/6 N/A 7~ 11 N/A 7~ F
(resigned on 19 May 2015) (R-—Z—H%F
AA+TNBEE)
Mr. Aminbuhe (Note 4) Bl A0 58 A (Bt 5E4) 212 N/A T A 01 N/A T A
(resigned on 23 February 2015) (R—E—H#F
ZAZ+=HEE)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Mou Ling 2R+ 11720 0/1 171 171
Mr. Yang Liu (Note 1) BEEE (M) 3/10 N/A i A N/A 7 iE A 171
(appointed on 17 July 2015) (R=ZB—1%
+tATHtHEZA)
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Mr. Wang Qun EEEE 15/20 171 11 171
Dr. Yang Zhi Shu HZEHL 13/20 0/1 171 1”1
Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson (Note 5) 5 S A (FEES) 14/16 171 N/A 73 171
(appointed on 16 March 2015) (R—Z—1%F
ZA+ABEZE)
Mr. Chow Hiu Tung (Note 6) [ABE R 5 A (FiEEe) 2/4 N/A 7 iE F 171 N/A i
(resigned on 16 March 2015) (RZE—RF
= ATRBEME)
BREA A RIERA R AR 51
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MEETINGS (cont’d)

Notes:

1. Mr. Li Hui, Mr. Tian Songlin and Mr. Yang Liu were appointed on 17 July 2015.
Their attendances above were stated by reference to the number of Board meetings
and general meetings held during their tenure.

2. Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard resigned on 17 July 2015. His attendance above was
stated by reference to the number of Board meetings and general meetings held
during his tenure.

3. Mr. Yang Fan resigned on 19 May 2015. His attendance above was stated by
reference to the number of Board meetings and general meetings held during his
tenure.

4. Mr. Aminbuhe resigned on 23 February 2015. His attendance above was stated by
reference to the number of Board meetings and general meetings held during his
tenure.

5. Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson was appointed on 16 March 2015. His attendance above
was stated by reference to the number of Board meetings and general meetings
held during his tenure.

6. Mr. Chow Hiu Tung resigned on 16 March 2015. His attendance above was stated
by reference to the number of Board meetings and general meetings held during
his tenure.

The company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) of the Company assists
the chairman of each meeting in preparing the agenda for meetings and
ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are followed. The Company
Secretary also keeps detailed minutes of each meeting, which are available to
all the Directors for inspection. A draft of Board minutes are circulated to all
Directors for their comments and approved as soon as practicable after the
Board meetings.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information, and they can
ask for further information or retain independent professional advisors if
necessary. They also have unrestricted access to the advice and service of
the Company Secretary, who is responsible for providing the Directors with
board papers and related materials and ensuring that board procedures are
followed.
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BOARD MEETING

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial Shareholder or
Director arise, the matter will be discussed in a physical meeting, as opposed
to being dealt with by written resolutions. Independent non-executive
Directors with no conflict of interest should present at meeting dealing with
conflict issues. Board committees of the Company, including the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees, all follow the applicable practices
and procedures used in Board meetings for committee meetings.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Since Mr. Yang Fan resigned as chairman of the Board on
19 May 2015, the Company has not appointed chairman and chief executive
officer and the roles and functions of chairman and chief executive officer
have been performed by all the executive Directors collectively. The Board
believes that this arrangement enables the Company to make and implement
decisions promptly, and thus achieve the Company's objectives effectively
and efficiently in response to the changing environment. The Board also
believes that the Company already has a strong corporate governance
structure in place to ensure effective oversight of management. The Board will
continuously review the effectiveness of the Group's corporate governance
structure to assess whether any changes are necessary.

DIRECTORS' TERM OF APPOINTMENTS AND
RE-ELECTION

In accordance with Article 72(1) of the Articles, the Directors shall be elected
or replaced by the Company in general meeting and shall serve a term of
office of three years. A Director may serve consecutive terms if re-elected by
the Company in general meeting upon the expiration of his term. Article 71
of the Articles provides that Directors appointed either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company, and shall then be eligible for re-
appointment.

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors are
appointed for an initial term of three (3) years, subject to renewal upon expiry
of the existing term. Each of such appointments is subject to the rotation and
retirement provisions in the Articles.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct for
securities transactions by Directors. Having made specific enquiry of the
Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2015.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct for
securities transactions by employees of the Company who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company. No incident
of non-compliance of the Model Code by the relevant employees of the
Company was noted by the Company during the year ended 31 December
2015.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced assessment
of the Group's performance and prospects. It is also responsible for
preparing financial statements that give a true and fair view of the Group's
financial position on a going concern basis and other inside information
announcements and financial disclosures. Management provides the Board
with the relevant information it needs to discharge these responsibilities.
The responsibilities of the auditor to the Shareholders are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 61 and 62.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 20 December 2005 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code which are available
on the respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include formulation
of the remuneration policy, review and recommending to the Board
the annual remuneration policy of the Directors and members of senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the approach made
under B.1.2(c)(i) of the Code to determine, with delegated responsibility,
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (cont’d)

Meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall be held at least once a year.
The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson (as the chairman of the
committee) and Mr. Wang Qun and one executive Director, namely Mr. Lo Ka
Wai. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Remuneration Committee
has held 4 meetings, mainly to review the existing policy and structure
of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management, and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of proposed Directors
appointed during the year ended 31 December 2015. The attendance is as
follows:

TEERRE

FHEEE @)
HHEEeREEE LRI REH -FHEES
AR E B R TEERE X EE (BEE
BEE)RIREER—EHTESEEELEM
BeRE—E—RE+-A=+—BLEE
FERHERTNAES TERBATEERERE
BEHMRE R E TR YRBE-_T 5
E+-A-+-—BIEEREANESTHFTHG
EEREHEERESE HEBRNT

Number of

attendance

HERE

Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson (Note) BES A (M FE) 4/4
(appointed on 16 March 2015) (RZZE—RF=A+AEZE)

Mr. Lo Ka Wai ERELE 4/4

Mr. Wang Qun AR AE 4/4

Mr. Chow Hiu Tung (Note) FBER L E (M) N/A 7~ F

(resigned on 16 March 2015)

Note: Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson replaced Mr. Chow Hiu Tung as chairman of the
committee following Mr. Chow Hiu Tung ceased to be the chairman of the
committee on 16 March 2015. Their respective attendances above was stated by
reference to the number of meetings held during their tenure.

The remuneration of the senior management (comprising Directors) of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2015, by band is set out below:

(RZZ—AF=A+NBEEET)

M AEREER-_T-—RF =R+ ATBEEZRE
BERR WEXEEREARREEEERZES
TR BREREAZHERE2REEEHR
BITZEFRBWMINT -

BHE-_Z-—RAF+-A=+—HBILFEARASN
ERE(BRES) 2HFM ZFENEESTOT

Number of
Remuneration Band individuals
F & E A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 11
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/ 7T £2,000,000/8 7T -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001/ 75 23,000,000/ 7T 2

Further details of the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31
December 2015 are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements contained
in this Annual Report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 7 July 2008 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code which are available on the
respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited to
skills, experience and background, geographical and industry experience,
ethnicity, gender, knowledge and length of service) of the Board; to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship; and to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors; and to review the Board Diversity Policy and the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing such policy.

The Nomination Committee selects candidates for directorship with reference
to the candidate’s professional knowledge, industry experience, personal
ethics and integrity, and time commitments. During the selection process, the
Nomination Committee may consider referrals or engage external recruitment
professionals when necessary. Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall
be held at least once a year and as and when required. The Nomination
Committee currently comprises two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wang Qun (as the chairman of the committee) and Mr. Lai Ho
Man, Dickson and one executive Director, namely Mr. Lo Ka Wai. For the
year ended 31 December 2015, the Nomination Committee has held 2
meetings, mainly to review the composition of the Board and the retirement
and re-election of Directors, to assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors and to make recommendation to the Board on the
nomination of new Director candidates during the year ended 31 December
2015. The attendance is as follows:

REZEEE
ARAREBEZEBEEN_ZEZNFLALAKIL I
AR R BE TR RO E - HERAL T R
A E P (B0 -

REZEGZIERERETHRIEZTSEZR
B A EREEENE (BERETRNRE &5

BRCERITERR kMR ME R RS
FH) UAMEABEEERATRTIEFTERED
AL UHMHEREEEALTHEEFANEST SR
HER REEZERENEZEUNRESTEEHD
SHEFEERESERIES RIEFENES
TEBREREEFERBEEZBR R ENAER

-

REZBEELERBEAZEENG ERLR E
AMBEBERERAETRRER AE - NEER
B ERZEgeEEHBARN (REFH)
MEESNPBREE AT - REZESEHEATTFR
LPER—ARREEREH -REEZESEAHEW
BB TESTIHALE (RZESEH) LT
ENEEUR BRI EERE R AEEK - EHE
—E-AF+-A=+—HILFE RELZE8EH
BOMAESH FTEEMNEES AR EF 2R
TR ERET B IEITEE 2B R G
NHE-Z-AF+_A=t+—BLFEANNH
EERBARLEEYESSRHERRS 2R
BT

Number of

attendance

HE R

Mr. Wang Qun TR 2/2

Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson (Note) BEE A (M FE) 2/2
(appointed on 16 March 2015) (RZZE—RF=A+AEZE)

Mr. Lo Ka Wai EmEEE 2/2

Mr. Chow Hiu Tung (Note) BRI E () N/A 7~ F

(resigned on 16 March 2015)

Note: Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson replaced Mr. Chow Hiu Tung as a member of the
committee following Mr. Chow Hiu Tung ceased to be a member of the
committee on 16 March 2015. Their respective attendances above was stated by
reference to the number of meetings held during their tenure.
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Corporate Governance Report

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has had the Audit Committee since 2004 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Code which are available on the respective
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. It is responsible for
reviewing the Group’s financial reporting, risk management, internal controls
and making recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee currently
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Lai Ho Man,
Dickson (as the chairman of the committee), Mr. Wang Qun and Dr. Yang Zhi
Shu.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee has held 4
meetings, mainly to have audit planning meeting with auditor in respect of
the audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014,
to review the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 and the interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2015, to review the internal control system and to make recommendation to
the Board of the appointment of new auditor. The attendance is as follows:

TERERRE
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ARRE-TENFERIBREAS  LUMS
LA 2 L T TR O - 0 AN 20 ) BB 4
BRI HME - AR AENARENMBRR- A
RER AEERFERMESFRAEL

}
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§§im£F) CEREAERGZEELEMK-

BE_T-AF+-_A=T—HLFE EKEE
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=t RLFEEZ2FRERAEEEE-_Z -0
FRA=ZTRLERNER ZHHES FHAMER
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HAOFEERAT

#2

Number of

attendance
HERE
Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson (Note) BESE (M FE)

(appointed on 16 March 2015) (RZZE—AF=A+AEZE) 3/3
Mr. Wang Qun TR E 3/4
Dr. Yang Zhi Shu B2 EBiELT 3/4
Mr. Chow Hiu Tung (Note) FEERLE ()

(resigned on 16 March 2015) (R—Z—HF=A+/BET) 11

Note: Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson replaced Mr. Chow Hiu Tung as chairman of the
committee following Mr. Chow Hiu Tung ceased to be the chairman of the
committee on 16 March 2015. Their respective attendances above was stated by

reference to the number of meetings held during their tenure.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The former auditor of the Company, Martin C.K. Pong & Company, resigned
on 27 November 2015, and ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited was appointed as
new auditor of the Company to fill the vacancy following the resignation of
Martin C.K. Pong & Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration paid/payable to
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited and Martin C.K. Pong & Company is set out
below:

B BET B &
ARARZBMESHEFIMITER T —HF
T—AZ-TLREHE MPELESHMELEAE
RARREZERARRFZEE  REHESS
BRI TTRHEE LM TR

BE-Z-HEF+-A=+—BLEE BN/
iR E R @R S ARA R RS B8 it
TR S RN T

2015
—E-hF
HK$
BT
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited FEREGTMEBMERAA
Audit services: ERRE
Audit of the financial statements BV BRE 880,000
Martin C.K. Pong & Company AT
Non-audit services: FERRE :
Professional fees in relation to open offer MARBECHEEER 240,000
Interim Review EIEE R 100,000
Assurance service on a circular BB Bk 2 1% 5 R 422,000

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
with its written terms of reference as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Company;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees of the Company and Directors;
and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibilities for introducing and continuously
maintaining sound and effective internal control systems of the Group
and reviews its adequacy and effectiveness. It is committed to review and
implement effective and sound internal controls systems to safeguard
shareholders’ interests. The Board has delegated to the management
with defined structure and limited authority, to conduct reviews on and
maintenance of all material controls including proper financial and accounting
records, operational and compliance and risk management functions as well
as the implementation of the internal control system to ensure compliance
with relevant legislations and regulations.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group. The internal control systems will be reviewed on an
ongoing basis by the Board in order to make it practical and effective.

COMPANY SECRETARY

In compliance with the requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the
company secretary of the Company took no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December 2015.

THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS TO CONVENE AN
GENERAL MEETING AND PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS BY
SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 48 of the Articles, general meetings of the Company shall
be convened by the Board on the requisition of members pursuant to the
provisions of the Statutes. Pursuant to subsection 567(1) of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”), directors required under section 566 of the Companies
Ordinance to call a general meeting must call a meeting within 21 days
after the date on which they become subject to the requirement. A general
meeting called under subsection 567(1) of the Companies Ordinance must be
held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening
the meeting.

Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
shareholders can submit a written requisition or in electronic form to move a
resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company, or who are no less
than 50 shareholders, pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance.
The requisition must state the resolution, accompanied by a statement with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution of the business to
be dealt with at the general meeting of the Company. It must also be signed
by all requisitionists for the attention of the Company not less than 6 weeks
before the annual general meeting to which the requisition relate.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant information to
its shareholders in a timely manner. Annual and interim reports offer
comprehensive operational and financial performance information to its
shareholders and the annual general meeting of the Company provides
a forum for shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. The
Company regards the annual general meeting of the Company as an
important event and all Directors, senior management and external auditors
make an effort to attend the annual general meeting of the Company to
address shareholders’ queries. All the shareholders of the Company are given
a minimum of 20 clear business days’ notice of the date and venue of the
annual general meeting of the Company. The Company supports the Code’s
principle to encourage shareholders’ participation. The Company has also
complied with the requirements concerning voting by poll under the Listing
Rules.

The last annual general meeting of the Company is the 2015 AGM.
4 Directors including the chairman of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and the external
auditor of the Company, Martin C.K. Pong & Company attended the 2015
AGM.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The articles of association of the Company as adopted by a special resolution
passed at the 2015 AGM is available at the Company’s website www.nur.
com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s website. No further changes have been
made to the Company’s Articles of Association during the year.

PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRES MAY BE PUT TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders of the Company may send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary by mail at the
Company’s registered office at Suite 5208, 52/F., Central Plaza, 18 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company Secretary is responsible for
forwarding communications to the Board and/or relevant Board committees of
the Company, where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.

PROCEDURES FOR NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS FOR
ELECTION

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person for
election as a Director are available and accessible on the Company’s website
at www.nur.com.hk.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NATIONAL UNITED RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of National United
Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 143, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BETHRE

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015, and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Sze Lin Tang

Practising Certificate Number P03614
Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit Or Loss

mEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—ZE—hF+ - A=+—HILFE

Notes 2015 2014
K&t —E-1EF —T-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&ERT FHET
Revenue W &= 7 382,789 364,876
Cost of sales & KA (355,250) (298,893)
Gross profit E5 27,539 65,983
Other income H A A 8 33,737 8,936
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHH (6,120) (5,400)
Administrative and other operating THREMEERS
expenses (91,998) (109,678)
Loss from operations REEE (36,842) (40,159)
Finance cost & AR 9 (23,597) (17,101)
Fair value gain of derivative instruments $74 T B 2 A F AU 28 33,573 =
Provision of prepayment TR RIB R 23 (40,000) =
Share of profits and losses of associates & 1f B & A &) % | J 518 3,728 419
Loss before tax FRB A5 18 (63,138) (56,841)
Income tax expense FrigBimx 10 (1,968) (12,004)
Loss for the year FREE 11 (65,106) (68,845)
Attributable to: LT ALEAS:
Owners of the Company ZiN/NETEZ ¥ =N (64,413) (68,647)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR 2 (693) (198)
(65,106) (68,845)
Loss per share attributable to EARBEEAEEERER (restated)
owners of the Company 13 (sE351)
Basic (HK cents per share) EAR (FRBW) (1.35) (2.08)
Diluted (HK cents per share) g (ZhoBIl) (1.35) (2.08)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REZEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &% =% —

EFE+ZR=+—HILFE

Notes 2015 2014
Bt —ZET-HF —ZE-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Loss for the year FREE 11 (65,106) (68,845)
Other comprehensive loss: H2HEERE :
Items that may be reclassified AR EF PR Em 2 HE -
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of ~ BEBINERMEEZ
foreign operations E 5 =% (1,462) 251
Exchange differences on translation of ~ HBEB L RN AMELZ
associates E 5 =% (5,690) 7
Exchange differences reclassified HEWBARRER»EE
to profit or loss on disposal of BmERERE
subsidiaries (3,566) -
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREMEEEBEEE (75,824) (68,587)
Total comprehensive loss RTFATEEER
for the year attributable to: THEEEEE:
Owners of the Company ZiN/NETEZ ¥ =N (74,028) (68,389)
Non-controlling interests I 12 A% 42 25 (1,796) (198)
(75,824) (68,587)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

As at 31 December 2015 W =—Z—FHF+-A=+—H

Notes 2015 2014
Bt i —E-HfF —Z=—E
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WE KF&E 15 61,328 7,923
Goodwill EES 16 326,342 5,245
Intangible assets mEAE 17 178,093 102,150
Club membership L 150 150
Interests in associates NN £ 19 208,944 28,743
Deposits for acquisition of property, WENE BERSEBZES
plant and equipment 2,629 2,147
777,486 146,358
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 5,325 -
Trade receivables FEWE 5K 21 325,322 32,489
Bonds receivable JE W (B 75 22 75,780 =
Prepayments, deposits and FARNRIE ke REAM
other receivables FE Y kI8 23 343,847 530,663
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFABRZEHEE
through profit or loss 24 2,387 -
Pledged bank deposits B IR R ITIF X 25 237,478 =
Bank and cash balances WITRBEET 25 183,409 2,879
1,173,548 566,031
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables ERTE SR 26 73,256 84,124
Other payables and accruals EMEMNRIBERESER 27 56,966 64,305
Borrowings BE 29 251,773 46,473
Convertible bonds Al AR & 5 30 - 28,135
Non-convertible bonds Al E %5 37 243,959 48,171
Finance lease payables B A ERIE 32 980 794
Tax payable FEAS 35818 28,172 31,237
655,106 303,239
Net current assets REBEEFEE 518,442 262,792
Total assets less current BREERRBEE
liabilities 1,295,928 409,150
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e WA R R

As at 31 December 2015 A-Z—RE+-HA=+—H

Notes 2015 2014
B &t —E-HEF —T—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&ERT FAT
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Derivative instruments PTETE 28 223,319 =
Convertible bonds AR &5 30 62,889 =
Non-convertible bonds o]k ES 37 10,795 181,155
Finance lease payables FET R E T ERIE 32 2,527 2,834
Deferred tax liabilities BREFHBEAE 33 43,126 25,538
342,656 209,527
NET ASSETS BEERE 953,272 199,623
Capital and reserves PR A% f#
Share capital [N 34 3,080,114 2,321,311
Reserves R (2,162,827) (2,122,719)
Equity attributable to owners of RRAEE AEGER
the Company 917,287 198,592
Non-controlling interests JEVE AR = 35,985 1,031
TOTAL EQUITY Mg 953,272 199,623
Approved by: Lo Ka Wai Li Hui
MEE R EEE =y
Director Director
EE EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

RERRBER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ESE LD 1
Equity
Share-  component Foreign
Share based of currency Non-
Share premium payment  convertible  translation Accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve bonds reserve losses Total interests equity
NBGH
ERfiRz WERESZ
B RBEE 1] EEES  HBERRE RitER 2% FERER g 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn FhEL FiEn ThEL FiET FET FiEn FEL FiEn

At 1 January 2014 RZZ-mE-F-AH 130,115 2,101,620 18,671 - 3,782 (2,105,433) 148,755 (13,846) 134,909
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (68,647) (68,647) (198) (68,845)
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ FRE M ZEMA : - - - - 258 - 258 - 258
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ $AZARALE - - - - 258 (68,647) (68,389) (198) (68,587)
Transition to no-par value regime BEZEDEE 2,101,620 (2,101,620) = = = = = = =
Issue of shares Bt 89,576 - - - - - 89,576 - 89,576
Contribution from non-controlling WEARERRER TE

interests of a subsidiary - - - - - - - 15,075 15,075
Issue of convertible bonds BITARRES - - - 948 - - 948 - 948
Equity-settled share option arrangements ~ EXEHERELH = - 27,702 - - - 27,702 - 27,702
Changes in equity for the year FRERED 2,191,1% (2,101,620) 27,702 948 258 (68,647) 49,837 14,877 64,714
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 R=F-MEF-A=+-HRK

—T-1%-F-AH 2321311 = 46,373 948 4,040 (2,174,080) 198,592 1,031 199,623

Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (64,413) (64,413) (693) (65,106)
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ FREM2EMRA - - - - (9,615) - (9,615) (1,103) (10,718)
Total comprehensive income for the year —~ FRZERABE - - - - (9,615) (64,413) (74,028) (1,796) (75,824)
Acquisition of subsidiaries KB - - - - - - - 31,984 31,984
Capital injection from non-controlling WEAREERERTE

interests of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 4,766 4,766
Lapsed of share options BAREL R - - (4,155) - - 4,155 - - -
Shares issued upon exercise of TEBREREITRG

share options 9,485 - (2,970) - - - 6,515 - 6,515
Shares issued pursuant to the open offer ~ BREAREERTRN 476,401 - - - - - 476,401 - 476,401
Equity component of convertible bonds aRESZEZSS - - - 68,090 - - 68,090 = 68,090
Conversion of convertible bonds BRTRRES 115,717 - - (31,200) - - 84,517 - 84,517
Shares subscription R fp REE 157,200 - - - - - 157,200 - 157,200
At 31 December 2015 R=F-RF+-A=1+-H 3,080,114 - 39,248 37,838 (5,575) (2,234,338) 917,287 35,985 953,272
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

Note 2015 2014
ikz3 —E-REF —ZE-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash flows from operating REEBZHRERE
activities
Loss before tax B 75 A 5 18 (63,138) (56,841)
Adjustments for: M TYIIERFT{ERE
Share of profits and losses of FE (Bt 8 R A 2 s 7 R & 18
associates (3,728) (419)
Depreciation e 9,471 2,241
Amortisation of intangible assets B AESH 6,120 5,400
Net foreign exchange losses SNEE &5 185 58 - 268
Equity-settled share option expenses EnEERERERX - 27,702
Fair value gain of derivative PTET AR FE W=
instruments (33,573) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BB AR W (11,356) =
Gain on disposal of an associate LB AR 2 W (1,020) =
Gain on disposal of financial assets HERAFEFABRZS
at fair value through profit or loss A&z W (12,706) =
Provision of prepayment TR R R 40,000 =
Interest income FEKA (6,720) (24)
Interest expenses FMERZ 23,524 16,634
Operating cash flows before working EEACEHA LS
capital changes BEmE (53,126) (5,039)
Change in inventories FE# (5,325) =
Change in trade receivables EURE 5 E (292,566) 58,543
Change in prepayments, deposits and TERRIE - Re REM
other receivables W R IB B B 136,206 (448,343)
Net proceeds from disposal of HERAFEFAEBRZZ
financial assets at fair value SRVE 2 FT1S RIEF 58
through profit or loss 14,122 -
Change in other tax payables JFE {5 2 751 78 = 1,135
Change in trade payables FEE 5 (12,793) 51,561
Change in other payables and H fth FE < 508 R FE T
accruals EREY (457) (8,392)
Cash used in operations REXEBERAZES (213,939) (350,535)
Income tax paid EAATER (2,422) -
Other interest paid HEaE B (2,538) (3,013)
Net cash used in operating RETHREAZHELSFRE
activities (218,899) (353,548)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % —

& éﬁ%ﬁ%%

—AF+ZA=Z+—HLEFE

Note 2015 2014
=3 —ZE-HfF — P 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&ERT FHET
Cash flows from investing REZBZ2RERE
activities
Interest received 2 F B 940 24
Deposits for acquisition of property, WENE BERSEBEZES
plant and equipment (482) (2,147)
Purchases of property, BEWE KEREE
plant and equipment (15,099) (2,563)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wb o BB A 37(a) (42,903) -
Acquisition of a shareholding BEBEQ TZHX%
in an associate (195,000) (950)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKHBA 37(b) (335) =
Investments in associates BEBER 7 - (27,556)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate tlj’gﬂé"i#“ A8 RIE 13,857 =
Subscription of bonds REE (70,000) =
Net cash used in investing REZBHEAZRSER
activities (309,022) (33,192)
Cash flows from financing RMETBHZRERE
activities
Proceeds from new borrowing FE RS HIE 244,202 31,077
Repayment of borrowings EEER (35,023) (10,976)
Proceeds from issue of non-convertible 277~ A ¥ i (& 5 AT 13 7K 78
bonds 96,220 206,450
Interest paid for non-convertible bonds B F| 8 — TR R E 5 - (1,290)
Repayment of non-convertible bonds BENABKES (68,500) -
Proceeds from issue of BT R EH FTIS RIE
convertible bonds 65,736 28,875
Repayment of convertible bonds 1832 ] R & 55 (15) -
Capital injection from non-controlling M B AR IR R E
interest of a subsidiary 4,766 -
Proceeds from issue of shares BLTIRD FT1S 5K I8 633,601 89,576
Proceeds from exercise of share options fﬂ?ﬁ ﬁ%ﬂx%ﬁﬁﬁ#\ 6,515 =
Repayment of finance lease payables EEEN @ﬂﬁfﬁ%ﬁ%’& (316) (1,020)
Net cash generated from RMETBMEZ2RESER
financing activities 947,186 342,692
Net increase/(decrease) ReRERARBESER 2 &M~
in cash and cash equivalents Om2) =8 419,265 (44,048)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EX&F)r & (1,257) 9)
Cash and cash equivalents FYzREeRERBFEIER
at beginning of year 2,879 46,936
Cash and cash equivalents FRZAEGRERREER
at end of year 420,887 2,879
Analysis of cash and ReREFAREBEAZHM
cash equivalents
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITEFER 237,478 -
Bank and cash balances Re MRITER 183,409 2,879
420,887 2,879
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE
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GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —REHR

National United Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was B REE A EIRITE Hxﬁﬁﬁ T(Miﬂﬂj)fif\ﬁ
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. The address of its BAMKIABRAT  aAMiEEREE
registered office and principal place of business is Suite 5208, 52/F, B AT B ET ,E,g;_mgﬁnpiﬁﬁgi@sz@
Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company's 5208F c AN FE W& ([I&0 ) EEBHE S
shares (the “Shares”) are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange RHFAARAR ([BZAT]) ER Eme

of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities KARABREERAT -EMNBARZEZEE
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the financial statements. BE R HRRMTFE18 ©

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. EAH I RIS EBH KRS
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS pi- 4=

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised Hong RAEE ANEBERMAE Bt B M
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong HELZEAATNR _T—AF—A—BAREN
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that are relevant to its S EEEROMET T REBITTETB
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 January SREKER| ([BEHMERELED ) - FHBK
2015. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; W EBIJ@%E IR EER] FESHE
Hong Kong Accounting Standards; and Interpretations. The adoption of B RRB - HAZEH RET BB
these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to F i/ﬁﬁljlﬁ;ﬂﬁx%lﬁ’] AHE AEH
the Group's accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s financial TSR ERH 27 &$¢F& AFENERS
statements and amounts reported for the current year and prior years. FHIREKNE

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued but AREBWARERDBMHBERRERZFTTESD
are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced an assessment RS ER  REE D BB % EHETH
of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state BRI EEA I EE RS
whether these new HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of ERMEREEN SR YWHEBEEERMBEIK
operations and financial position. MK E KL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EREFEHE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015

ZEVBRERDBERBSYERE LA BB
ARG RAURBRATES EMRIREEA
AIEHIRE AR BER ERE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment properties
and investments which are carried at their fair values. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of key assumptions and estimates. It also requires
the management of the Group (the “Management”) to exercise its
judgments in the process of applying the accounting policies. The areas
involving critical judgments and areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to these financial statements, are disclosed in note 4 to
the financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current ability to
direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting rights
as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to determine
whether it has control. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date the
control ceases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 3. ERSHEBE @

Consolidation (cont’d)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net assets of that
subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any
related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
and consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling interests and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Business combination and goodwiill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of a
subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is measured
at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the
costs are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %= —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
Business combination and goodwiill (cont’d)

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. Goodwill
is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The method of
measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same as that of other
assets as stated in the accounting policy “Impairment of assets” below.
Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or
loss and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of an entity but is not control or joint control
over those policies. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible, including potential voting
rights held by other entities, are considered when assessing whether the
Group has significant influence. In assessing whether a potential voting
right contributes to significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements by the equity method and is initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is
tested for impairment together with the investment at the end of each
reporting period when there is objective evidence that the investment
is impaired. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 3. EXRSHEBE @

Associates (cont'd)

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the consolidated
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the
Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share
of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a loss of
significant influence represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that associate and (ii) the Group's share of the net assets
of that associate plus any remaining goodwill relating to that associate
and any related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture, the
Group continues to apply the equity method and does not remeasure the
retained interest.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars, which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ - ZE—HF+ - A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Foreign currency translation (cont'd)
(b) Transactions and balances in financial statements

(9,

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency on initial recognition using the exchange rates prevailing
on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this translation
policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. When a gain
or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have
a functional currency different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(i) Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

(iii) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the foreign

currency translation reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 3. EXEFEHE @

Foreign currency translation (cont'd) EER (&)

(c) Translation on consolidation (cont’d) () REEHRERLZE (F)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation NIFERAR  LIRGIBEENIREFEE
of the net investment in foreign entities and of borrowings are 1ETAHT?EE’JER§§EEEA9|\ER}%E%‘
recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a BHRRER - ELEHINERR  BRER
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are recognised EHE RS EBRERNERALERNK
in consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. T ET 2 — 2B e
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a WEBINEBEECEHBRATERAR
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity RIEBINERBZEERBERE K
and translated at the closing rate. UamfERBE o

Property, plant and equipment ME - BERREUARITE

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less accumulated Y R MRERRANERTMEFFER

depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, FBEEEYE - ¥ BMEMREGBER Z

plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly KABEEREEBRERBEEERIRAEE

attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and AR EARUERERAE CEERGKA -

location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or ERNEBEEENRRLENZEEAKS R
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable ANEBMZIBEE KA SEET 205 128/
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the AE et \EEFEET siERAERNEE
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs (IREFABAMTE) FTEEMEBRIZEERE
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the period in HEH BRI B o

which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates ME - -BERBEITE IR ENEREGE A E
sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over the AFAMEER N RRSEENITEXRNE
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates BRFtE - FEFERIN | :

are as follows:

Leasehold improvement HEMERE 20%-33%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment R BEEE REE 9%-20%
Computer equipment BB 9%-20%
Motor vehicles and trucks ABERESE 20%-25%
Yacht e 20%
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed REBEAREHRY SR RAEFGER 7
and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. ERFHERTERE (MERA) -

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the ﬁ%%¥ MR R R e BB T E T
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of ,{agﬁ&ﬁfﬂééﬁ’gﬁ%@ﬁZFﬁE’q%%ﬁ AR
the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss. HEERANMER
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ —ZE—HF+ - A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

Leases

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Lease payments (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and rewards
of ownership of assets are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease is capitalised at the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement
of financial position as finance lease payable. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period
during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as owned assets.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Customers contracts and customer relationships

Customers contracts and customer relationships are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 20 years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 3. EXRSHEBE @

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average basis. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of all production overhead expenditure,
and where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis
where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract whose
terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established
by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs except in the case of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are either investments
classified as held for trading or designated as at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition. These investments are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of these investments are recognised in profit or loss.

78 National United Resources Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2015

wH
FERKAEASEIFERERNEESA
BR o AR T IRINAEF R AES B o R R TE
HMBKABIERME BEESTIRAAEEE
KEUERZ RS BRZ (ER) -7l #3785
ER—REBKBEROETIHEEBREME
TRRARGHHERTEBRGE -

BARKLBEIATMITA
HARET TAARNGRRZNT  AleRE
EREETARMBERRERER -

REBMEERSREZCATHENER : AE
EEREERAE BRSO AREDH K
AEEMBERTMREEERAR 2B
SRR KB BT REEEZ bR %
IHREHEE-RIER - BEREER
BERHERCEERNEMEERKARRZE
WREAR R ER @M H 2 ZBNER

i8R & #IRT B 2 BAEMRERR - s s sR 20 B
RUIEREHEE - ERIEBREBRAERE
EEENREZZENERAER -

rE

HRBENMHENRESR  MREZREMNR
B T 5 7 A0 2R B SR 1B 3R A0 E M0 R R A XA
ZERE AFAKREGRR S A AL
TTRER R AR LR R A FEMEEE
ERSBATE RATEFABRZZEHME
EEBR Mo

BAFEFABRZEREEDNFEERELIR
VT ERBEERAFEFABR2RE %
EREERBATEAE - AZEREZATF
EEPMES 2 WA REE TR R AHE

7
at ©



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z —ZE—hF+ - A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
and are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the allowance is the difference between the
receivables’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition. The amount of the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and recognised in
profit or loss when an increase in the receivables’ recoverable amount
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of
the receivables at the date the impairment is reversed shall not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 3. ERSHEBE @

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to convert the bonds into
a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed conversion price are
regarded as compound instruments consist of a liability and an equity
component. At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debt. The fair value of any derivative features embedded in
the compound instruments is included in the liability component. The
difference between the proceeds of issue of the convertible bonds and
the fair values assigned to the liability component, representing the
embedded option for the holder to convert the bonds into equity of the
Group, is included in equity as capital reserve. The liability component is
carried as a liability at amortised cost using the effective interest method
until extinguished on conversion or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on their relative carrying
amounts at the date of issue. The portion relating to the equity
component is charged directly to equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B TS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ —ZE—HF+ - A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised and subsequently measured at fair
value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in profit or
loss as they arise.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration for the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the Group's activities.
Revenue is shown, net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts
allowed and after eliminating sales within the Group. Revenue is
recognised as follows:

(a) Revenues from the sales of goods are recognised on the transfer of
significant risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered and the title has passed
to the customers.

(b) Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

(c) Trading fees are recognised on a trade date basis.

(d) Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’'d)

Employee benefits (cont'd)

(b) Pension obligations
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a ceiling of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (before 1 June
2014: HK$25,000) and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution retirement
scheme organised by the government in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC"). The Group is required to contribute a specific
percentage of the payroll of its employees to the retirement scheme.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the retirement scheme. No
forfeited contributions may be used by the employers to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

(c) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments
The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and employees are
measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non market-based
vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of grant. The
fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest and
adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are measured at
the fair value of the services rendered or if the fair value of the services
rendered cannot be reliably measured, at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted. The fair value is measured at the date the Group
receives the services and is recognised as an expense.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ —ZE—HF+ - A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a capitalisation rate
to the expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted
average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 3. ERSHEBE @

Taxation (cont’'d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel of the Company
or of a parent of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ —ZE—HF+ - A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
Related parties (cont’d)

B

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(ili) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Company
or to a parent of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Impairment of assets
Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet available
for use are reviewed annually for impairment and are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except inventories,
investments, investment properties and receivables to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non—occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information
about the Group's position at the end of the reporting period or those
that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are
adjusting events and are reflected in the financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B TS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(cont’'d)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

(a)

(b)

88

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This required an estimation of the recoverable amount
(determined based on either fair value less costs of disposal or
value in use) of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. The estimated fair value less
costs of disposal is assumed to have no significant difference on
the price determined in an arm’s length transaction. The carrying
amount of goodwill at 31 December 2015 was HK$326,342,000 (31
December 2014: HK$5,245,000). Further details are set out in note
16 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ARSI B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z - ZE—hF+ - A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(cont’'d)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont'd)

()

(d)

(e)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of interests in
associates

Management judgment is required for assessing impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that
may indicate that the related carrying value of interests may not be
recoverable; and (ii) whether the carrying value of the interests can
be supported by the recoverable amount. Changing the estimations
used by management in assessing impairment could materially affect
the recoverable amount used in the impairment test and as a result
affect the Group's consolidated financial position and results of
operations. At the end of the reporting period, the carrying value of
interests in associates were approximately HK$208,944,000 (2014:
approximately HK$28,743,000).

Impairment of trade receivables, prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

The Group makes impairment loss on trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables based on assessments
of the recoverability of the trade receivables, prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgments and estimates.

Current income tax

Judgment is required in determining the provision for taxation. There
are many transactions and calculation for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the original course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact on the
current income tax in the periods in which the differences arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B TS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(cont’'d)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont'd)

()

(9)

Estimated useful lives and amortisation method of intangible
assets

The Group estimates useful lives of intangible assets based on
historical experience and estimates of the average economic life
of the customers base (relationship) taken into account certain
quantitative factors such as sale expectations, growth prospects and
renewal of contracts. The Group amortises the intangible assets
using the straight-line amortisation method. The Group believes this
method systematically reflects the pattern in which the economic
benefits of the intangible asset are consumed or otherwise used up.
Should the actual useful life of an asset differ from the estimated
useful life, future operating results could be positively or negatively
affected.

Derivative instruments — contingent consideration and profit
guarantee

In the calculation of the contingent consideration as part of the
consideration of the acquisition of subsidiaries (detail please refer
to note37(a)), it is the Directors’ judgment that the acquired
subsidiaries shall fully fulfill the profit guarantee based on the
actual result of the acquired subsidiaries. At 31 December 2015,
the fair value of the contingent consideration were approximately
HK$223,319,000.

5. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to

transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants

at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value

measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels

the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs:

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs:

90

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access
at the measurement date.

inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly.

unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

National United Resources Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ARSI B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z - ZE—hF+ - A=+—HILFE

5. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (cont'd) 5. AFEE @
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any REBZHEANENER  EHRBERE
of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances EHER-—EER2EAREL-

that caused the transfer.

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December 2015: @ MZZ-—AF+-_A=+—HZAFERE
BEL:
Fair value measurements using: Total
FRAATAFERESA2ATETE @
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2015
R E-R E=R “E-Ef
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TER
Recurring fair value KEBATEHE
measurements:
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value BRATEMABEZEREE
through profit or loss
- funds investment B KE 2,387 - - 2,387
Liabilities af
Derivative instruments PTETR - - 223,319 223,319
Total recurring fair value EEERTEFELEH
measurements 2,387 - 223,319 225,706
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities measured at fair value based on level 3: (b) REF=ZFRAFEFTEABZHE:
Derivative
instruments
fTETA
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 January 2015 R—ZE—RF—HA—H -
Issues BT 256,892
Total gains recognised in profit or loss REZERNFERE (33,573)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-—RE+-A=+—H 223,319
(#) Included gains or losses for liabilities HEERBERRFE AR WS REE
held at end of report period (33,573)
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B RS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

5. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (cont'd) 5. AVEE
(c) Valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value measurements at (€0 MZE—ARF+-_A=T—BRARAFE
31 December 2015: FTE 2 HERDT RE A RS
The Group's financial controller is responsible for the fair value AREBEZUKAEAERVBEREETE
measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial reporting ENBEATFEANE BEE=LHAFEE
purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements. The financial AR MEAEEERNESSERZEA
controller reports directly to the Board of Directors for these fair FEAE KGR EEegERLH
value measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and results HRAEERRELGER-
are held between the financial controller and the Board of Directors
at least twice a year.
For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally ME=FATFTEAEMS AEBBES
engage external valuation experts with the recognised professional AR HEER LT HEELR 2N
qualifications and recent experience to perform the valuations. HIEEERK
Level 3 fair value measurements E=RAFETE
Effect on Fair value
fair value as at
Valuation for increase 31 December
technique Inputs Range  of inputs 2015
BAYE RZZ-1F
BmEAYE +=A=T-H
Description R HERED BARE gE £ ZAYE
HK$'000
TER
Liabilities af
Derivative instruments PTETR Binomial option Share price HK$0.24 per share  Increase 223,319
pricing model
EABEEERE  RHER HRRo.24%T  EM
92 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %= =

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and has three reportable operating
segments:

Media and advertising — media and advertising

Resources trading —  trading of coking coal, aluminium rod and
fuel oil

Online platform — provision of online platform for the

trading and deferred spot delivery services
of precious metals

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted
profit/(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured
consistently with the Group's profit/(loss) before tax except that interest
and other income, finance costs, unallocated expenses, fair value gain of
derivative instruments, provision of prepayment as well as share of profits
and losses of associates are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents and other unallocated
assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude other borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax
liabilities and other unallocated liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, there were no
inter-segment sales.
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B TS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d)

(a) Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets and

6.

KESHER (®|)
(Q) TR HRATHEIE 25 ~ B S B I R

liabilities are summarised as follow: R
Online Media and Resources
platform advertising trading Total
B/LE¥E BEES ERES @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TER TER
Year ended BEZ-Z-nFf+-A=1+-H
31 December 2015 LEE
Revenue from external customers JRRINRE P 2 iz 20,234 24,826 337,729 382,789
Segment result DMEE 6,301 13,766 (18,826) 1,241
Interest income on bank deposits 81777 7 2 Al B WA 940
Other income Hi A 32,797
Unallocated expenses APERAX (71,820)
Loss from operations REER (36,842)
Finance cost Bh& AR (23,597)
Fair value gain of derivative MTETAZRATEYS
instruments 33,573
Provision of prepayment BRRERE (40,000)
Share of profits and losses of FEhEE AR RN REE
associates 3,728
Loss before tax Briip B (63,138)
Income tax expense FEHAX (1,968)
Loss for the year FRER (65,106)
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7 & K #5 925 5,784 5,610 12,319
Capital expenditure BARX 84,506 - 46,552 131,058
As at 31 December 2015 R-E-RF+-A=1+-H
Segment assets PHEE 431,890 100,083 664,413 1,196,386
Unallocated assets APEEE 754,648
1,951,034
Segment liabilities FHEE (4,875) (8,748) (100,199) (113,822)
Unallocated liabilities APEAE (883,940)
(997,762)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

E?J TR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z - ZE—hF+ - A=+—HILFE
6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'd) 6. RESIER (&)
(a) (cont'd) (@) (#)
Media and Resources
advertising trading Total
HEERES BERE S et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
Year ended BEz—_ZE—NmE
31 December 2014 +=A=+—BLEE
Revenue from external customers BRINARE 2838 30,872 334,004 364,876
Segment result o EBELE (3,740) 47,858 44,118
Interest income on bank deposits RITEZZF B WA 24
Other income b U A 8,912
Unallocated expenses KOBLH (93,213)
Loss from operations 4R ET 1R (40,159)
Finance cost Bl & Ak 2N (17,101)
Share of profits and losses of FEAG B & N B s M) 2 [E5 38
associates 419
Loss before tax [ F5 Al ES 1R (56,841)
Income tax expense PR F B~ (12,004)
Loss for the year FREIE (68,845)
Depreciation and amortisation e Y 5,825 188 6,013
Capital expenditure BARRS 1,167 703 1,870
As at 31 December 2014 R-FE—NE+=-A=+—H
Segment assets DEEE 135,513 478,849 614,362
Unallocated assets KO EE 98,027
712,389
Segment liabilities k= =R (15,438) (107,978) (123,416)
Unallocated liabilities KOBLBE (389,350)
(512,766)
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B RS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d) 6.
(b) Geographical information:
The Group’s revenue analysed by geographical location and
information about its non-current assets by geographical location
are detailed below:

KESHER (#)
(b) HEEH :

REBEZBEST 2 W RiRbEE S 2
FRBDEEZEHFBOT

Revenue Non-current assets
Uy 2% ERBEE
Year ended 31 December As at 31 December
BE+T-A=t-HLEE W+=-A=+—-8H

2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-AHF —T-@mF —E-h0fF —T-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TERT TET
Hong Kong BB - 51,883 30,858 8,306
PRC # 77,818 309,893 705,593 121,996
Mongolia e - 3,100 41,035 16,056
Singapore K 304,971 = - =
382,789 364,876 777,486 146,358

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based on the
locations of the customers.

(c) Information about major customers
Revenue from operations of approximately HK$304,971,000
(2014: HK$104,428,000, HK$78,603,000, HK$51,883,000 and
HK$41,550,000) was derived from one customer (2014: four
customers) in the resources trading segment which individually
contributed 10% or more to the Group's revenue for the year ended
31 December 2015.

252 E R - Was TR IR P Pt &)

4o

N

() XEXFEHR

¥ 75U 25 #49304,971,0008 T (ZF — Y
4 1 104,428,000/ 7T - 78,603,000/
JL* 51,883,000 JT 41,550,000/ 7T )
DREERESHHP—BEFL(ZZE
—NF:NERR) B PENEAER
HE-_ZT—RE+-_A=+—HILEEZ
U 2£10% 3k A E o

7. REVENUE

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold and the value of

iy

WaEFADEEm ERFERDIRERS

services rendered during the year. 2B
2015 2014
—2-HfF —E—mE
HK$000 HK$'000
FHEx FHET
Sales of goods HEEm 337,729 334,004
Media and advertising services income R K S RIS A 24,826 30,872
Trading service fee income B 5 RBERA 20,234 =
382,789 364,876
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # %= =

EEE T

EE+-_A=1+—HLLFE

OTHER INCOME 8. Hftlk A
2015 2014
—E-HE —PaF
HK$000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Bank interest income HITHE A 940 24
Net foreign exchange gain SNEE W 2 FFE 1,306 1,139
Bond interest income BEH A E KA 5,780 =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERE ARz K 11,356 -
Gain on disposal of an associate B E AR 2 ke 1,020 -
Gain on disposal of financial assets HEEATFESFABRZZ
at fair value through profit or loss & E 2 WS 12,706 6,886
Sundry income M A 629 887
33,737 8,936
FINANCE COST 9. BEMKA&
2015 2014
—E-HEF —Pa4F
HK$000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Bank charges RITER 73 467
Interest expenses on borrowings BRZFERE
— interest on convertible bonds — AR ES 2 FLE 1,458 390
— interest on non-convertible bonds — AR E % 2 F & 19,333 13,071
— interest on finance lease —REBEEZAE 195 160
— interest on receivable factoring without — — Ji& W% B i 18 (?ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁf)z
recourse arrangement PSS - 3,013
— interest on bank borrowings —RITIERZ A E 2,538 =
23,597 17,101
BRMADRRRARAT | Q7
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B TS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10.Fi B BB X
2015 2014
—E-RF = P
HK$000 HK$'000
TET FHEIT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BUERTR A — BB RSB

Provision for the year FAEE 472 9,602

Current tax — the PRC Enterprise Income Tax BN E3 % 18 — fp B (> 2 FR 187
Provision for the year FREAE 3,919 3,752
Deferred tax i T 7 1H (2,423) (1,350)
1,968 12,004

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax, the applicable

income tax rate of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC is 25% (2014:

25%).

The reconciliation between the income tax and profit before tax
multiplied by the Hong Kong profits tax rate is as follows:

EBFNEHOCEEFARBAEEZHTER
B AATE16.5% (ZE—MHE : 16.5% ) &t

St
= o
>t

RIEPBEMEMESHE  AEBEMAF R 2K
BRARZEAMBMEAR25% (ZF—MN4F:
25%) °

FR1S B ERRR T AR R RIA BB RSB R 2 iR
W

2015 2014
—E-HEF —E—WFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Loss before tax M5 A ES 1B (63,138) (56,841)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of BARMETERBIE16.5%
16.5% (2014: 16.5%) —ZT—HF 1 16.5%)
AR BE (10,418) (9,379)
Tax effect on share of profits and losses DIGEE R R BRI REBRZ
attributable to associates MG B (615) (69)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries RHBEZENB AR TRHE 2
operating in the PRC T (189) 399
Income not subject to tax BARBRBA (8,352) (1,199)
Expenses not deductible for tax R 9,756 19,674
Tax losses not recognised RERTIEEE 11,786 2,578
1,968 12,004
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11.LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Notes to the Financial Statements

ARSI B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z - ZE—hF+ - A=+—HILFE

1M1.FREE

The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging the following:

REBFABEDENRTIISE

2015 2014
—E-HF —E-MmEF
HK$000 HK$'000
FTHExT FHET
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKA 327,249 255,597
Depreciation e 9,471 2,241
Amortisation of intangible assets T 6,120 5,400
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B & 880 710
Minimum lease payments under operating St T SEIRBLEEHOEN 2
lease in respect of: HIRAEKIE
- land and buildings — i RIEF 8,788 10,244
— office equipment o N 27 56
— outdoor billboards — B INE &S IR 4,910 14,561
13,725 24,861
Staff costs (including Directors’ BIXRAK (BIEEEMHE)
remuneration):
— salaries, bonuses and allowances — & fEARERL 27,069 24,242
— equity-settled share option expenses —EmAEERERS - 27,702
— retirement benefits scheme —RRTE A E S AR
contributions 925 625
27,994 52,569
BREt S ERIZERER AR 99
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z —ZE—hF+ - A=+—HILFE

12.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

1.EEHE

BIRE ETARA FERAUEHIFE383(1)(a)
b) OEOERLR (REEEMNRER) R

PIE2HMBEBEZFANEEHBSMAT

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE=EM <
2015
ZE-EF
Equity- Retirement
settled benefit
Salaries and  share option scheme
Fees allowances expenses contributions Total
DRREHE RIKER
e FeREH BRERX T B @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TERT TET TER
Executive directors HTEE
Yang Fan** BR** 1,000 - - - 1,000
Lo Ka Wai ERE 3,000 - - - 3,000
Feng Yong Ming K 2,450 - - - 2,450
Tang Lap Chin, Richard** B A ** 3 - - - 3
Aminbuhe** Py g 5 ¢ 176 - - - 176
Li Hui* ES 893 - - - 893
Tian Songlin* AR 893 - - - 893
Non-executive directors ~ FHTEE
Mou Ling 2% 980 - - - 980
Yang Liu* g 417 - - - 417
Independent non-executive B FHTEES
directors
Wang Qun pak 3 214 - - - 214
Chow Hiu Tung** B R+ 38 - - - 38
Yang Zhi Shu Pl 214 - - - 214
Lai Ho Man, Dickson* R 158 - - - 158
10,436 - - - 10,436

1 OO National United Resources Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z —ZE—HF+ - A=+—HILLFE

12.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (cont'd) 12.EEM& @
(a) Directors’ emoluments (cont’'d) (a) EEM L (&)
2014
—Z-|mE

Equity- Retirement

settled benefit

Salaries and share option scheme
Fees allowances expenses contributions Total

NEmEE RIKER
ko e RoRb FERIER STEIH R wt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET THT TET FTET

Executive directors TEE

Yan Fan*** 15 L x** 2,400 = = = 2,400
Lo Ka Wai ERE 2,400 - 3,451 - 5,851
Feng Yongming* oK 600 = 3,451 - 4,051
Tang Lap Chin, Richard*** 5 ] R 5 - - - 3
Aminbuhe*** I 5 7 O+ 1,200 - 3,451 - 4,651
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph** BB g ** - - - - -

Non-executive directors  FHTEZS
Mou Ling 352 840 - - - 840

Independent non-executive B FHTES

directors

Wang Qun pas 3 175 - 288 - 463

Chow Hiu Tung*** BB x> 175 - 288 = 463

Yang Zhi Shu opd: 2 175 - 288 = 463

Li Ning Qiao** TR+ 73 - - - 73

Cheng Kwong Choi, Alexander** &} £ 7 ** 3 - - - 3

Tay Sheve Li** HEF*+ 10 - - 1 11
8,056 - 11,217 1 19,274

*  Appointed during the relevant year * REBRFEEEE

**  Resigned or retired during the relevant year * REMEEREIRME

*** Resigned after the end of the reporting year o RIEREFELEE A REHT

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or REBEEZT—AFE-_T—NF+=A

agreed to waive any remuneration in respect of the years ended 31 = t+—HLFE BECNESHRELR

December 2015 and 2014. EWMEEMME 2 28

BEREAERIERERAR] 101
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B TS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

12.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (cont’d)
(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year

N.EEME @

(b) IERESFMHES
ERNAEBRARSEMES RENA
(ZE-—mE:=g)EF AWM RB
RERSFIZHH-HB—%(—F—m
F ML) BEZMEIHMT

included 4 (2014: 3) directors whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the remaining 1
(2014: 2) individual set out below:

2015 2014

—ZE-afF —ET-WF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Salaries, allowances and benefit-in-kind ¥4 - 85 R E W HZ 1,157 2,210
Equity-settled share option N mEEERERS - 6,236
Retirement benefit costs RORAE AR AR 18 11
1,175 8,457

The number of employees whose remuneration fell within the
following band is as follows:

MenF T oEEz2EEARMT:

2015 2014

—E-afF —T—F

HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T % 1,500,000/% 7T 1 =
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T %£4,500,000% 7T - 2
1 2

No emoluments had been paid by the Group to the Directors or
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

13.LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF

THE COMPANY

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$64,413,000 (2014: HK$68,647,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 4,768,113,871
(2014: 3,302,570,355, as adjusted to reflect the open offer in July 2015)
in issue during the year.

Diluted earning per share

No diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014 is presented as the effects of all convertible bonds and options are
anti-dilutive for the years.

1 02 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ARSI B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z - ZE—hF+ - A=+—HILFE

14.DIVIDENDS 14. R 8
The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect FESTEBRENEBEE_ZE—AF K=
of the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. FTZRA=+T—BIEFEZEMRKRE -
15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15.9%¥ BMERKE
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
Leasehold office Computer vehicle
Yacht improvements  equipment equipment and trucks Total
B -£ER
ERE  AENELE WRERE BIRE REREE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT
Cost: BAE:
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-m&—A—R - 1,201 780 250 2,798 5,029
Additions NE = 1,175 423 268 4,497 6,363
Exchange differences ERZRE - (3) (1) (1) = (5)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZZE—-WEF=ZA=+—-HR
—Z-1%—-f-AH = 2,373 1,202 517 7,295 11,387
Additions NE 13,647 = 662 51 739 15,099
Disposals HeE - - - - (26) (26)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEH B AR = 199 978 = 47,082 48,259
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - - (85) (36) (1,442) (1,563)
Exchange differences ERZRE - (64) (53) (13) (48) (178)
At 31 December 2015 R-B-1§+-A=1+-A 13,647 2,508 2,704 519 53,600 72,978
Accumulated depreciation: RHE
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-EE—A—R - 67 390 21 743 1,221
Charge for the year FRZ M = 636 191 98 1,316 2,241
Exchange differences ERZR - 1 1 - = 2
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 R=ZF—-EE+=A=+—-HE
—Z-1%-A-AH = 704 582 119 2,059 3,464
Charge for the year FRTH 1,580 715 260 130 6,786 9,471
Disposals HE - - - - (24) (24)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - - (81) (23) (1,118) (1,222)
Exchange differences ERZER = (20) ) () (12) (39)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-RE+-A=t+-H 1,580 1,399 759 221 7,691 11,650
Carrying amount: REE:
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-RF+=-A=t+-H 12,067 1,109 1,945 298 45,909 61,328
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-RmE+=A=1+—-H - 1,669 620 398 5,236 7,923

BEREAERIERERAR]
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B RS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

16.GOODWILL 16.F &
2015 2014
—E-RF —TmF
HK$000 HK$'000
FTERT FHEIT
Cost: B

At 1 January n—H—H 1,252,228 1,252,228

Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries W B M B A R E A (M 5E37(a))

(note 37(a)) 326,342 -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37(b)) HEKE AR (MsE37(b)) (1,252,228) =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 326,342 1,252,228
Accumulated impairment losses: REHREES
Impairment loss recognised at 1 January R—A—BERZBEERE 1,246,983 1,246,983
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37(b)) HEH B AR (MEE37(b)) (1,246,983) =
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H - 1,246,983
Carrying amount: BRTEFE ¢
At 31 December R+—-—R=+—H 326,342 5,245

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition,
to the cash generating units (“CGUs") that are expected to benefit from
that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had been

allocated as follows:

REBAHPREZHEERNRERDEER
HEXEREBaHNReELSENM ([Re
EEEA]) BHBZEREESEBERAT

2015 2014
—B-AfF —E-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
Online platform for the trading and WETERRHEESBEIR
deferred spot delivery services of IR E AR AT AR 75
precious metals 326,342 -
Media and advertising services HEESE RS
— outdoor billboards —FINEER - 5,245
326,342 5,245

1 04 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z —ZE—HF+ - A=+—HILLFE

16.GOODWILL (cont’'d)

Online platform for the trading and deferred spot delivery
services of precious metals

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the recoverable amount of this
CGU is determined based on the value in use using discounted cash flow
method (level 3 fair value measurements). The key assumptions for the
discounted cash flow method are those regarding the discount rates,
growth rates and budgeted gross margin and revenue during the period.
The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on long-term average
economic growth rate of the geographical area in which the businesses
of the CGUs operate. Budgeted gross margin and revenue are based on
past practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five years with
the residual period using the growth rate of 3%. This rate does not
exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows is 15%.

16. & (@)

AEFERUBESBEIRREENX
e AR 7%
BE_Z-—AF+-A=+—HBILFE Z}
SELBM 2RO S EIREERBEERA
HRReRELEE (F=RA2FEFE) -
HBRRERBENIZRISRPBRE R
REEEENRBAAKE - AEERARRE
BHisHEERHENTEONAILLRERS
EEBMNEERRE  GERREERERT
ARG E A B EBREMERN RN R
BRBERR QAR -REEN R TIRE
BEFBRETSEROER-

7 4 4P B R SR R A B B A
BEE NG E SRR ERI%ERAS T
SR - LU KT AR T
B %o

MRBRARESREMEAMIEIRERI5% °

BEREAERIERERAR]
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17.8FEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHEx FHEIT
Cost: RN :
At 1 January n—HA—H 108,000 108,000
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 37(a)) W EE KM B A Al (FiFE37(a)) 82,120 =
Exchange difference VE W Z=RE (57) =
At 31 December R+=—RA=+—8H 190,063 108,000
Accumulated amortisation: Ret#e:
At 1 January ®—A—H 5,850 450
Provided during the year RERNE BE 6,120 5,400
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H 11,970 5,850
Carrying amount fREE
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8H 178,093 102,150
The carrying amount of the intangible BEEEZEREBEINAT :
assets are analysis as below:
Customer relationships EFER&
Online platform WEFE 79,333 =
Media and advertising HEES 96,750 102,150
176,083 102,150
Computer software B
Online platform ®/EFE 2,010 -
178,093 102,150

The Group’s customer relationships are used for generating of the
Group's services income and computer software are used for generating
of the Group's trading fee income. The average remaining amortisation
period of the customer relations and the computer software are 18.5

years (2014: 19 years) and 6.6 years respectively.

1 06 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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RS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z —ZE—HF+ - A=+—HILLFE

(ABGRRIFAERAR)

BREEERERERAR

18.SUBSIDIARIES 18. M 2 A
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are as follows: MBARIR-_ZT—RF+T-A=+—HZFE
LUNNE

Place of Nominal

incorporation/ value of

registration issued/paid Percentage of equity Principal
Name and operation up capital  attributable to the Company activities

EMAYLERE B®1T/
£ EEWY BEHEAEE ARREEERERD L TEXH

2015 2014
—E-1F —Z-QmF
Direct subsidiaries:
EEMEAR:
Konmate Investments Ltd Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
EXREBERAA BE QBT RERR
Konwide Development Limited* Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% Inactive
BRERERAF" BE QBT TEXE
Noble City (Asia) Limited* Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% Investment holding and
provision of consulting
services

BIE (M) BR A BE 25T BB R RAR B R AR
BEARBEREFRAR PRC US$50,000,000 100% 100%  Inactive

hE 50,000,000% 7 LEXS
Asia Construction International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
TMERERERAR Bh 18T LY
Trade Rainbow Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
TEERRA Bh 18T LEXS
Billions Achieve Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
fEBRRE Bh 18T LY
Asia Construction Enterprise Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100% 100% Inactive

("BVI")
THERCEERAR EBERAKS 50,000% T EEG
((RBERHS])
NUR Industry BVI US$1 100% 100% Inactive
Company Limited (formerly known
as Glory Gain Global Limited)

ARBAEREZERAR RERAEE E EEG
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

18.SUBSIDIARIES (cont’d)

18. i B 2 &) (@)

Place of Nominal
incorporation/ value of
registration issued/paid Percentage of equity Principal
Name and operation up capital  attributable to the Company activities
SR TR R B/
£ EENEY BEHEAEE AAREEERED L TEEXH
2015 2014
—E2-1% —Z-|mF
NUR Financial Holdings Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100% Inactive
ARBAEReRERERAT RERAS 127 TEXHG
Indirect subsidiaries:
BENEAR:
Welchem Development Limited* Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% Inactive
ERERARAA" BE 28T TEEXHG
China New Media Company Ltd Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
PEHERARAA BE 28T RERR
China New Media (HK) Company Ltd Hong Kong HK$100 51% 51% Provision of media
management and
consulting services
REHEE (FE)ARAR Bk 100/ 7T REERERRER RS
L&L Partners' Limited* BVI US$29,868 - 100% Investment holding
RRRNES 29,868% 7T RERR
Shanghai Winmedia Advertising PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100% Provision of outdoor media
Media Co., Ltd.* advertising services
FERHESERBRAR HE ARE REPIMERESRE
5,000,0007T
GMG Media Group Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100% Investment holding and
provision of consulting
services
EREXHS (EH RERR R ERE RS
ERTHBESHAERAA PRC U$100,000 100% 100%  Inactive
HE 100,000% T TEEXHG
EREFEEREERAR PRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of chain
broadcasting advertising
networks and media related
services
HE ARE RUESHERRSREREE
5,000,0007T BBRS

1 08 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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18.SUBSIDIARIES (cont’d)

Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z —ZE—HF+ - A=+—HILLFE

18./1 B A &) (@)

Place of Nominal
incorporation/ value of
registration issued/paid Percentage of equity Principal
Name and operation up capital  attributable to the Company activities
SRR MR B8/
£ EENEY BEHEREE AAREEERAD L TEEH
2015 2014
—E-1F —E-mF

Ideal Honour Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding

FRBERAE 3 18T BEER

NUR Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive

AXBEEREEARAA Bk 18T TEEH

Placid Expression Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100% Investment holding

SBRAHS 1% RERR

First Concept Industrial Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Trading and logistics services
(formerly known as First Concept
Logistics Limited)

BEEEERERAR B% 18T L5 RN RS
(FIBElEMRBRAE)

LRBEEEBRAR PRC HK$70,000,000 100% 100%  Investment consultancy and
(formerly known as corporate planning services
IWREIEREZAFRAR)

(ABLRAEREZABRAR) HE 70,000,000% 7T REFARCEREIRE

ATEEREEERAR PRC RMB500,000 100% 100%  Advertising and information

consultancy services
T ARH500,0007T BEEER EERARE
EREEEREEERERAR PRC RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Asset and investment
management services
HE ARE EERREERRE
20,000,0007T

Dengyi Investments Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100% Inactive

BREREBRARA RBRAS (B RS

Million Best International Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Management services
Enterprise Limited

EEEBRCEERAA BE 18T EER%

NUR Clean Energy Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Trading
(formerly known as Power Sky
International Enterprise Limited)

BREAERFRERREBERAR B% 18T 85
(FIBERARCEERAR)

LRERERE S ERA A PRC RMB20,000,000 100% 100% Trading

HE ARE 85
20,000,0007C

AREHMERERERAR PRC RMB30,000,000 60% 60%  Inactive

HE AR TEXHG
30,000,0007T

Amazing Idea Global Limited BVI US$1 100% - Inactive

PEREBRAA RERUEE (E TEEG

BREEERERERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

18.SUBSIDIARIES (cont’d) 18. i B 2 &) (@)

110

Place of Nominal
incorporation/ value of
registration issued/paid Percentage of equity Principal
Name and operation up capital  attributable to the Company activities
SR TR R B/
£ EENEY BEHEAEE AAREEERED L TEEXH
2015 2014
—E2-1% —Z-|mF
NUR Internet Investment Limited (formerly BVI Us$1 100% - Inactive
known as Lead Best Global Limited)
BXBeEREBRRERRAT RERUES (E TEEHG
(MBEERIKBRAR)
2% (L) REERBRAT PRC RMB1,000,000 100% - Inactive
HE AR 1,000,000 TEEXHG
T
Glorious Future Logistics Limited BVI US$100 100% - Inactive
BENRERAA HEALHS 100%72 EaLi
iFrontier LLC Mongolia US$100,000 95% - Provision of transportation
services
5 100,000% 7T RELEERYE
NUR Investments Company Limited BVI Us$1 100% = Inactive
AXBEERRERRRAA RERAES 1% TEXG
ERAR RS EERERRA A PRC RMB1,000,000 100% - Inactive
i ARE 3
1,000,0007C
ETMERBEBERAA PRC RMBS,000,000 51% - Processing and trading of
aluminum
i N EMIRES
8,000,0007T
BE (L) REEEERAT PRC HK$1,000,000 100% - Trading and investment
consultancy services
i 1,000,0007% 7T ZHRBEBERRYE
Million Fortune International BVI US$10,000 70% = Investment holding
Investment Limited
REARREFTRAR RRRNES 10,000% 7T RERR
Most Billion Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 70% = Investment holding
BEBEBRAA BE 1B REER
Well Link Logistics co., Ltd. Macau MOP$100,000 70% - Investment holding
ERNRERAF R 100,0002F9 7 RERR
EERSEREELAERAT PRC HK$500,000 70% - Investment holding
i 500,000/ 7T REER
FTRESERRXSTL (BE)BERAR PRC RMB10,000,000 63% - Operate platform
(formerly known as
EBELELER ST LERAR)
(FIEEEHEECBR P L HE IN: g2¥a
BRAR) ([FhEL]) 10,000,0007C

= Disposed during the year ended 31 December 2015 (note 37(b))
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z —ZE—HF+ - A=+—HILLFE

18.SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd) 18.F & 2 A (&)
The following table shows information of subsidiaries that have non- TRIWRANEB A IR ([FEIEpiE
controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The summarised H I ZHBRABIZER -PHERBMEIEA A
financial information represents amounts before inter-company BRI - K
eliminations.
Name %8 PRES
2015 2014
—ZE—EHF —ZE—EF
Principal place of business/country of FTEEEMY AFMRTER PRC PRC
incorporation H H
% of ownership interests/ e e SR ok Y N/A
voting rights held by NCI KRERBDL 37%/37% TiE A
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHET
At 31 December: R+=ZA=+-—8:
Non-current assets FERBEE 84,137 =
Current assets TENE E 27,601 =
Current liabilities e TEIR=R (7,975) =
Non-current liabilities mEN B & (19,105) =
Net assets BEFE 84,658 =
Accumulated NCI R IR S 31,323 =
Year ended 31 December: BEt+t-A=+—HLEE:
Revenue 1 & 20,234 =
Profit a5 ) 5,221 -
Total comprehensive income Hih2mElA 3,513 =
Profit allocated to NCI DB E IR =S 2 5 T 1,932 =
Dividends paid to NCI BRI RS 2 R E - =
Net cash generated from operating activities #& & &8,/ Fi15 2 IR & F58 1,572 =
Net cash generated from investing activities & & &S,/ B 2R & /F5 1,378 =

Net cash generated from financing activities @& &8, Fi15 2R & F 58 - =

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3R&NMERIIRESEE 2B INFHE 2,950 =

BEREAERIERERAR] 1 1 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

19.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19.RBEAT 2R
2015 2014
—Z-1fF —ET-MmF
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Unlisted investments: JEEMIRE
Share of net assets DIREEFE 205,435 28,368
Goodwill kS 3,509 375
208,944 28,743
The following table shows information of associates that are material TR AEBBEAZHE AT Z2EH -
to the Group. These associates are accounted for in the consolidated ZEBME N T NGEMIBHRRIAERS I EARR -
financial statements using the equity method. The summarised financial 2% B EERE NRIBE S AT 2 EE
information presented is based on the HKFRS financial statements of the & R 22 S BB 76 SR 5% o
associates.

Fortune Union Financial
Holdings (Asia Pacific) Limited
and its subsidiaries
Fortune Union Financial Holdings

Name =E (Asia Pacific) Limited & H [{ & 2 7
2015 2014
—2-hfE —E—mE
Principal place of business/ FEEEMS AMRTER PRC PRC
country of incorporation i Fh

Principal activities FEEK

% of ownership interests/ ety e R X ok X N/A
voting rights held by NCI KREEBADL 26.32%I/26.32% T#EMA

1 1 2 National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z —ZE—HF+ - A=+—HILLFE

19.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (cont’d)

20.

19. 8Bt E DA 2 R (|)

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F&T
At 31 December: R+=—B=+—8:
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,685 -
Current assets MEEE 730,439 =
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (3,938) =
Current liabilities RBEE = -
Net assets EEFE 729,186 =
Group's share of net assets REBSh2EEFE 191,922 =
Goodwill GES 3,134 =
Group's share of carrying REBEN Mz EREREE
amount of interests 195,056 -
Year ended 31 December: BEt+t-A=+—HLEE:
Revenue U == 18,641 =
Profit i ) 19,420 =
Other comprehensive loss Hih 2 HEE (19,208) -
Total comprehensive income ZEKALE 212 =
Dividends received from associates B Uk HE & R R AR B - =

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share of the

amounts of all individually immaterial associates that are accounted for

using the equity method.

TRINRAEEEIEAA ERETNER 2B
NA] (AERIEARR) CRB Do

2015 2014
—E-HEF —ZE—pOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHE T
At 31 December: Rt+t=-—HA=+—8:
Carrying amounts of interests e mREE 13,888 28,743
Year ended 31 December: BZE+=-ZA=1t—HILEE:
(Loss)/profit (B18) /%7 (1,383) 419
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hib2m (BE) KA (635) 7
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2m (B8 WARLRE (2,018) 426
INVENTORIES 2078
2015 2014
—E-RfF T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT F&T
Merchandises 4 o 5,325 =

BREEERERERAR

2015F F 11 3
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21.

22.

114

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group's trading terms with customers are mainly on credit or
received in advance. The credit period is generally 30-180 days. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
so as to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by the Directors. The Group has concentration of credit risk on certain
customers. As at 31 December 2015, one (31 December 2014: three)
customers attributable to the Group’s total trade receivables were 94 %
(31 December 2014: 95%). The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancement over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing.

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

21. B E 5 X

REBETP ZEFBRAEZURKRITES
FETT  EEH— M A302180H - AEEEK
NEBEEEHREERRKFBEUNZEREESE
B -EFTEHRTBER T LS AEEH
EERBREFRETEF R-Z—AF+=
A=+—H8 —&(ZE—WmF+=ZA=+—
B:=R)BFELASERKE I RBEZ
94% (ZZ—MWE+=-A=+—H:95%) °
RNEEIW B EEINE 5 R E T E TMEA
M fE L HA S B ME S - BE S RL A

FHE-

EWE S TIREZ AR ZRESITAT :

2015 2014

—E-RF =% P

HK$000 HK$'000

TET FHET

Within 30 days =+HBA 9,492 -
31-60 days =+—HZ/+H 9,477 9,367
61-90 days AT—HEAT+H - 6,209
Over 90 days but within 1 year BRNLTBELR—F 304,971 15,174
Over 1 year BiE—F 1,382 1,739
Less: Impairments B ORE - -
325,322 32,489

As of 31 December 2015, trade receivables of HK$1,382,000 (2014:
HK$32,489,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of
default.

BONDS RECEIVABLE

On 2 April 2015, the Group subscribed a 11% coupon bonds of an
aggregate principal amount of HK$70,000,000. The bonds carry interest
at 11% per annum and mature for redemption in April 2016.

National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015

22.

R-—ZT—FF+=-_A=+—H" 1,382,000
TZREWEZH (—Z— 4 32,489,000/
7)) B @ B R E - s F R IE B % F i BN
BEENCENBLIEL,AR-

PE Uk &

R-ZE—AFNA—B AEERELRLEHE
= #£70,000,0008 T2 11 % ZEEXREH - EFH
BREFE11 % ERR =T —/NFW A S H8E
@ °



Notes to the Financial Statements

B TS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ —ZE—HF+ - A=+—HILFE

23.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

23.FANRE -BEREMEKRRE

RECEIVABLES
Notes 2015 2014
K et —E—EHF —ZET—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amount due from associates JiE L B o 1 B FRIE (a) 24 24
Amounts due from a non- JE YR BT /BB 1 B — B FE TR AR
controlling shareholder of a AR R IE
subsidiary (a) 14,324 15,128
Deferred expenses JEIE A 2,143 2,557
Other receivables H b fE U A 64,492 45,480
Paid in advance FEAS SRR (b) 271,380 428,944
Prepayments and deposits TR RIB RIR® 31,484 52,789
383,847 544,922
Impairment B - (14,259)
Provision of prepayment TET R (40,000) =
343,847 530,663

(a)

The amounts due from associates and non-controlling shareholders
of a subsidiary are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
repayment terms.

The Group paid in advance to the supplier for the trading of
resources business. During the year ended 31 December 2014, First
Concept Industrial Group Limited (formerly known as First Concept
Logistics Limited (“First Concept”)), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company paid US$11,500,000 (equivalent to HK$89,700,000)
(the “Advanced Payment”) in respect of a coal supply agreement
with SouthGobi Sands LLC (“SGS"). SGS supplied no coal and did
not refund the Advanced Payment to First Concept. On 24 June
2015, First Concept served a notice of arbitration to seek the
Advanced Payment from SGS (Details please refer to note 39(c)). A
provision of prepayment of HK$40,000,000 was made during the
year ended 31 December 2015 on the Advanced Payment.

JRE U ESE 5 N R K2 BT JB8 1 B SEHE AR AR R BRIR
AEIEE 8 K 3 B R SR -

AEBERERESEFREEFEN
HE-REBEE-_T—NONF+-_A=+—
BEFE BIABEESBEERAA (A
BaltraERAR) ([AL]) (K
NalE2BWEBRR)MESouthGobi
Sands LLC ([SGS )&y fR K L FE 1 2
£11,500,0003% 7t (48 & 789,700,000
Bor) ([TERFRIE]) o SGSREEHELE
BB AREEREBENREBETAL RN
T—RAFANAZTHEA AL HE
A LAZRSGSEMFIE (F1EHE 26
Mi3E39(c)) - REBE-_T—HF+_-A
=+—HIEFE BRBEMRBEIRREE
40,000,000/ 7T °

BEREAERIERERAR]
20155 F

115



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

24,

25.

26.

116

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

2. B AFEFTAEZZEMEE

2015 2014

—Z-0fF —E-F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Market value of funds investment HELEZME 2,387 =

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND CASH
BALANCES

The Group’s pledged bank deposits represented deposits pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group as set out in note
29 to the financial statements. The deposits are in HK$ and Renminbi
("RMB") which are at fixed interest rates of 1.35% p.a. and 3.00% p.a.
respectively.

As at 31 December 2015, the bank and cash balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$46,028,000 (2014:
HK$1,414,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

TRADE PAYABLES
The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

z&Eﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ
}

AEBEDEFRITFERIERRTEBESAE
EEERBITREZRBZER (BRPHH
KHIFE29) - FRABTRARE (ARKE])
SHE IR B E 4 FI 2R 1.35% K& FF L3.00%5t
H o

R-E—RAF+-_A=+—H AEEUAR
KeHE 2 8R1T MIE & # 15 546,028,000 7T
— T — P4 1,414,000 ) - ARBE H 15
AEME®AEZRBEINEE HIERMR -

RITIR S IREE HRITE RN R 2 F A=
RENFR - RITAF D F RN RO EE DR
BRAGERFZRIT

26. BHE 5 X

REHZAHZENEZREEITWAT

2015 2014
—E-HEF —T—POF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHBT

Within 30 days =+HR 5,366 1,954
Over 90 days but within 1 year RN THELR—F - 82,170
Over 1 year tBiE—F 67,890 =
73,256 84,124

National United Resources Holdings Limited
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27.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

28.

29.

27. HERRERETE R

2015 2014
—E—EHF —ZET-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Other payables H A FE R~ 5B 18,288 20,410
Receipt in advance B FRIE 23,560 23,450
Accruals Est & A 15,118 20,445
56,966 64,305

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 28.0TETH
2015 2014
—E-RE —ZT—UEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE T

Contingent consideration (Note 37(a)) HARE (FIzE37(a))

At the date of recognition REER B H 256,892 =
Fair value gain of derivative instruments PMETAZAFERR (33,573) =
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 223,319 =

The fair value of the Group's derivative instruments at 31 December
2015 and at the date of recognition has been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that date by an independent professional valuer,
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited. The assumed fair value has been

arrived at using Binomial Lattice Model.

AEEZOTETAR-_ZS—hFE+-_A=+—
B KR A # 2 X FETREE T ER M (ERM
BERTARARRZAETZEEMSH -
BERRAFERTER ZHEAREHEL-

BORROWINGS 29. 58
2015 2014
—E-1fF —T—mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
Vendor’s Loan EHEXK = 20,000
Bank loan RITE R 225,218 11,346
Other loans HER 26,555 15,127
251,773 46,473

All borrowings are repayable on demand or within one year.

FEEEARERK—FRER-

BEREAERIERERAR] 1 1 7
20155 F
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29.BORROWINGS (cont’'d)

The average interest rates at 31 December were as follows:

29. 58 (#m)

R+=A=+—B2FHAERMT

2015 2014

—E-AfF —TmF

Vendor’s Loan BEHER Nil & Nil 4%
Bank loan (1) FRITEROM 4.35% 12%
Bank loan (2) RITERQ) 4.07% Nil 4=
Other loans HE R Nil & Nil 4%

The bank loan is secured by a charge over the Group's pledged bank
deposits (Note 25).

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement for the acquisition
of entire equity interest in Placid Expression, the vendor advanced
an unsecured and interest free loan in the principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 to the Group (“Vendor's Loan") for working capital. The
Vendor's Loan are fully repaid during the year ended 31 December 2015

30.CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 25 November 2014, the Company issued a convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$30,000,000 which bear interest at a rate of 6%
per annum (the “2014CB"). The 2014CB are convertible at the option
of the bondholders into ordinary shares of the Company with 12 months
from the date of issue, at a conversion price of HK$0.23 per conversion
shares (subject to adjustment). And a maximum of 130,434,782
conversion shares can be issued. All the remaining 2014CB are converted
or redeemed during the year ended 31 December 2015. Thus the
balance for 2014CB on 31 December 2015 was nil.

On 27 October 2015, the Company issued a convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$65,735,900 which bear interest rate of 4.5% per
annum. (the “2015CB"). The 2015CB are convertible into ordinary shares
of the Company within 24 months from the date of issue at a conversion
price of HK$0.265 per conversion share (subject to adjustment), and a
maximum of 248,060,000 conversion shares can be issued.

On 10 November 2015, the Company issued a zero-coupon convertible
bonds in the principal amount of HK$120,000,000 (the “QDCB1") as
part of the consideration for the acquisition of 70% equity interest
in the entire issued share capital of Million Fortune International
Investment Limited. The QDCB1 are convertible into ordinary shares of
the Company at any time between the date of issue and its maturity
date at a conversion price of HK$0.40 per conversion share (subject to
adjustment), and a maximum of 300,000,000 conversion shares can be
issued. All the QDCB1 will be redeemed by the Company at par on 9
November 2018.

National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015

RITEFUAREBEERRITERZERER
HAR (BifFE25) »

1R 1% 5t W B8 Placid Expressionz 2 2 A% #£ 57

IZEE W

EHTRAAEEBRAEHE

20,000,000 T (EEF L2 E) ([BEHE
KPR EEBEES - BEHEREREBE-Z
—hFE+-_A=1t-—BILEERHEE-

30. /AR B 5
RZZE—ME+—A=-+HE AQFBETAE
4 %8 430,000,000 7T 2 AJ R EFH - HiRF
MEe%:T B ([ZE—MFEAIBEES]) - =
T-NEARRELFTIRESFAEARE:
RETRHES T —EARNERALAARE
AR EBREATRERRMN0.23E T (AT
FEE) - B A 1T130,434, 782 L EIARL 1D ©
BT NFAIBRRESE2BHREE=
TR+ -_A=t+-—BULFERNEHRLE
BB R—_FTE—hHF+=_A=+—H =
T-—MEBRBRESFZEHAET -

RZF—AF+A=Z+tH ARBETEAS
%A 465,735,900/8 70 2 Al AR & % - H IR F A
RAS%A B ([ZE—RAFARRES]) - =
T-—RAFBRBRESFTETHBRT =TT
BANERAAARLEAR BREATR
IR 190.2658 7T (A] THE) - & Z A E(T

248,060,000A% #H#A 17 -

RZB-—RF+—A+H ARAETALHE

#%120,000,0008 7T 2 F

ERABEES ([

SABEESF—])  FREBEERERES
RAREZMEETRAZ70%BERE 2 K
B -FEABERESF - AIRBTREANEE
HEHR R EERSARR T RR Hik
BRERERRMN0.40E T (A THE) - &%
7] #17300,000,0008% & # f% {7 » A 2 & K R
RZEB-NF+-ANBRAEECDRESS

ABERES— -
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30.CONVERTIBLE BONDS (cont'd) 30. AT R B & (40)
The liability component of convertible bonds recognised at the end of the NREBAREER 2 BREEZBESLS D
reporting period is analysed as follows: T
2014CB 2015CB QDCB!1 Total
— e —T—RF BEUHRR
AR & 5 R ES EH— BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
At date of issue RETHE
Nominal value of convertible B 17 ] i (& 4 m (&
bonds issued 65,736 120,000 185,736
Equity component s E (16,157) (51,933) (68,090)
Liability component RETEHRZBERD
at date of issue 49,579 68,067 117,646
Liability component =R E:1)
At 1 January 2014 RZZT—NFE—HA—H - -
At date of issue METBH 27,927 - - 27,927
Interest charged FERZ 390 = = 390
Interest payable classify to DEREMENFKIBZ
other payables FEAS FI] B (182) = = (182)
At 31 December 2014 and RZZT—NFE
1 January 2015 +ZA=+—HK
—ET—HRF—HA—H 28,135 - - 28,135
At date of issue REfTBH - 49,579 68,067 117,646
Converted into shares BB (27,913) (29,593) (27,011) (84,517)
Interest (reversed)/charged e (Em) X (389) 693 1,154 1,458
Interest reclassify from other  # H {th & {<f 718
payables B OB ZAE 182 = = 182
Repaid on maturity date REBPREER (15) - = (15)
Liability component at RZZE—RF+=A
31 December 2015 =t+t—RZzaEHs - 20,679 42,210 62,889

The interest charged for the year of 2015CB and QDCB1 are calculated
by applying an effective interest rate of 19.16% and 19.74% per cent to

—T-hFUBRREFREEABRRES -2
FAFMBFAZ I AED ’”\%Iﬁmﬁﬁw 16%

the liability component respectively. £19.74% BRI EFE

BEREAERIERERAR]
20155 F
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31.NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS

During the year, the Company issued seven (2014: thirty-two) 6% non-
convertible bonds (the “Bonds”) with a nominal value of HK$91,000,000
(2014: HK$212,000,000). The Bonds are redeemable at the discretion of
the Company at 100% of the principal amount of such Bonds together
with payment of interests accrued up to date of such early redemption
by serving at least ten calendar days written notice at any time before
the maturity date. The Bonds will be redeemed on the date immediately
following twelve to twenty-four months after the first date of issue of
the Bonds. The Bonds carry interest at a rate of 6% per annum, which is
payable annually in arrears.

1. A AR ES

FR AARETEH(ZE—NF:=+=
) T 8 A7$91,000,0007T (= & — [P0 4F :
212,000,000 7T) 2 6% 1 A] # jg & 5 ([ &
% ]) o BFHF AT AR B BB E H B AT Es
MErER L TEBRZEMREAN BERGHE
$2100% A BERBEREER A AR
ZHRBMFR - EHFERBEEESFETEBRR
+oE-+EEAEBAER - EHIRERR
6%:T B WAHEBFX e

2015 2014

—E-RF —TmF

HK$000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

At 1 January n—HA—H 229,326 20,860

Nominal value of the bonds issued RERNBITZESFEE

during the year 91,000 212,000

Directly attributable transaction costs HERERXR KA 5,220 (4,905)

Repayment B (68,500) -

Interest charged BB X 19,333 13,071
Interest paid or payable classify DR E M ER FKIBEH BT 5

to other payables FEASFI B (21,625) (11,700)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 254,754 229,326

Portion classified as current liabilities DEAERBAEBZED (243,959) (48,171)

Non-current portion ERBE D 10,795 181,155

1 20 National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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32.FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles. These leases are classified
as finance leases and have remaining lease terms of 3 to 5 years (2014: 4
years). The effective borrowing rates were ranging from 2.5% to 2.95%
(2014: 2.5% to 2.95%) per annum. The leases are on a fixed repayment
basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental
payment.

Minimum lease payments

N.ENMERERE

AEFEHEETABE - ZEHESEAREAM
ERBTHARIESF (ZT—WF 1 4F) -
BERZEBRFEMENF25%E2.95% (=T
—mE+-A=+—H:25%%2.95%) - H
ENETERAELEB T ERNATEMRET
S HE

Present value of
minimum lease payments

REASMAR EREEASHREMA
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-5f —T-mE —E-8% —T-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FRT FHET
Within one year —FR 1,138 973 980 794
In the second year BF_F 1,138 973 1,034 841
In the third to fifth years, FE=FRERF
inclusive (BEEEME) 1,553 2,115 1,493 1,993
3,829 4,061 3,507 3,628
Future finance charges RIRFE S H (322) (433) N/A RiE A N/A “3E
Present value of lease HEETZRE
obligations 3,507 3,628 3,507 3,628
Less: Amount due BRI2EARNEEZ
for settlement within FERTEIE (A
12 months (shown mEAE)
under current liabilities) (980) (794)
Non-current portion JEmENEB D 2,527 2,834

BEREAERIERERAR] 121
20155 F
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33.DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as follows:

BELEBEES

FRREFIEAGBZEEBMT

Fair value

adjustments
arising from
acquisition of

subsidiaries

L B /B 1 R

EEZAFEAR

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 January 2014 RZZT—NFE—H—H 26,888
Deferred tax credited to the statement of FFAFAEER ZELERIE (iE10)

profit or loss during the year (note 10) (1,350)

At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZTE—NE+_A=+—AHK

—T—hF—HF—H 25,538

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37(a)) W BBt 8 2 A (MY5E37(a)) 20,000
Deferred tax credited to the statement of FAFAERK Z2ELERIE (FFE10)

profit or loss during the year (note 10) (2,423)

Exchange differences EHER 11

43,126

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$88,618,000 (2014: HK$126,827,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

RBERR AEBEEARADARBERY
88,618,000/% 7T (=& — M4 : 126,827,000
FE L) TGRS R SO A - B R SR TR ORISR 3R
AR I BB REREERIRE

g o
34.SHARE CAPITAL 34. R 7
2015 2014
—E—REF —E—UF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAR:

5,873,770,500 (2014: 2,991,767,000) 5,873,770,5000% ( —Z — P04 :

ordinary shares 2,991,767,0000% ) & i@ A% 3,080,114 2,321,311

1 22 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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34.SHARE CAPITAL (cont'd) 34. R 7 (80
A summary of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company ANABBETRANEBBLMMAT -
is as follows:
Number of Share
shares issued capital
ERITROKE BR 2
‘000 HK$'000
F & FET
At 1 January 2014 R-ZZT—MNFE—H—H 2,602,307 130,115
Transition to no-par value regime RZE—NFE=A=HBEZ
on 3 March 2014 EEESE = 2,101,620
Issue of share BT 389,460 89,576
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-—NE+-A=+—HEK
1 January 2015 —E—hF—A—H 2,991,767 2,321,311
Shares issued upon exercise of TEERERETRG
share options 22,860 9,485
Shares issued pursuant to the BIBEAREBEERTRG Q)
open offer (a) 1,861,664 476,401
Conversion of convertible bond it A AR &5 (Ki5E30)
(note 30) 397,480 115,717
Shares issued pursuant to the RIRAR 1D 3R B 1T AR5 (b)
share subscription (b) 600,000 157,200
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+=-A=+—H 5,873,771 3,080,114
Notes: Pt EE -
(a) Open offer (a) "BARE
On 15 July 2015, the Company issued 1,861,663,500 shares in respect of the R-ZBE—RE+A+HEB BRE-_Z—REH
open offer on the basis of one offer share for every two shares in issue, at a A+ B ze#msE A2 AFHBER
price of HK$0.26 per share pursuant to the underwriting agreements dated 22 771,861,663,500f% i n  EEABHERMKE
May 2015. BITRMNER -RBEERD  REER/ER0.26
BT
(b) Share subscription (b) RHREBE
On 27 April 2015 and 11 May 2015, the Company issued 100,000,000 R-ZE—RAFWNA-++tBER-_Z—HFHA
shares and 500,000,000 shares respectively, at a price of HK$0.262 per +—H AATREBEARHA-ZT—RFNA /X
share under the general mandate granted to the Directors by a resolution of HREWMZIRB—REE(ETHEARRE
the independent shareholders of the Company passed at the extraordinary YRER—_ZE—FE—A+HLHBRITZART
general meeting of the Company held on 19 January 2015 pursuant to the BEEIAE FRB—EBEABRETES)D
subscription agreements both dated 16 April 2015. 5% 77100,000,0004% %2500,000,0000% A& 15

BB BT AR0.262/8 7T °

BEREAERIERERAR]
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35.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
a) Statement of financial position of the Company

5. RXREZHMBMRRARRAEE

a) RATZPBMRRE

2015 2014
—E-—EHfF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH& T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERY S 2,470 3,230
Club membership gMgE 150 150
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR 2IRE 465,403 465,403
Interest in an associate REEERR 2w - 11,645
468,023 480,428
Current assets HENEE
Bonds receivable JE W E % 75,780 -
Due from subsidiaries i N EENGIE S 1,165,740 271,705
Prepayments, deposits and TER IR ~ 1R & B H Ath fE W 1B
other receivables 7,020 7,482
Pledged bank deposits EEBIRITFR 200,000 -
Cash and bank balances Re MRITER 97,213 484
1,545,753 279,671
Current liabilities REEE
Due to subsidiaries JE £ BT /BB X A R 390,000 390,000
Other payables and accruals Hih A RS E A 14,354 16,483
Derivative instruments TETA 223,319 -
Other borrowings HEEE 195,673 5,550
Convertible bonds R E 5 - 28,135
Non-convertible bonds AR I E & 243,959 48,171
Finance lease payables FE A< B A FH B KB 686 646
1,067,991 488,985
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE(&E)FE 477,762 (209,314)
Total assets less current BEERABDEE
liabilities 945,785 271,114
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Convertible bonds R E 5 62,889 =
Non-convertible bonds AR I E 10,795 181,155
Finance lease payables FE B E R EIE 1,760 2,446
75,444 183,601
NET ASSETS EEFE 870,341 87,513
Capital and reserves R & &
Share capital & 75 3,080,114 2,321,311
Reserves M (2,209,773) (2,233,798)
TOTAL EQUITY mER 870,341 87,513
Approved by: EEE S
Lo Ka Wai Li Hui
EEE =18
Director Director
EF EF
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ —ZE—HF+ - A=+—HILFE

35.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (cont'd)
b) Reserves of the Company

5. K RAl 2 BMRRERRRAEE @

b) XQATFZHE

Equity
Share-based component of
Share payment convertible Accumulated
premium reserve bonds losses Total
UkBE  TRREHZ
RHEE EBERARZHEE EEHH E ] G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THT THT THT FTHT
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE-—NE—F—H 2,101,620 18,671 - (2,177,791) (57,500)
Total comprehensive income FRZE WA B
for the year - - - (103,328) (103,328)
Transition to no-par value ~ RZ=ZT—ME=H=H
regime on 3 March 2014  BEZEEMEEE (2,101,620) = = = (2,101,620)
Issue of convertible bonds 1T A[ R EH - - 948 - 948
Transaction costs related to BB AREE 2 X FHMA
the open offer - 27,702 - - 27,702
At 31 December 2014 and H=-Z—-MNE+—-A
at 1 January 2015 =+-8k
—E-hF—f—H - 46,373 948 (2,281,119) (2,233,798)
Total comprehensive loss ~ FRZEFBAZ
for the year - - - (9,895) (9,895)
Lapsed of share options TEBRERETRR - (4,155) - 4,155 S
Shares issued upon exercise 17 { B iR % /7 1
of share options - (2,970) - - (2,970)
Equity component of ARRES EREH
convertible bonds - - 68,090 - 68,090
Conversion of BRABRES
convertible bonds - - (31,200) - (31,200)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—hE
+-A=+t—H - 39,248 37,838 (2,286,859) (2,209,773)
BREt S ERIZERER AR 'I 25
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35.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (cont'd)
c¢) Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group
(i) Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of
the actual or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to the eligible participants recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for equity-settled share-
based payments in note 5 to the financial statements.

(ii) Equity component of convertible bonds
The equity component of convertible bonds represents the
value of the unexercised equity component of convertible bonds
issued by the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for convertible bonds in note 5 to
the financial statements.

(iii) Foreign currency translation reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 5 to the
financial statements.

36.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Share option scheme adopted in 2002

On 25 July 2002, a share option scheme was adopted by the Company
(the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to which the Board may
grant options to any employees, directors, shareholders, suppliers,
customers of the Group and any other person or company who has
contributed or may contribute to the development and growth of the
Group to subscribe for shares in the Company at any price which is at
least the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company on
the date of the grant of the options; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the grant of the options; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares of the Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue as at the adoption date of the 2002 Share Option
Scheme or the date of approval by the shareholders in general meeting
where the limit is refreshed. The total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible person
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme in any twelve months period must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of such grant unless
approved by the shareholders in general meeting.

1 26 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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36.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont'd) 36. 18 R &= & (a0
Share option scheme adopted in 2002 (cont'd) R-BE_FHEM2ERESTSE (&)

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows: RIS TR BT
Adjusted
Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price
& A TR RARTHEE
HK$
BT
Directors 29 November 2007 29 November 2007 — 2.5536
28 November 2017
%5 —ETtF+—AZTANB —EEtLF+-AZ+NBE
—E—tF+—A=Z+NB
Employees 29 November 2007 29 November 2007 — 2.5536
28 November 2017
B8 —ETtF+—AZTANB —EEtLF+-AZ+NBE
—E—tF+—A=Z+NB
Business associates 29 November 2007 29 November 2007 — 2.5536
28 November 2017
ES 1IN —ETtF+—AZTANB —EEtFE+-AZ+NBE
—E—tF+—A=Z+NB
Business associates 27 June 2008 27 June 2008 - 2.5536
26 June 2018
FIEHEA —ETENFAAZ+tAH ZETENFEAAZF+LERHE
—E-NFAAZ+AH
The 2002 Share Option Scheme was expired in July 2012 after the TR - FEREEERMNB B TES 25
scheme period of the tenth anniversary of the adoption date and no EHEER T ——Ft AR ERBTARE
further share options can be granted under the 2002 Share Option T CFRERES AR L ERE-
Scheme.
2015 2014
—E-®F —E-mF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
per share options per share options
mEsR =A%
FITREE BREYE FHITREE BREHA
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January R—A—HR 3.2000 15,626,540 3.2000 15,626,540
Adjustment upon open offer RZE—AFtA+AA
effective on 15 July 2015 PABEERE AR - 3,955,591 = =
Lapsed during the year FRRM - (2,106,059) - -
At 31 December KR+ZA=+—H 2.5536 17,476,072 3.2000 15,626,540
BREE B RIERARA A 127
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36.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont'd) 36. 58 IR AESTE (@)

Share option scheme adopted in 2012

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 14 December 2012, a share option
scheme of the Company (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company.

In accordance with the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the Board may
grant options to any eligible participants who has contributed or may
contribute to the development and growth of the Group or any entity
in which the Group hold an equity interest to subscribe for shares in
the Company at any price which shall be not less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the
date on which an offer for the grant of the options; (i) the average
of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as shown in the
daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date on which an offer for the grant of the
options; and (iii) the nominal value of the share of the Company on the
date on which an offer for the grant of the options.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10%
of the Shares in issue as at its adoption date or the date of approval
by the Shareholders in general meeting where the limit is refreshed. At
the 2015 AGM, an ordinary resolution approving the refreshment of
the scheme limit and authorizing the Directors to grant share options
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme up to the refreshed limit (i.e.
372,096,700 Shares, representing 10% of the total number of Shares
in issue as at the date of 2015 AGM) was passed. As such, the total
number of Shares available for issue under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme was 563,650,790 Shares (including 191,554,090 Shares to be
issued upon exercise of the outstanding share options granted under
the 2012 share option scheme), representing approximately 9.6% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of the Annual Report on 30 March 2016.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible person under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme in any twelve months period must not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue at the date of such grant unless approved by the shareholders
in general meeting. The amount payable on acceptance of the option is
HK$10.
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36.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont'd)
Share option scheme adopted in 2012 (cont’d)

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:
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36. 8 IR AESTE (@)
R-ZE——FEMZERETS (&)
RS TER T BT

Adjusted
Date of grant Exercise period exercise price
& A TEH RPRTEE
HK$
BT
Directors 3 September 2014 3 September 2014 - 0.2274
2 September 2019
5% —ZET-WEANAZ=H “T-WFEAA=ZRAZE
—E-NAFAAZHR
Employees 3 September 2014 3 September 2014 - 0.2274
2 September 2019
== —ZET-WEANAZ=H “T-WFEAA=ZRAZE
—E-NAFAAZHR
Business associates 3 September 2014 3 September 2014 - 0.2274
2 September 2019
FIEHEA —ET-WFERA=AH “T-WFEAA=ZRAZE
—E-NAFAAZHR
2015 2014
“E-If —Z-F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
per share options per share options
mESK MEEKR
FHTEE BREYER FHFHEE BREZA
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January R—A—H 0.2850 204,900,000 - -
Share options granted during FRE L ERE
the year
- Directors -E% - - 0.2850 78,000,000
— Employees -E8 - - 0.2850 99,700,000
~ Business associates —EBHMEA - - 0.2850 27,200,000
Exercised during the year FRIE 0.2850 (22,860,000) - -
Lapsed during the period HRAR 0.2850 (29,200,000) = =
Adjustment upon open offer R-ZE-RE+A+HA
effective on 15 July 2015 AREEERARAE - 38,714,090 = -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 0.2274 191,554,090 0.2850 204,900,000

BREEERERERAR
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37.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
(a) Acquisition of subsidiaries

130

On 10 November 2015, the Group acquired 70% of the issued share
capital of Million Fortune International Investment Limited (“Million
Fortune”) for a consideration of HK$400,000,000 which is settled
by issue of the convertible bonds by the Company in the following:
(a) as to the sum of HK$120,000,000 settled by way of issue of
the QDCB1 (note 30) and (b) as to the sum of HK$280,000,000 to
be settled by way of issue of the convertible bonds in the principal
amount of HK$280,000,000 (“QDCB2"), which may be converted
into 700,000,000 Shares upon the exercise of the Conversion Rights
under the QDCB2 at a conversion price of HK$0.40 per Conversion
Share, as final payment of the consideration within 14 full calendar
months period after 10 November 2015 (subject to downward
adjustments as detailed in the section headed “Profit guarantee and
adjustment mechanism” in the announcement dated 30 September
2015) (the “Contingent Consideration”). Million Fortune, its wholly
owned subsidiaries and 90% owned A fiiEl & (the “Million Fortune
Group”) was engaged in provision the online platform for trading
and deferred spot delivery services of precious metals during the
year. The acquisition is for the purpose to diversify the Group's
revenue sources and strengthen its foothold in the national natural
resources market which may bring additional business opportunities
to the Group in future.

On 19 May 2015, the Group acquired assets and liabilities by
way of acquisition of the entire equity interest in Glorious Future
Logistics Limited (“Glorious Future”) at a cash consideration
of HK$44,000,000. Glorious Future holds 95% shareholdings
interest in Ifrontier LLC (“Ifrontier” together with Glorious Future,
“Glorious Future Group”), a limited liability company incorporated in
Mongolia, with self-owned trucks and vehicles located in Mongolia
and has not commenced any business activity at the date of
acquisition.

National United Resources Holdings Limited
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37.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (cont’'d)
(a) Acquisition of subsidiaries (cont'd)
The value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Million Fortune
Group and Glorious Future Group acquired as at its date of

3G RERER M 50

(a) WEME LT (@)
BB REEERBREEEZATENEE
MEERKEBEHZEENT

acquisition are as follows:

Million Glorious
Fortune Future
Group Group Total
BEEH IR E #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Assets and liabilities acquired: FiKBEEREE :
Property, plant and equipment M BB K& 1,804 46,455 48,259
Intangible assets BREE 82,120 - 82,120
Trade receivables FEWE 55K 2,073 = 2,073
Prepayments, deposits and BRFRE EEk
other receivables H & W k1A 16,468 3 16,471
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABERZ
through profit or loss CRMEE 3,803 - 3,803
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S &R 362 735 1,097
Trade payables R85 (4,754) = (4,754)
Other payables and accruals H A BRI R FERT & A (38) (876) (914)
Current tax liabilities mEBIAAE (1,620) (1) (1,621)
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIAAE (20,000) - (20,000)
80,218 46,316 126,534
Non-controlling interest FEFERR (29,668) (2,316) (31,984)
50,550 44,000 94,550
Goodwill (EES 326,342 - 326,342
376,892 44,000 420,892
Satisfied by: BEBUTHRER:
Cash B& - 44,000 44,000
QDCB1 (note 30) BEABERES— (H:E30) 120,000 - 120,000
Contingent Consideration (note 28) st AR (E (i #£28) 256,892 = 256,892
376,892 44,000 420,892
Net cash outflow arising on WEELEZRSRHTFE:
acquisition:
Cash consideration paid ENReRE - 44,000 44,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EBEWEREMERRELER (362) (735) (1,097)
(362) 43,265 42,903

BREEERERERAR
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37.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 3.ZEREREBERZMEE (1)
CASH FLOWS (cont’'d)
(@) Acquisition of subsidiaries (cont'd) (a) WEEMB AT (&)
The fair value of the contingent consideration arrangement of EJZ%R{E;?EEZ232{3256,892,0005%7_5
HK$256,892,000 was estimated by an independent professional B BEEEMFERZITEREA
valuer, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited (the “Valuer”). The ([MHEER]) 45T - Fszﬁj*“/‘iﬁﬁ-r)}ﬁ
assumed fair value has been arrived at using Binomial Lattice Model. AR B fEE A .
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Million Fortune is WEEEEE Y EERBEBNEEER 2R
attributable to the cash generating unit of the Million Fortune SEHEBEN-
Group.
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (b) HEKHE LT
On 9 March 2015, the Group disposed its subsidiary L&L Partners’ RZE—RAF=ZANB AEELEH
Limited and its subsidiary (the “L&L Group”) at a consideration of [ff /8B A TIAL&L Partners’ Limited & E [t
HK$100,000. On 26 June 2015, the Group disposed its subsidiaries BLaEl ([L&LEE ) - K {8 /100,000
Konwide Development Limited (“Konwide”) and Noble City (Asia) T -R-_E—RAFAZ-+ B K~EH
Limited and its subsidiary (the “Noble City Group”) at consideration HEHEWBA ﬂFﬁé%’fEﬁﬁﬁ Al ( [f‘;‘
of HK$1 each. B REMBA E(EE/JH)ﬁﬁE
ERAEWBA T(WEEEIJ) 1&1“’\
R A1ETT
Noble City L&L
Group Konwide Group Total
BEEE B L&LEE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTER FTAET FAT
Net assets at the date of REERMZEERENT !
disposal were as follows:
Property, plant and equipment VEN G ET 13 324 4 341
Trade receivables EWE 50 - - 1,807 1,807
Prepayments, deposits and BNHIE Re kAW
other receivables W RIE 689 = 26,393 27,082
Bank and cash balances BORR SR 219 29 187 435
Trade payables ERESR - = (2,829) (2,829)
Other payables and accruals ngﬁmléi&ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ (5,393) @) (23,841) (29,238)
Other borrowings 31 B8 (3,878) - - (3,878)
Income tax payable R %R - - (6,655) (6,655)
(8,350) 349 (4,934) (12,935)
Goodwill BE = = 5,245 5,245
Net (liabilities)/assets disposed of BHE (BE) BEFE (8,350) 349 31 (7,690)
Release of foreign currency BRI IAE
translation reserve - - (3,566) (3,566)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries &K B 72
W/ (BR) 8,350 (349) 3,355 11,356
Total consideration satisfied WREHENBRE
by cash - - 100 100
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEAZRERILFE
Cash consideration received BhBREERE - - 100 100
Cash and cash equivalents EHERSRERREEER
disposed of (219) (29) (187) (435)
(219) (29) (87) (335)
1 32 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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38.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

39.

3. AREE

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for REEH R BB BRERAENRABEZIABE
in the financial statements were as follows: /NI
2015 2014
—ZE-hfF —ZE-F
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Indemnity related to a former BRI E AR Bz mE
subsidiary (note 39) (H$5E39) 7,282 7,690
At the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not consider it NREEEER TR A AEE T4
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under the above HER it age REBmEREERBEZER-

possible claim.

PENDING LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATION CASE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following pending
litigations:

(a)

In September 2004, a Writ of Summons was served on the Company
by an individual third party demanding immediate repayment of
borrowings of approximately HK$1,600,000 together with the
interest thereon. As the Company had never borrowed money from
that individual third party, the Directors were of the opinion that
the Company had no obligation to pay the demanded amount. In
January 2005, an amended Writ of Summons was served on the
Company by the lender of the Group to clarify that the individual
third party acted as an agent of the lender. The Directors instructed
the lawyer of the Company to handle this matter. The loan advanced
by the lender of HK$1,523,000 together with interest and penalty
of HK$1,149,000, totaling of approximately HK$2,672,000, were
accrued in the financial statements (included in other borrowings
and other payables and accruals respectively) and has not yet been
settled as at 31 December 2015.

The Court has granted an order to adjourn sine die the plaintiffs’
application to set down this case on 15 March 2006. That is to say,
the lender and its agent have temporarily withheld the proceedings
against the Company. This claim has not been settled up to the date
of approval of these financial statements.

39.

&=
&

(a)

B R T &SRR R B R
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R P& S AT
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ZETNFENA —REAE=ZFRAR
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39.PENDING LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATION CASE
(cont'd)

(b)

134

According to an agreement entered into by the Company, two of
its subsidiaries and two independent third parties in February 2003,
the Group disposed of a subsidiary, World Giant Limited (“World
Giant"”), a company engaged in property investment in the PRC. In
this connection, the Company has undertaken to indemnify World
Giant for, among others, any increase in the liabilities of World Giant
as a result of any claim for taxation arising from any transactions
effected on or before the completion date of the disposal. In
October 2004, World Giant received a payment request from the
PRC tax authority in respect of PRC property taxes relating to the
property held by World Giant, including the late payment surcharge
levied by the tax authority, of which approximately an amount of
RMB6,100,000 related to transactions on or before the completion
date. The existing management of World Giant had indicated to the
Directors that the amount in respect of transactions on or before the
completion date should be paid by the Company.

In February 2005, a Writ of Summons was served on the Company
demanding the payment of approximately RMB6,100,000. However,
such amounts were covered by the amount accrued in the financial
statements of World Giant at the time of disposal.

Accordingly, in the opinion of the Directors and having obtained an
opinion from the Company’s lawyer, the Group has no obligation to
pay the above taxes. Because of the uncertainty of the outcome of
this matter, the amount involved of approximately RMB6,100,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$7,282,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$7,690,000), has been shown as contingent liabilities in note 38
to the financial statements.

The Writ of Summons was served on the Company in February
2005. The Company has not received further claims from the
plaintiff up to the date of approval of these financial statements.
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39.PENDING LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATION CASE
(cont'd)

(0

At the end of 2012, a customer of FMEI%, a subsidiary of the
Company, was arrested by Binzhou City Public Security Bureau
(“Binzhou Bureau”) for the prosecution of drug addiction. Binzhou
Bureau discovered that this customer had frequent fund transfer
with F B & and also lots of people participated in the trading of
white silver with Al & .

On 27 November 2012, Binzhou Bureau froze all types of accounts
of FMiEl% under the Agricultural Bank of China, Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited and China Construction Bank
for the sake of the suspected illegal operation by FfHiE&. A
M B & reported the foregoing case to Qingdao Bonded Area
Regulatory Commission (BEERMEEEZ 8 E) ("QBARC")
and communicated with Binzhou Bureau. Even though QBARC
emphasized that F 1B % was operating legitimately without any
improper records, Binzhou Bureau did not affirm a clear decision.
Having considered to protect the interests of all customers of # i
B &, AfEE paid RMB3,000,000 (approximately HK$3,581,000)
at the end of December 2012 as a guarantee deposit to Binzhou
Bureau and the foregoing bank accounts were released afterwards.

As the directors and the management of F 1Bl £ considered
the recoverability of this deposit was remote, RMB3,000,000
(approximately HK$3,581,000) was fully written off. Sun Xiaoyang,
the director of FfiTEl & agreed to indemnify F i Bl & should there
be losses arising from the foregoing case. The directors and the
management of FAATEl & are of the view that no further provision
has been made for this case.
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39.PENDING LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATION CASE

(cont'd)

(d) In 2014, five customers of H Bl have taken civil actions
against AMTE £ in the court in Qingdao claiming the contracts
of trading precious metals on the platform of A #iEl % being
invalid and recovery of the related losses totalling approximately
RMB11,000,000, equivalent to approximately HK$13,131,000. In
April 2015, the court in Qingdao handed down the judgment in
favour of FMLEl% in one of the five cases and the successors of
the deceased plaintiff in that case appealed against the judgment in
May 2015. The court suspended the proceedings of the other four

civil actions pending the results of the first case.

In May 2015, two customers of FfiEl & have taken civil actions
against MBI &, Qingdao Xinshiyuan Precious Metal Limited ( & &
SRESLBAR2AA]), and Qingdao Chengyang Sub-branch of
China Construction Bank Corporation ( F B R IEITRDBR A 7)
B EHEE47) in court in Qingdao claiming the contracts of trading
precious metals on the platform of FfiiE & being invalid and
recovery of the related losses totalling approximately RMB1,600,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$1,910,000. The hearing of the case
is still in progress and the court has not handed down the judgment

as at the date of this report.

Having considered the foregoing judgment in April 2015 by the
court in favour of the H i€ and taken the legal advice, the
existing management of 1% had indicated to the Directors
that it is not probable that material loss will be suffered by & fii
% . Therefore, no provision has been made for the above claims.

(e) On 24 June 2015, First Concept served a notice of arbitration (the
“Notice”) on SGS, being a wholly owned subsidiary of SouthGobi
Resources Ltd. In the Notice, First Concept sought the Advanced
Payment from SGS, according to a coal supply agreement dated
19 May 2014 between First Concept and SGS, representing the
prepayment amount advanced by First Concept for the supply of
coking coal by SGS to First Concept under such agreement. The
arbitral proceedings are deemed to have commenced on 24 June
2015, as the date when the respondent received the Notice. As at
the date of this report, the arbitral proceedings are in progress.

First Concept paid in advance to SGS for purchasing coals from SGS.
However, SGS supplied and First Concept collected zero tonne of
coal in the contracted period. As such, SGS refused to repay the
Advanced Payment to First Concept. It is justified for First Concept
to recover the Advanced Payment from SGS by legal action, and First

Concept proceeded accordingly as mentioned above.
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40.COMMITMENTS
Lease commitments
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40. 7K &

The Group leases certain of its office properties, office equipment and
billboards under operating lease arrangements. Leases are negotiated for
terms ranging from three months to five years, and lease payments are
fixed over the lease terms and do not include contingent rentals.

As at 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease payments of
the Group under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

HEFRE
AEERBEEEHELHEAERTHAE
X MAETRBRPINESR BHMBES=
AR HEXRAEAREHAE T TE%E

R-Z—AF+-A=1+—8 KAEBRET
RS ERE A REEASER T B H

S

2015 2014
—E-IfF = U
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
— within one year ——%FRA 6,497 9,867
— in the second to fifth years inclusive —F_ZFERF (BEERWT) 4,622 16,043
11,119 25,910
Capital commitments B AR E
The Group's capital commitments at the end of the reporting period are RI|EHAR  NEBH AT ERNAE:
as follows:
2015 2014
—ZE—EHF —Z—E
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHBT
Contracted but not provided for: EEESIEES: 3B
— Capital contributions payable to -~ —HEBE AR LA
an associate - 85,816
— Property, plant and equipment —ME - HWERHZE 25,471 206
25,471 86,022

BREEERERERAR
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41.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related

MNBEBETRS

@) BRUESHBRREMBEHMRELZRS

S 5 R S B B E R g

#EIT TR

parties during the year: 5
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Consultancy fee charged by —H A R YA EE R &
a related company 197 360

A director of the Company, Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard (resigned as
executive Director on 17 July 2015), who is also a director of the
related company, has significant influence over the related company

(b) As of 31 December 2015, other than a balance due to the related
company amounted to HK$66,000 (31 December 2014: HK$70,000)
included in other payables and accruals, there are no balances

outstanding with other related companies.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

ARREBEHINEE (R _ZT—HF
TtATEEBERTES) TAXBE L

AlezEE Y%A

kK

ABABEATE

by RZZE—RHE+-_RA=+—HB KBitA
HtpEARERESEAZEFBREA
Al 2 #71766,0008 T (=T —WFE+—H
=+—H:70,000/T) 4p - A EH A

BB AR 2B R &F-

(0 AEBETEZEERAEME:

2015 2014

—E—EEF —E—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

Short term employee benefits EHESRA 10,436 8,056

Equity-settled share option expenses AT 25 45 & B8 AR 2 - 11,216

Retirement benefit scheme RRAE TG B

contributions - 1
Total compensation paid to key IRTEFEEBABZHEBAE

management personnel 10,436 19,273

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 12 to

the financial statements.
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42.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

43.
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The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets

2.2¥HEsz2EBMT A

EREEMITARRERNRZEEAEMAT :

THMEE

Loans and receivables

BERREKRRE
2015 2014
—Z-AfF —ZE—EF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Trade receivables JEWE 5% 325,322 32,489
Financial assets included in prepayments, & AFEf 508 ~ i & & H b fE UK
deposits and other receivables HEZemEE 164,518 49,186
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITFR 237,478 =
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITET 183,409 2,879
910,727 84,554
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REBERAGTEZEBEARE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHET
Trade payables FEYE 55K 73,256 84,124
Financial liabilities included in FTATENRIE Re
other payables and accruals HMEWREBEz 2RMEE 30,699 28,698
Other borrowings HihEE 251,773 46,473
Convertible bonds AR &5 62,889 28,135
Non-convertible bonds AR ES 254,754 229,326
673,371 416,756

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including

foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity

risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

43.

BHREREERRRBEE
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43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43.BiEMETEEERBE &#)
POLICIES (cont’'d)

(a)

(b)

140

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

At 31 December 2015, if the HK$ had weakened 5% per cent
against the RMB with all other variables held constant, consolidated
profit after tax for the year would have been HK$9,455,000 (2014
HK$nil) lower, arising as a result of the foreign exchange loss on
borrowings denominated in RMB.

Price risk

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity security price risk.
At 31 December 2015, if the share prices of the investments
increase/decrease by 10%, the loss for the year would have been
HK$239,000 (2014: HK$nil) higher/lower, arising as a result of the
fair value gain/loss of the investments.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no material exposures to interest rate risk in relation
to interest-bearing assets and liabilities of the Group as the Group's
income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk mainly in relation to its trade
and other receivables, cash deposits with banks and maximum
exposure of credit risk is equal to the carrying amounts of these
financial assets. Cash and bank transactions counterparties are
limited to financial institutions with good credit rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentration of credit risk as approximately 94% (2014: 31%) and
approximately 100% (2014: 84%) of the Group's trade receivables
were due from the Group’s largest trade debtor and the five largest
trade debtors, respectively. The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history. The Group reviews the recoverable amount of the
trade and other receivables on a regular basis and provision for
doubtful debts is made in accordance with the Group's policies. In
addition, the Management reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt regularly to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts. In this regard, the
Management consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

National United Resources Holdings Limited
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43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (cont’d)
¢) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

43. M EEREE R ERBUER (@)

() RBEZRAR

AEBEZBRRERERB A RBHZR
PESHFR KEMERAEE T EHER
SRHRENENEEBEERBRNRDESS

AEBEIZEATARBEE MR ERRE B
RZzemEBEINHMMRET

payments, is as follows:

On demand or

within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total
EERZ—FR —E@WEF —ZEE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 December 2015 R-B-2F+=-A=+-H TR TR TERT TET
Trade payables ERE 5 HIE 73,256 - - 73,256
Financial liabilities included in STARMEMNFIERESER
other payables and accruals ZERAE 30,699 - - 30,699
Other borrowings Hipfs§ 261,638 - - 261,638
Finance lease payables HEHERNTTE 1,138 1,138 1,553 3,829
Convertible bonds AR E S - 28,888 72,380 101,268
Non-convertible bonds R R E S 247,875 11,542 - 259,417
614,606 41,568 73,933 730,107
On demand or
within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total
EEXH—FR —EMF —ERF Fob
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 December 2014 RZE-mNE+=ZA=1+—H THEL TET FTER FTAET
Trade payables R E 5B 84,124 - - 84,124
Financial liabilities included in FAEMEMNFBERENER
other payables and accruals ZeRARE 28,698 - - 28,698
Other borrowings HibfEE 47,834 - - 47,834
Finance lease payables BMERERNFE 973 973 2,115 4,061
Convertible bonds AR ES 31,800 = = 31,800
Non-convertible bonds FARRES 35,510 224,720 - 260,230
228,939 225,693 2,115 456,747
BREt & ERIZERER AR 141
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43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43.BiEMETEEERBE ®)

POLICIES (cont’'d)
d) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain sufficient capital in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies and processes during the years ended 31

December 2015 and 2014.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio, which
is calculated as borrowings over the amount of total assets. The
Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at an appropriate
level. The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2015 was 29.37% (2014:

43.17%).

44.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@) On 8 December 2015, the Company and HX entered into a
subscription agreement for the subscription of convertible bonds
(the "HXCB") in the principal amount of HK$100,000,000 to
be issued by HX. The subscription price, which was equal to the
principal amount of the HXCB, would be partly settled by offsetting
the principal amount of the HX Bond of HK$70,000,000 to be
repaid by HX to the Company under the redemption notice and the
remaining balance would be settled in cash by the Company. The
HXCB carries interest at a rate of 5% per annum and payable on the
maturity date, which is the date falling twelve months from the date
of issue of the HXCB. The HXCB entitles the holder to convert into
ordinary shares of HX at the initial conversion price of HK$0.115
per conversion share (subject to adjustment) during the period
after the date of issue and up to and including the maturity date.
The initial conversion price of HK$0.115 represented a discount of
approximately 30.72% to the closing price of HK$0.166 per ordinary
share of HX as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 8 December 2015.
Assuming the conversion rights attaching to the HXCB are exercised
in full at the initial conversion price, a total of 869,565,217 shares
of HX will be allotted and issued. The subscription of HXCB was
completed on 5 February 2016. Details of the subscription of HXCB
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 8 December

2015.
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44.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (cont’d)

(b)

On 15 January 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(as purchaser) entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement to purchase the entire issued share capital of Gear World
Development Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, at a consideration of not more than
HK$800,000,000 (the Major Acquisition 2”). Upon the completion
of the reorganisation, Gear World Development Limited will
indirectly own the entire equity interest init K H iR /SEHE AR
R 2 7] (Beijing Tian Ma Tong Chi Car Rental Co., Ltd.*) and Beijing
Tian Ma Tong Chi Car Rental Co., Ltd. will own 49% of the equity
interest of 3t K5Ik # = EH MR A E (Beijing Tian Ma Tong
Chi Travel Transportation Co., Ltd.*), which is principally engaged in
the provision of car rental services and tour bus services including
shuttle bus services for business and leisure purposes as well as
related value-added services. The consideration of HK$800,000,000
shall be settled by way of cash consideration and the issuance of
convertible bonds. The Major Acquisition 2 constitutes a major
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, it
is therefore subject to approval by the Shareholders. As at the date
of this report, the Major Acquisition 2 has not yet completed. Details
of the transaction were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 15 January 2016.

Besides the NCB with an aggregate nominal value of
HK$11,000,000 were subscribed during the year ended 31
December 2015, further HK$45,500,000 in aggregate were
subscribed after the end of the reporting period and up to the date
of this report.

The Company exercised the conversion rights of the HXCB in the
principal amount of HK$19,999,880, at the conversion price of
$0.115 per share and 173,912,000 shares of HX were issued to the
Company after the end of the reporting period and up to the date
of this report.

On 1 March 2016, the Company and a subscriber named Upper
Target Limited entered into a subscription agreement, pursuant
to which the Company has conditionally agreed to issue, and the
subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe for the convertible
bonds in the principal amount of HK$75,000,000 which are
convertible into a maximum number of 493,421,052 new shares
under general mandate based on the initial conversion price of
HK$0.152 per share. Details of the subscription were set out in
the announcements of the Company dated 1 March 2016 and 22
March 2016. The subscription has not been completed up to the
date of this report, as some of the conditions for completing the
subscription have not yet been fulfilled.

45.APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 30 March 2016.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

L FERBEBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below.

EA))FIEMT -

AEERENBAYRFEZXEREERAGEHRE
(BB ECTERERMBHRRALREEHRLE (1

For the
six months
For the year ended ended For the year
31 December 31 December ended 30 June
Bz
+=A=t+-AH
HE+t-A=t-ALEE IEAMEA BEAA=tHLEE
2015 2014 2013 2013 2012
RESULTS £ “E-I1f —T-mE St 3 i Sy:3 —T-—f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FHT THT FHT
Revenue Wz 382,789 364,876 194,531 39,287 25,439
(Loss)/profit before tax BRBLA (B18) /%7 (63,138) (56,841) 37,945 (417,654) (883,584)
Income tax BT Rt (1,968) (12,004) (10,061) (1,942) (817)
(Loss)/profit for the year R (BR) /B (65,106) (68,845) 27,884 (419,596) (884,401)
Attributable to: FEfL:
Owners of the Company ARFHEEA (64,413) (68,647) 31,945 (412,975) (884,556)
Non-controlling interests FERER (693) (198) (4,061) (6,621) 155
(65,106) (68,845) 27,884 (419,596) (884,401)
At 31 December At 30 June
R+=R=+-AH RAA=tH
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER “E-I1f —T-mE —T—=F —T--F T ——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET FHT THT FTHT
Non-current assets kRBEE 771,486 146,358 116,753 6,533 403,196
Current assets MEEE 1,173,548 566,031 205,443 59,290 72,380
Current liabilities MEEE (655,106) (209,527) (48,284) = (24)
Non-current liabilities FnHEE (342,656) (303,239) (139,003) (33,788) (25,001)
Net assets EERE 953,272 199,623 134,909 32,035 450,551
Attributable to: L
Owners of the Company ADEEAEA 917,287 198,592 148,755 41,820 453,717
Non-controlling interests RS 35,985 1,031 (13,846) (9,785) (3,166)
Total equity BRER 953,272 199,623 134,909 32,035 450,551
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